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Donald L. Correll

Dear Shareholders:

Pennichuck’s vision is to become the premier supplier of water-related services

throughout the Northeast. During 2004, we took several impertant steps toward

achieving this mission. When we ultimately succeed, it will be the result of expanding

our business incrementally, combined with a growth strategy te build new relationships

with, or acquire, existing water systems and utilities of signiticant size.

Replicating the proven expansion strategy Pennichuck employed

in New Hampshire, we will sstablish new operating hubs in other
markets. We will then aggressively pursue complementary
opportunities for other business aperations. Gperating a municipality’s
water system under contract is an effective way to enter new markets.
Therefore, public-private partnerships will be o key component of

our growth strategy in the years to come.

In terms of overall performance, 2004 was a pivotal year for
Pennichuck. | believe that achieving respectable financiol results,
despite the continuing challenges we face in our struggle with the
City of Nashug, is a true testament to the fundamental strength and

stability of your Company.

The Company’s total consolidated revenues were $23.0 million for
2004, compared to $21.4 million in 2003. Net income was $1.8 million
versus $1.2 million, and consolidated earnings per share were S.76,
compared to $.52 the previous year. Annual revenue from our three
regulated water utilities was $19.6 million in 2004, compared to $18.7
million in 2003, while revenues from non-regulated water businesses

and other activities was $1.9 million, compared to $1.7 million in 2003.

These figures reflect consistent performance across all our businesses.
Howsver, considering that we had to pay out close to $1.4 million in
legal and other costs primarily associated with defending the Company,
it is clear to see the burden that the City of Nashua’s eminent domain
proceeding continues to place on our overalt finances. Regrettably, it
seems likely that we will face similar expenditures in 2005 and 2006.
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On the regulated side of the business, we continued fo strengthen our
utility operations by investing in capital improvements to enhance customer
service, fo prepare for more sTrihgem regulatory requirements, ond fo
plan for future growth. In 2004, we were granted an 8.9% rate increase
in our core system. Howsver, the resulting gain in revenues was fempered

by lower consumption due fo cooler, wetter weather lust summer.

Early last year, we reorganized the management structure of Pennichuck
Water Service Company (PWSC), to better pasition this subsidiary in
the market, and to pursue o more cggressive growth strategy. PWSC
consummated the acquisitions of a number of smalter community
water systems in 2004, ond we laid the groundwork for several more

acquisitions that we expect will come to fruition early in 2005.

2004 wos aiso o successful year for The Southwood Corporation
(Southwood), our real estate subsidiary, which posted its strongest
financial performance in three years. This February, Michael C. ).
Fallon was appointed President of Southwood. With over 30 vears of
experience in the real estate industry, spedializing in strategic asset
management for corporate and institutional portfolios, Mr. Fallon’s

considerable skills are ideally suited to his new role at Southwood.

Another welcome addition to our management team is William D.
Patterson, who joins the Company as CFO. Mr. Patterson has over

25 years of experience in the water and utility industries. Most
recenily, he founded and served as President of EnSTAR Management
Corporation and also served as Executive Advisor to Concentric Energy
Advisors in Marlboraugh, MA, providing independent corporate finance
advisory and consulting services to utility and energy companies.

Mr. Patterson replaces Charles J. Staah, who recently announced his

retirement after 22 years with the Company.

Last year we worked 1o recapture the momentum Pennichuck enjoyed
hefore we became hindered by the City of Nashua's fight to take over
your Company’s assets. In late December, the New Hompshire Public
Utilities Commission (NHPUC) ruled that the City had no authority to

acquire either Pennichuck East Utility (PEU), or Pittstield Aqueduct
Company (PAC), which raises serious questions about Nashua's
argument thot taking over any of Pennichuck’s water utilities is what's

best for the peaple.

The NHPUC's ruling also validates our commitment to defending your
Company. Rest assured that we will use any necessary and appropriate
means to protact the hest interests of our customers, our employees,
and you, our shareholders. We have taken steps to ensure that the
operations of our subsidiaries are not affected by the challenges facing
the parent holding company. In addition, we have filed several motions

to preserve our right to pursue damages through the courts.

Many of our customers have been asking what they can do to help
resolve our fight with the City of Nashua. In response, Pennichuck
supported the craation of the SmartWater Campaign. This grass roots
initiotive provides ¢ forum for citizens to express their concerns, so

that they might be heard by officials in the City government.

Despite our angoing legal battle, we remain focused on our primary
business abjectives and fully expect this momentum to build
throughout 2005 and beyond. We have taken appropriate steps

to finance, restructure and refinance slements of our overall capital
structure, and we are encouraged by the financial markets” recognition

of the underlying financicl strength of our core utility business.

in closing, | would like to thank our employees and shareholders
for their continued support through this challenging period in our
Company’s history. Viewed in the context of our more than 150 years
of continvous aperation, this represents a brief period of turmail that

we are doing everything we can to put quickly ond finally behind us.

Sincerely,

/7/w 42’1‘/(,_—/

Donald L. Correll
President and CED, Pennichuck Corporation



The concept of public-private parinerships represents an important frend in the water

industry, and ene that will undeubledly become even meore prevalent in the years fo

come. The reason for the growing interest in these relationships is simple. Public-

private partnerships provide a highly affractive solution for seme very pressing and

expensive challenges facing municipal water systems all across the country.

Many communities are being forced to make major capital improvements
and upgrade their water systems in order to remain in compliance with
increasingly stringent government regulations for water quality. However,
it is often difficult for communities to fund such lorge expenditures from

taxpayer dollars.

Despite their preference to maintain local control of their water system,
many municipalities are unwilling or unable to make the necessary
improvements to stay in compliance. Establishing public-private
partnerships offers a welcome solution to this dilemma and, as a result,

presents some very exciting growth opportunities for Pennichuck.

Public-private partnerships
provide strong growth opportunities
for PWSC.

True partnerships benefit all parties concemed, and that is exactly the
kind of relationship Pennichuck strives to create through our public-
private partnerships. Recently, PWSC has been pursuing opportunities
to partner with New Hampshire communities to help them make
necessary capital improvements. In some cases, the Company may also
|sase the existing assets of the water system. In this type of operating
agresment, we assume responsibility for funding and carrying out any
necessary repairs or capital improvements. Ultimately, these investments
are recouped through modest increases in customer rates collected over
time. Not surprisingly, public-private partnerships hold considerable
appeal for municipalities, as they allow communities to retain control
of their water system, yet outsource day-to-day operations and
afleviate a significant financial burden.




As part of our effort to better position PWSC to aggressively pursue
growth opportunities, Stephen J. Densberger was appointed President
of this subsidiary early lost year, With new management in place, we
focused our attention on developing a new strategic marketing plan
and determining how and where to expand the Company and increase

revenues over the next five years.

Copitalizing on the opportunities fo establish new public-private
partnerships is certainly central to our overall growth strategy.
However, thesa telationships are not entirely new for Pennichuck. [n
fact, 2004 marked our sixth successful year operating the municipal
water system for the town of Hudson, NH. We are also in the fourth
year of our operations ond maintenance contract with the town of
Salisbury, MA, which has firmly established our presence in the greater
seacoast are surrounding the Massachusetts ond New Hampshire border.
Qur progressive management and vision has kept your Company at
the forefront of the emerging trend toward water utility consolidation,
and we are actively pursuing new opportunities for public-private

partnerships with other municipalities throughout the Northeost.

Smaller community systems represent another area of PWSC's business
that continues to thrive. There are many privately owned water systems
that were built to serve residential communities and condominium
associations. In 2004, PWSC signed a purchase and sales agreement
to acquire three separate systems, serving o population of approximately
3,500 people in the towns of Barnstead, Conway, and Middleton, NH.
There are many similar systems in New Hompshire, as well as ¢ large
number of older systems that will soon be in need of rehabilitation
and professional management, which we expect to contribute to our

growth in the vears chead.

Expansion opportunities for PWSC are not limited to our home state.
We have also identified some highly attractive opportunities to expand
beyond our historic borders. Thioughout New England, there are
fiterally hundreds of small community systems serving condominium
associations, as well os numerous smaller municipalities ond resort
communities that could benefit by outsourcing the management of their
water system or baing acquired by PWSC. We are currently evaluating

a number of opportunities in Maine, Massachusetts and Vermont.

Qver the lost few years, PWSC has focused increasing attention

on developing our business by serving as the certified operator for
non-transient, non-community water systems. Typically, these include
schoals, daycare centers and apartment buildings that cater to 25 or
more people on o doily basis, but are not served by municipal water
systems. Stricter requirements for the monitering and control of quality
issues in these systems have created o need for ongoing onalysis,
planning ond engineering, performed by highly quolified specialists.




PWSC has secured over 80 certified operator contracts to date,
including three different school districts. In addition to the base
revenves generated by the contracts themselves, we are also deriving
significant incremental income from providing additional services af
the customer’s request. Once a customer establishes a relationship
with PWSC to provide certified operations, they typically want vs to
solve any issue that arises regarding their water system. Whether it's
performing repairs or communicating with customers, the owners
would rather we take responsibility for everything. More than simply
providing convenience and peace of mind for the ownsr, these
requests also provide a significant amount of wark for our maintenance
technicians. Last year, income from small community systems represented
a significant component of PWSC’s total contract business revenues, a

large portion of which was derived from ongoing service calls.

The Watertight Protection Pragram is another area that continues

to provide increasing revenues for PWSC. Introduced in 2000,

the Watertight Protection Plan helps protect consumers against
potentially disastrous hreak in the water ling connecting their houses
to Pennichuck’s distribution system. Although they are not always
aware of it, consumers own this section of the water service and are,
therefore, respansible for its maintenance and repair. For o nomina)
fee, The Watertight Protection Plan guarantees that Pennichuck will
take care of any repairs that may be needed. Consumer response to
the Watertight Protection Plan has been very successful, with over

3,400 households now enrolled.

Pennichuck’s position as the pre-eminent publicly-held water utility
in the region requires us to make ongaing capital investments

to assure the safety and health of our customers and to meet the
requirements of the Safe Drinking Water Act. We must also continue
to maintain our aging infrastructure. Qur scheduled maintenance
and/or replacement program allows us to better manage tasks and
expenditures while continuing to provide the best passible service to

our cusfomers.

QOur lorgest capital improvement project of 2004 was involved with
the continuing process of upgrading Pennichuck’s water treatment
plant serving our core system in Nashua. Built over 25 vears ago, this
facility was considered ‘state-of-the-art.” Now, it needs significant
improvements fo remain in compliance with more rigorous federal
surfoce water treatment standards that have changed dramatically

during the seme time period.

Once the upgrades are completed, the water treatment plant will
have improved chamical freatment, improved sedimentation facilities,
and a more robust filtration process with redundant safeguards. This
investment enables Pennichuck ta meet all existing and proposed
regulations for water freatment. In late foll of 2004, we commenced
construction on the first phase of this project, which is designed to
help us maintain a more consistent temperature and quality of our

raw water supply.

In 2004, we completed the rehabilitation of the Supply Pond and
Harris Pond dams. All the dams in our core system meet the standards
set forth by the Army Corps of Engineers and the New Hampshire

Department of Environmental Services (NHDES).




Other significant improvements to our core system included boosting
water pressure in sections of Nashua, and completing the design of o
major water main replacement. This second project is being completed
in conjunction with the City of Nashua’s ongoing sewsr separation

project, which results in construction savings for both entities.

Significant moves to help improve

customer service.

After more than o century operating in the heart of downtown Noshua,

Pennichuck has moved its corporate headquarters to new offices in
Merrimack, NH. In addition to providing the extra space needed to
accommodate our growth, the new facility provides a modemn work
environment that was specifically designed to serve our needs.

The move has been met with great enthusiasm, not only from our
employees who enjoy a more productive work environment, but also

our customers and visitors.

Finding new ways to improve customer service is a never-ending

process at Pennichuck. Recently, we implemented a new appointment
scheduling system to manage service calls more efficiently. The system
analyzes the location of all scheduled appointments and automatically
colculates the most efficient route, the ideal ordes, and the necessory

fime for our drivers to reach a given destination and perform the work.

Additional enhancements include @ new phone system with automated
messaging that allows us to answer customer questions and address
their concerns 24/7. We are also implementing a new utility billing
system that will enable Pennichuck customers to receive and pay their
water bills online, saving them time and us money through

significantly reduced processing costs.

Developing our businesses through

synergistic expansion.

In order to service new cusiomers economically, Pennichuck needs to
have staff and resources close to those customers. Therefore, we see
our biggest growth opportunities coming from expanding our utility
operations. There is great synergy between expanding our regulated
and non-reguloted businesses in unison. Acquiring utilities in new
geographic areas will enable Pennichuck to establish o base from
which to expand and capitalize on the many business apportunities in

surrounding communifigs.
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PENNICHUCK CORPORATION
25 Manchester Street
Merrimack, New Hampshire 03054

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
Thursday, May 5, 2005

To Our Shareholders:

The Annual Meeting of Shareholders of Pennichuck Corporation ("Company") will be held
at 9:00 a.m. on Thursday, May 5, 2005, at the Nashua Marriott Hotel, 2200 Southwood Drive,
Nashua, New Hampshire for the following purposes:

(1) To elect two Directors;

(2) To ratify the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as independent
accountants for the Company for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2005; and

(3) To transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting or any
adjournments thereof.

The Board of Directors has fixed the close of business on March 24, 2005 as the record
date for the determination of shareholders entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the Annual
Meeting and any postponements or adjournments of the meeting. Only holders of common stock
of record at the close of business on that date will be entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the
Annual Meeting or any adjournment thereof. Your attention is directed to the attached Proxy
Statement.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

RICHARD A. SAMUELS, ESQ.
Secretary

Nashua, New Hampshire
April 1, 2005

WE URGE SHAREHOLDERS TO MARK, SIGN, DATE AND RETURN THE
ACCOMPANYING PROXY IN THE ENCLOSED ENVELOPE WHICH REQUIRES NO
POSTAGE IF MAILED IN THE UNITED STATES. THE GIVING OF THE PROXY WILL
NOT AFFECT YOUR RIGHTS TO VOTE AT THE MEETING IF THE PROXY IS
REVOKED AS SET FORTH IN THE ACCOMPANYING PROXY STATEMENT.




PENNICHUCK CORPORATION
25 Manchester Street
Merrimack, New Hampshire 03054

PROXY STATEMENT
for
2005 ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
to be held on
May 5, 2005

About the Annual Meeting
Why have I received these materials?

This Proxy Statement and the accompanying proxy are being mailed to shareholders on
or about April 4, 2005. The proxy is being solicited by the Board of Directors of Pennichuck
Corporation (referred to throughout this Proxy Statement as “Pennichuck” or the “Company” or
“we” or “our”) in connection with our Annual Meeting of Shareholders that will take place on
Thursday, May 5, 2005, at 9:00 a.m., and at any adjournment thereof. You are cordially invited
to attend the Annual Meeting and are requested to vote on the proposals described in this Proxy
Statement.

A copy of our Annual Report to Shareholders for the year ended December 31, 2004 has
also been mailed to you.

Who is entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting?

Holders of shares of common stock of Pennichuck as of the close of business on March
24, 2005, the record date for the meeting, will be entitled to receive notice of and to vote at the
Annual Meeting. As of the record date, 2,415,147 shares of our common stock were
outstanding, each of which is entitled to one vote with respect to each matter to be voted on at
the Annual Meeting.

How do I vote my shares at the Annual Meeting?

If you are a “record” shareholder of common stock (that is, if you hold common stock in
your own name in Pennichuck’s stock records maintained by our transfer agent, American Stock
Transfer & Trust Company), you may complete and sign the accompanying proxy card and
return it to Pennichuck or deliver it in person.




“Street name” shareholders of common stock (that is, shareholders who hold common
stock through a broker or other nominee) who wish to vote at the Annual Meeting will need to
obtain a proxy form from the institution that holds their shares and follow the voting instructions
on such form.

Can I change my vote after I return my proxy card?

Yes. After you have submitted a proxy, you may change your vote at any time before the
proxy is exercised by submitting a notice of revocation or a duly executed proxy bearing a later
date. You may change your vote either by submitting a proxy card prior to the date of the
Annual Meeting or by voting again prior to the time at which our voting facilities close. In any
event, the later submitted vote will be recorded and the earlier vote revoked.

What constitutes a quorum for purposes of the Annual Meeting?

The presence at the Annual Meeting, in person or by proxy, of the holders of a majority
of the voting power of all outstanding shares of common stock entitled to vote shall constitute a
quorum for the transaction of business. Proxies marked as abstaining (including proxies
containing broker non-votes) on any matter to be acted upon by shareholders will be treated as
present at the meeting for purposes of determining a quorum but will not be counted as votes cast
on such matters.

What vote is required to approve each proposal at the Annual Meeting?

The election of Directors at the Annual Meeting requires the affirmative vote of a
majority of the votes cast at the Annual Meeting by shares represented in person or by proxy and
entitled to vote on the proposal.

The ratification of the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP at the Annual
Meeting requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast at the Annual Meeting by
shares represented in person or by proxy and entitled to vote on the proposal. A properly
executed proxy marked “ABSTAIN” with respect to this proposal will not be voted, although it
will be counted for purposes of determining whether there is a quorum. Accordingly, an
abstention will have the effect of a negative vote.

If you hold your shares in “street name” through a broker or other nominee, shares
represented by “broker non-votes” will be counted in determining whether there is a quorum but
will not be counted as votes cast on such matters.

How does the Board recommend that I vote my shares?

Unless you give other instructions on your proxy card, the persons named as proxy
holders on the proxy card will vote in accordance with the recommendations of the Board of
Directors. The Board’s recommendation is set forth together with the description of each
proposal in this Proxy Statement. In summary, the Board recommends a vote:




*  FOR the Directors’ proposal to elect the two nominees as Directors of Pennichuck;
and

*  FOR the Directors’ proposal to ratify the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers
LLP as independent public accountants for Pennichuck for the year ending
December 31, 2005.

With respect to any other matter that properly comes before the Annual Meeting, the
proxy holders will vote as recommended by the Board of Directors or, if no recommendation 1s
given, in their own discretion in the best interests of Pennichuck. At the date of this Proxy
Statement, the Board of Directors had no knowledge of any business other than that described
herein that would be presented for consideration at the Annual Meeting.

Who will bear the expense of soliciting proxies?

Pennichuck will bear the cost of soliciting proxies in the form enclosed. In addition to
the solicitation by mail, proxies may be solicited personally or by telephone, facsimile or
electronic transmission by our Directors, officers and employees. We may reimburse brokers
holding common stock in their names or in the names of their nominees for their expenses in
sending proxy materials to the beneficial owners of such common stock.

Is there any information that I should know about future annual meetings?
Shareholder Proposals

Any shareholder who intends to present a proposal for inclusion in the proxy statement
for the 2006 Annual Meeting of Shareholders (the “2006 Annual Meeting”) must deliver the
proposal to the Company Secretary at 25 Manchester Street, Merrimack, New Hampshire 03054
in writing not later than December 5, 2005, if the proposal is submitted for inclusion in our proxy
materials for that meeting pursuant to Rule 14a-8 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

For any proposal that is not submitted for inclusion in next year’s proxy statement, but is instead
sought to be presented directly at the 2006 Annual Meeting, Securities and Exchange
Commission rules permit management to vote proxies in its discretion if we: (1) receive notice of
the proposal before the close of business on February 20, 2006, and advise shareowners in the
2006 proxy statement about the nature of the matter and how management intends to vote on
such matter; or (2) do not receive notice of the proposal prior to the close of business on
February 20, 2006. Notices of intention to present proposals at the 2006 Annual Meeting should
be addressed to Corporate Secretary, Pennichuck Corporation, 25 Manchester Street, Merrimack,
New Hampshire 03054.




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE,
BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

As of the date of this proxy statement, the Board of Directors consists of nine persons.
Consistent with the Federal Sarbanes-Oxley Act and its implementing regulations, the revised
listing standards of Nasdaq applicable to the Company, and recent trends in corporate
governance generally, the Board has materially increased the proportion of Directors on the
Board who satisfy the standards of an independent director under such rules and regulations. As
of the date of this proxy statement, a substantial majority of the members of the Board of
Directors have been determined to be independent, that is, each such person has not been and is
not presently employed by or has any direct or indirect material relationship with the Company,
and who thus satisfy the standards of independence evidenced in the revised Nasdaq listing
standards and in the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and its implementing regulations.

The membership and functions of each such Committee, namely the Audit Committee,
the Compensation and Benefits Committee, and the Corporate Governance and Nominating
Commuttee, is discussed below.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is presently comprised of Messrs. Keller and Bolander, Ms.
McCarthy and Ms. Chicoine. The Audit Committee is responsible for the appointment of the
independent auditors, oversight of the integrity of the Company’s financial statements, its
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the qualifications and independence of its
independent auditors, and other significant financial matters. The Board of Directors has
determined in its business judgment that each of the members of the Audit Committee is
independent under the applicable Nasdaq listing standards and the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and the
rules promulgated thereunder. The Board of Directors has also determined in its business
judgment that each of Robert P. Keller, Chairman, and Michelle L. Chicoine, are qualified as
audit committee financial experts within the meaning of applicable regulations of the Securities
and Exchange Commission. The Audit Committee met six times during fiscal 2004. The Audit
Committee has adopted a charter governing its mission, membership, duties and responsibilities;
a copy of the Charter for the Audit Committee can be accessed electronically at the Company’s
website at www.pennichuck.com.

Compensation and Benefits Committee

The Compensation and Benefits Committee, comprised of Messrs. Clough, Keller, Kreick
and Bolander, met six times during 2004. The Compensation and Benefits Committee is charged
generally (1) to establish the Company’s executive compensation program, (ii) to monitor the
operation of the Company's qualified noncontributory, defined benefit pension plan and the
Company's 401k Savings Plan for Employees and the performance of the trustee and
administrator of these Plans, and to recommend changes to the Board, as and when appropriate,
and (ii1) to administer the Company's 1995 and 2000 Stock Option Plans. The Board of
Directors has determined in its business judgment that each of Messrs. Clough, Keller and



Bolander are independent under the applicable Nasdaq listing standards and the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act and the rules promulgated thereunder.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

With respect to John Kreick, who served as interim Chief Executive Officer of the
Company for a portion of fiscal 2003 and thus does not satisfy the express independence
standards set forth in such rules and regulations, the Board determined, in accordance with such
rules and regulations and in its business judgment, that in view of the exceptional circumstances
surrounding his service as an employee, his continued membership on the Compensation and
Benefits Committee is in the best interests of the shareholders and the Company.

Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee

The Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee, comprised of Mr. Bellavance, Ms.
Chicoine and Ms. O’Neill, met six times during 2004. The Nominating Committee is charged
generally with identifying individuals qualified to become members of the Board of Directors
and recommending to the Board the director nominees for election at the next annual meeting of
shareholders and/or for interim director appointments to the Board. The Committee also
recommends to the Board the director candidates for each committee of the Board of Directors
for appointment by the Board. The Board of Directors has determined in its business judgment
that each of the members of the Nominating Committee is independent under the applicable
Nasdagq listing standards and the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and the rules promulgated thereunder. The
Nominating Committee has adopted a Charter governing its mission, membership and duties and
responsibilities; a copy of the Charter for the Nominating Committee can be accessed
electronically at the Company’s website at www.pennichuck.com.

The Nominating Committee will consider nominees recommended by Company
shareholders provided that the recommendations are made in accordance with the procedures set
forth herein. In addition to considering candidates suggested by shareholders, the Nominating
Committee considers candidates recommended by current directors, Company officers,
employees and others. The Nominating Committee screens all candidates in the same manner
regardless of the source of the recommendation. A shareholder who wishes to recommend a
prospective nominee for the Board should notify the Company’s Secretary or any member of the
Nominating Committee, in writing at the Company’s mailing address, with the name of the
recommended candidate for Director together with whatever supporting material the shareholder
considers appropriate. The Nominating Committee will consider whether to nominate such
person in accordance with criteria set forth in the Charter, including:

. the potential nominee’s experience;

. the independence of the potential nominee under applicable law and regulations;

. the ability of the potential nominee to represent the interests of the shareholders of
the Company;

. the potential nominee’s integrity, commitment and judgment;

. the potential nominee’s availability to dedicate time and energy to the

performance of his or her duties, taking into account the number of other boards




he or she sits on in the context of the needs of the Board of Directors and the

Company;

. the extent to which the potential nominee contributes to the overall expertise and
skills appropriate for the Board of Directors; and

. such other factors relative to the overall composition of the Board as the

Committee shall determine to be relevant at the time.
Contacting the Board of Directors

Any shareholder who desires to contact Pennichuck’s Chairman or the other members of
the Board of Directors may do so by writing to: Board of Directors, Pennichuck Corporation,
25 Manchester Street, Merrimack, New Hampshire 03054. Communications received in writing
are distributed to the Chairman or other members of the Board as appropriate depending on the
facts and circumstances outlined in the communication received. For example, if any complaints
regarding accounting or auditing matters are received, they will be forwarded to the Chairman of
the Audit Committee for review.

GENERAL DISCLOSURES
Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners
To the best knowledge of Pennichuck, based solely upon a filing made with the Securities
and Exchange Commission, the following is the only person(s) or entity to beneficially own

more than 5% of the outstanding shares of our common stock as of December 31, 2004:

Name and Address of Amount and Nature of % Common Stock
Beneficial Owner Beneficial Ownership Outstanding (2)

Banknorth Investment (1) 125,052 5.2%
Management Group

P.O. Box 2499

West Brattleboro, Vermont

05303-2499

(1) The Banknorth Investment Management Group claims sole power to vote or to direct the vote over 43,850
shares; shared power to vote or to direct the vote over 81,202 shares; sole power to dispose or to direct the
disposition of 59,141 shares; and shared power to dispose or to direct the disposition of 65,911 shares.

(2) Calculation of percentage is based upon a total of 2,413,617 shares outstanding and entitled to vote at December
31, 2004.




Security Ownership of Management

To the best knowledge of Pennichuck, the following table sets forth information as of
March 24, 2005 with respect to outstanding shares of our common stock beneficially owned by
each nominee and Director, the executive officers named in the Executive Compensation table
below, and by all nominees, Directors and executive officers as a group:

Amount and % of Common
Nature of Stock Out-
Beneficial standing (if
Name of Beneficial Owner Ownership(1)(3) more than 1%)(2)
Joseph A. Bellavance (3) 11,692 -
Steven F. Bolander -—
Michelle L. Chicoine ---
Charles E. Clough 24,353 -
Donald L. Correll (4) 30,100 1.2%
Stephen J. Densberger (3)(4) 36,589 1.4%
Bonalyn J. Hartley (3)(4) 18,693 -
Robert P. Keller ' 2,411 -
John R. Kreick (3) 740 -
Hannah M. McCarthy(3) 732 -
Martha E. O’Neill 12,200 -
Charles J. Staab(3)(4) 26,834 1.0%
Donald L. Ware (4) 24,560 -
All Directors and executive
officers as a group
(13 persons) (3)(4) 188,904 7.5%
)] Shares beneficially owned means shares over which a person exercises sole or shared voting or investment

power or shares of which a person has the right to acquire beneficial ownership within 60 days of
March 24, 2005. Unless otherwise noted, the individuals and group above have sole voting and investment
power with respect to shares beneficially owned.

(2) Calculation of percentages is based upon a total of 2,527,241 shares, which total includes shares out-
standing and entitled to vote of 2,415,147 plus 112,094 shares which have not been issued but which may
be issued within 60 days of March 24, 2005 to named persons or group having rights to exercise stock
options if such persons or group exercise such rights within such period.

3 The individuals and group noted above have sole voting and investment power with respect to shares
beneficially owned, except as stated in Note (4) below and except that voting and investment power is
shared as follows: Mr. Bellavance — 3,965 shares, Mr. Densberger — 9,589 shares, Ms. Hartley — 693
shares, Mr. Kreick - 740 shares, Ms, McCarthy — 732 shares and Mr. Staab — 3,168 shares.




4 Includes shares subject to unexercised stock options previously granted which officers have a right to
acquire within 60 days of March 24, 2005. Mr. Correll holds options to acquire 30,000 shares, Mr.
Densberger holds options to acquire 24,000 shares, Ms. Hartley holds options to acquire 18,000 shares, Mr.
Staab holds options to acquire 17,000 shares, and Mr. Ware holds options to acquire 23,094 shares.

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

General

Our Board of Directors is divided into three classes, each class serving for three years, with
one class being elected each year. Our Bylaws give the Board of Directors the discretion to set
from time to time the number of directors constituting the entire Board, provided that the
Company has at least three and not more than thirteen directors. The Board has determined that
the Board shall consist of nine directors, the number now serving.

Director Charles Clough has informed the Board of Directors that he will retire as of the
date of the Annual Meeting. Our Bylaws authorize the Board to appoint a person to fill the
vacancy that will be created by Mr. Clough’s retirement. The Board expects that it will fill the
vacancy during the next year. The term of a Director appointed by the Board expires at the next
annual meeting of shareholders following such appointment. The Board intends to appoint Mr.
Clough to the non-voting position of Senior Director, which is established by our Bylaws.

The Board has nominated Donald L. Correll and Hannah M. McCarthy, each an
incumbent director, for election to three-year terms expiring at the Annual Meeting of
Shareholders in 2008.

The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR the election of the two nominees as
Directors of the Company.

Information as to Nominees and Continuing Directors

Unless otherwise directed in the proxy, each proxy executed and returned by a shareholder
will be voted FOR the election of the two nominees. If any person named as nominee should be
unable or unwilling to stand for election at the time of the Annual Meeting, the proxies will
nominate and vote for a replacement nominee or nominees recommended by the Board of
Directors. All nominees have indicated to the Company their willingness to be nominated as
Directors and to serve as Directors if elected. At this time, the Board of Directors knows of no
reason why any of the nominees listed below would not be able to serve as a Director if elected.

The following table sets forth information concerning the persons nominated to serve on
the Board of Directors and concerning the other Directors continuing in office beyond the
Annual Meeting,




Director Year Present Position

of Company Term Will With
Nominees (1) Age Since Expire Company
Donald L. Correll 54 2003 2005 President and
Chief Executive
Officer
Hannah M. McCarthy 58 1994 2005 ---
Continuing Directors (1)
Joseph A. Bellavance 65 1983 2006 ---
Steven F. Bolander 60 2004 2006 -—
Robert P. Keller 67 1983 2006
Michelle L. Chicoine 49 2004 2007 ---
John R. Kreick 60 1998 2007 Chairman
Martha E. O’Neill 47 1998 2007 ---
(1) All nominees and continuing Directors are also Directors of the Company's wholly owned subsidiaries,

Pennichuck Water Works, Inc. and The Southwood Corporation. Mr. Correll is also a director of
Pennichuck Water Service Corporation, Pennichuck East Utility, Inc. and Pittsfield Aqueduct Company,
Inc.

The business experience of each of the above nominees, continuing Directors and of the
executive officers of the Company during the last five years, and certain other pertinent
information, is as follows:

Nominees for Election at this Annual Meeting

Donald L. Correll - Mr. Correll was appointed President and Chief Executive Officer of
Pennichuck Corporation in August 2003. He received his Bachelor of Science degree from The
Pennsylvania State University and a Masters in Business Administration degree from New York
University Graduate School of Business. Mr. Correll served from 1991 to 2001 as Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer and President of United Water Resources, then one of the largest
investor owned water utilities in the United States, until its sale to Suez. He currently serves as a
Director of Interchange Financial Services Corporation and a Commissioner of the New Jersey
Water Supply Authority.

Hannah M. McCarthy - Ms. McCarthy is President of Daniel Webster College in
Nashua, New Hampshire, a position that she has held since 1980. She earned her B.A. at
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Simmons College, and has done graduate work at Rivier College and New Hampshire College.
Ms. McCarthy serves as a Director of the New Hampshire Post-Secondary Education
Commission; the New Hampshire College and University Council; the Boys & Girls Club of
Nashua; and, the New Hampshire Charitable Foundation.

Directors with Terms Expiring in 2006

Joseph A. Bellavance - Mr. Bellavance 1s President of Bellavance Beverage Company,
Inc. and President of Bellavance Realty Corporation, both of Nashua. He is also a joint
owner/manager of PROSIT, LLC, which is principally involved with the ownership and
management of real estate. Mr. Bellavance received his Bachelor of Science degree in Business
Administration from the University of New Hampshire. He is a Director of the New Hampshire
Wholesale Beverage Association, "New Hampshire The Beautiful," and a member of the
American Legion and the Nashua Rotary Club.

Steven F. Bolander - Mr. Bolander is Dean of the University of New Hampshire’s
Whittemore School of Business and Economics, a position he has held since July 2000. He
holds a Doctor of Business Administration degree from Kent State University, a Master of
Business Administration degree from the University of Colorado, and a Bachelor of Science in
Chemistry degree from lowa Wesleyan College. Mr. Bolander was previously affiliated with
Colorado State University and Baldwin-Wallace College.

Robert P. Keller - Mr. Keller is a Certified Public Accountant. In November 2003, he
became managing director of Triumph Investment Fund, LP (a community bank private equity
fund) located in Bedford, New Hampshire. From March 2002 until May 2003, he was Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of InStar Services Group, Inc. (a nationwide provider of insurance
restorations and reconstruction services), headquartered in Fort Worth, Texas. From June 1995 to
June 2001, he served as President and Chief Executive Officer of Dartmouth Capital Group, Inc.
and President and Chief Executive Officer of Eldorado Bancshares, Inc. (bank holding
companies); and as Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer of Eldorado Bank of
Laguna Hills, California and Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Antelope Valley Bank of
Lancaster, California. In addition, since September 2002 he has served as Chairman of the
Board of Directors of Security Business Bank of San Diego.

Directors with Terms Expiring in 2007

Michelle L. Chicoine - Ms. Chicoine is the Chief Financial Officer at St. Paul’s School,
a private preparatory high school located in Concord, New Hampshire. She is a graduate of the
University of Rhode Island and a Certified Public Accountant. She holds a Master of Business
Administration Degree from Southermn New Hampshire University. Ms. Chicoine recently served
as Executive Vice President and Director of EnergyNorth, Inc.; she also served as President and
Chief Operating Officer of EnergyNorth Natural Gas, Inc. and as Vice Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of EnergyNorth Propane, Inc. Ms. Chicoine is a former Trustee of the
University System of New Hampshire, and has served as the President of the New Hampshire
Society of Certified Public Accountants and the Chairman of the Greater Manchester Family
YMCA.
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John R. Kreick — Dr. Kreick served as interim Chief Executive Officer of the Company
from April 2, 2003 until August 4, 2003. He previously served as President of Sanders
Associates and as a Vice President of the Lockheed Martin Corporation from January 1988 until
March 1998. Dr. Kreick received his Bachelor of Science degree in physics from the University
of Michigan in 1965. As a Rackman graduate fellow, he worked at the University’s Space
Physics Research Laboratory and received his Masters of Science degree in physics in 1966. He
received his Ph.D. in theoretical physics from the University of Michigan in 1969 and he holds
eight patents in infrared and electro-optical technology. Dr. Kreick is Director of EMS
Technology; a Director of Navigator Technology Ventures; a Trustee of Rivier College; and a
Trustee of Southern New Hampshire Regional Medical Center. He has also served on numerous
Department of Defense panels and committees. He has been the Chairman of the Board of
Draper Labs since October 2001. In 1993, Dr. Kreick received the Electronic Warfare
Association’s highest award — the Gold Medal of Electronic Warfare and is a recipient of
Aviation Week magazine’s Aerospace Laurels Award for his long-term contributions to
electronic warfare.

Martha E. O’Neill — Ms. O’Neill has been practicing as an attorney with the law firm of
Clancy & O’Neill, P. A. in Nashua since 1982. She is a graduate of Wellesley College and
Georgetown University Law Center. Ms. O’Neill serves on the Rivier College Board of Trustees,
Mary A. Sweeney Home Board of Trustees, Charles H. Nutt Surgical Hospital Board, the Boys
& Girls Club of Greater Nashua, Inc. Charitable Foundation Board of Trustees, the Currier
Museum of Art Advisory Council and the Southern New Hampshire Medical Center Board of
Trustees.

Executive Officers

Stephen J. Densberger - Mr. Densberger is Executive Vice President of the Company and
has been affiliated with the Company since 1974. Mr. Densberger was the Treasurer of the
Company from 1978 to 1983. Mr. Densberger serves as President and a director of Pennichuck
Water Service Corporation. He is also a director of Pittsfield Aqueduct Company, Inc. and of
Pennichuck East Utility, Inc. Mr. Densberger is a graduate of Assumption College and he holds
a Master of Business Administration degree from the Whittemore School of Business and
Economics of the University of New Hampshire. He is an active member and past President of
the New Hampshire Water Works Association and past President of the New England Water
Works Association. He is a Councilor on the N. H. Department of Environmental Services
Water Council and a former alderman in the City of Nashua. Mr. Densberger is 54 years old.

Michael C.J. Fallon - Mr. Fallon joined Southwood Corporation as its President in
January 2005. Mr. Fallon has over 30 years of experience in the real estate industry and most
recently operated Fallon and Associates, LLC, a Hancock, New Hampshire based consulting
organization specializing in distressed and surplus property redevelopments and strategic asset
management for corporate and institutional portfolios. In 2003 and 2004, Mr. Fallon was a
consultant to Southwood. Mr. Fallon served as President of United Properties Group, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of United Water Resources, from 1993 to 2001, and served as Vice President
of the United Water Management and Service Company, also a wholly owned subsidiary of
United Water Resources, from 1998 to 2001. As an officer of United Properties Group and
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United Water Management and Service Company, Mr. Fallon reported to Mr. Correll, who was
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and President of United Water Resources. Prior to joining
United Properties, Mr. Fallon was Senior Vice President of Cushman and Wakefield, Inc., in
New York City, where he was responsible for the firm’s national corporate consulting practice as
well as managing the company’s Realty Advisor group. Mr. Fallon is 58 years old.

Bonalyn J. Hartley - Ms. Hartley has been with the Company since 1979 and was
elected Vice President-Administration of the Company, Pennichuck Water Works, Inc. and The
Southwood Corporation in 2001. Formerly, she served as Vice President — Controller for the
Company and its subsidiaries. She is also Vice President - Administration and a director of
Pennichuck Water Service Corporation, Pennichuck East Utility, Inc. and Pittsfield Aqueduct
Company, Inc. She 1s a graduate of Rivier College with a Bachelor of Science Degree in
Business Management. Ms. Hartley serves as a Trustee and Chairman of the Southern New
Hampshire Medical Center and as a Trustee and Chairman of the Community Hospice Home
Endowment Committee. She is also a director of the New England Chapter of the National
Association of Water Companies and a member of the New England Water Works Association.
She is a joint owner of Lakeview Antique Center, LLC. Ms. Hartley is 60 years old.

William D. Patterson - Mr. Patterson was appointed Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer of the Company and its subsidiaries in January 2005. Mr. Patterson earned his Bachelor
of Science Degree in Civil Engineering from Princeton University and an MBA in Finance and
Accounting from the University of Chicago Graduate School of Business in 1978. Most
recently, he founded and served as President of EnSTAR Management Corporation and also
served as Executive Advisor to Concentric Energy Advisors in Marlborough, MA, both firms
providing independent corporate finance advisory and consulting services to utility and energy
companies. He is the past CFO of Enermetrix, a Maynard, MA based early stage software
company focused in the retail energy industry, and previously served for over 15 years as a
senior investment banker at E.F. Hutton, Shearson Lehman and Smith Barney, where he headed
the firm's corporate finance practice for utility companies. Mr. Patterson is 50 years old.

Donald L. Ware - Mr. Ware is Vice President of Engineering for the Company and
Senior Vice President, Operations and Chief Engineer for Pennichuck Water Works, Inc. He is
also a Vice President and director of Pennichuck Water Service Corporation, Pennichuck East
Utility, Inc. and Pittsfield Aqueduct Company, Inc. He joined the Company in April 1995. Prior
to joining the Company, Mr. Ware was the general manager of the Augusta Water District in
Augusta, Maine. He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Civil Engineering from Bucknell
University and is a licensed professional engineer in New Hampshire, Massachusetts and Maine.
He also holds a Masters in Business Administration from the Whittemore Business School at the
University of New Hampshire. Mr. Ware is 48 years old.
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Director Attendance

During the year ended December 31, 2004, the Board of Directors of the Company held
ten meetings. Each Director nominee and continuing Director attended 75% or more of the total
of the number of meetings of the Board of Directors and the number of meetings of all
committees of the Board on which he or she served. As a general matter, members of the Board
of Directors are expected to attend the Company’s annual meetings. All members of the Board
and nominees for election to the Board were present at Pennichuck’s 2004 annual meeting of
shareholders.

Compensation of Directors

Each of the non-executive members of the Board of Directors of the Company currently
receives a fee of $8,000 annually. Additionally, each non-executive Board member receives
$600 for each Board and committee meeting they attend in person and $250 for each Board and
committee meeting they attend by telephone participation. Each Committee chairman also
receives an additional $1,500 annually. The Chairman of the Board of Directors receives an
additional fee of $4,000 annually. Directors who are also salaried employees of the Company do
not receive any separate compensation for services as a Director of the Company or of its
subsidiaries.

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The principal purposes of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board of Directors in
fulfilling its oversight responsibilities, relating to:

+  the integrity of the Company’s financial statements,

. the Company’s compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
* the independent auditor’s qualifications and independence, and

. the performance of the Company’s independent auditors.

The Board of Directors, in its business judgment, has determined that all members of the
Audit Committee, named below, are “independent” as required by applicable Nasdaq listing
standards and the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and the rules promulgated thereunder. The Audit
Committee acts under a written charter adopted and approved by the Board of Directors; the
Charter was amended and restated in March 2004.

The Audit Committee meets with management periodically to consider the adequacy of
the Company’s system of internal controls and the objectivity of its financial reporting. The
Committee discusses these matters with the Company’s independent auditors and with
appropriate Company financial personnel. The Audit Committee appoints the independent
auditors and reviews periodically their performance and independence from management.
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Management has primary responsibility for the preparation, presentation and integrity of
the Company’s financial statements and the overall reporting process, including the Company’s
system of internal controls.

The independent auditors audit the annual financial statements prepared by management,
express an opinion as to whether those financial statements fairly present the financial position,
results of operations and cash flows of the Company in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles, and discuss with the Audit Committee any issues they believe should be
raised with the Committee.

This year, the Committee reviewed the Company’s audited financial statements with
management, including a discussion of the quality of the accounting principles applied and
significant judgments made affecting those financial statements. Management has represented to
the Committee that the financial statements were prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. The Committee also met with PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, the
Company’s independent auditors for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004, to discuss the
firm’s judgment of the quality of those principles as applied. We have also discussed such
matters amongst the Committee members themselves.

The Committee has received and discussed with PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP the
written disclosure and the letter required by Independence Standards Board Standard No. 1
(Undependence Discussions with Audit Committees). These items relate to that firm’s
independence from the Company. The Committee has also discussed with
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP any matters required to be discussed by Statement on Auditing
Standards No. 61 (Communication with Audit Committees).

Based on these reviews and discussions, the Audit Committee recommended to the Board
of Directors that the audited financial statements be included in the Company’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004, for filing with the Securities and
Exchange Commission.

Robert P. Keller (Chairman)
Steven F. Bolander
Michelle L. Chicoine
Hannah M. McCarthy

The foregoing “Report of the Audit Committee” shall not be deemed incorporated by
reference by any general statement incorporating this Proxy Statement into any filing under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended,
except to the extent that the Company specifically incorporates this information by reference,
and shall not otherwise be deemed filed under such Acts.
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SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP
REPORTING COMPLIANCE

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires the Company's officers and
Directors, and beneficial owners of more than ten percent of the Company's common stock, to
file reports of ownership and changes in ownership of such common stock with the Securities
and Exchange Commission ("SEC"). Generally, these persons must file such reports at the time
they first become subject to Section 16(a) reporting, and thereafter following a change in
ownership, if any. Officers, Directors and such greater than ten percent shareholders are
required by SEC regulation to furnish the Company with copies of all Section 16(a) reports they
file. The Company is required by SEC regulation to identify in its proxy statement those
individuals for whom one of the referenced reports was not filed on a timely basis during the
most recent fiscal year or prior fiscal years.

To the Company's knowledge, based solely on a review of the copies of such reports
furnished to the Company and written representations from each of such persons that no other
reports were required, the Company believes that during the fiscal year ended December 31,

2004, all Section 16(a) filing requirements applicable to its officers, Directors and greater than
ten percent beneficial owners were complied with on a timely basis.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Summary of Cash and Certain Other Compensation

Executive Officers

The following table sets forth information for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2004,
2003 and 2002 concerning the compensation paid to the Chief Executive Officer and the other
executive officers ("Named Executive Officers") for services performed in all capacities.

-16 -




SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

Long-Term
Annual Compensation Compensation

Securities
Name and Principal Fiscal Year Underlying  All Other
Position End Dec 31 Salary Bonus (1) Other (2) Options (3) Compensation (4)
Donald L. Correll 2004 $250,000 3 0 $56,808 5,000 $14,670
President and Chief 2003 100,000 23,630 19,669 30,000 10,828
Executive Officer
Stephen J. Densberger, 2004 133,868 0 -- 3,500 6,337
Executive Vice 2003 131,346 0 -- 4,000 6,261
President 2002 124,999 0 - 2,500 5,809
Charles J. Staab, 2004 119,808 0 - 2,000 5,533
Vice President, 2003 120,960 0 - 2,500 5,430
Treasurer and Chief 2002 115,115 0 -- 2,500 5,271
Financial Officer
Bonalyn J. Hartley, 2004 111,176 0 - 2,500 4,213
Vice President, 2003 112,245 0 -- 2,000 4,245
Administration 2002 104,844 0 - 2,500 4,654
Donald L. Ware, 2004 133,154 0 -- 4,000 5,169
Senior Vice President, 2003 123,227 0 - 4,000 4,872
Operations 2002 106,900 0 - 2,500 4,423
(1) Bonus awards for services rendered during such year and paid in the following year.
(2) No information is given with respect to other compensation paid to or distributed in kind where such

compensation did not exceed the lesser of $50,000 or 10% of the total reported salary and bonus for the
named officer. Amounts shown represent perquisites provided to named executive officer valued at the
incremental cost to Pennichuck, which has been calculated for these purposes based on Pennichuck’s out of
pocket expenditures. For the fiscal years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, for Mr. Correll, pursuant to
his employment agreement, includes relocation assistance in the amounts of $36,492 and $16,859,

respectively.

3) In conjunction with the commencement of his employment with the Company in 2003, Mr. Correll

received a grant of 30,000 options to acquire shares of common stock. This option grant vests over a three-
year period, with one third or 10,000 options vesting at the end of calendar year 2003 and an additional one
third or 10,000 options vesting at the end of each calendar year thereafter.
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4 For the fiscal years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, for Mr. Correll includes (i) the cost to the
Company for the purchase of a term life insurance policy ($8,520 and $8,520) and (ii) Company
contributions to the Elective Savings Plan for Employees of Pennichuck Corporation ($6,150 and $2,308).
For fiscal years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, for Mr. Densberger includes (i) the
cost to the Company for the purchase of a term life insurance policy (82,321, $2,321 and $1,304) and (ii)
Company contributions to the Elective Savings Plan for Employees of Pennichuck Corporation (54,016,
$3,940 and $4,505). For fiscal years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, for Mr. Staab
includes (i) the cost to the Company for the purchase of a term life insurance policy ($1,870, $1,870 and
$1,261) and (ii) Company contributions to the Elective Savings Plan for Employees of Pennichuck
Corporation ($3,663, $3,560 and $4,010). For fiscal years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively, for Ms. Hartley includes (i) the cost to the Company for the purchase of a whole life insurance
policy (8878, $878 and $930) and (ii) Company contributions to the Elective Savings Plan for Employees
of Pennichuck Corporation ($3,335, $3,367 and $3,724). For fiscal years ended December 31, 2004, 2003
and 2002, respectively, for Mr. Ware includes (i) the cost to the Company for the purchase of a term life
insurance policy (51,175, $1,175 and $638) and (ii) Company contributions to the Elective Savings Plan for
Employees of Pennichuck Corporation ($3,994, $3,697 and $3,785).

Stock Option Grants During the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2004
The following table sets forth information concerning the grant of stock options to acquire
shares of the Company's common stock under the 2000 Stock Option Plan to the Chief Executive

Officer and the Named Executive Officers during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004.

Individual Grants (1)

Potential Realizable
Percent Value At Assumed
Number of of Total Annual Rates of
Securities Options Stock Price

Underlying Granted to Exercise Appreciation for

Options Employees Price Expiration Option Term (2)

Name Granted in Fiscal Year ($/Share) Date 5% 10%
Donald L. Correll 5,000 20% $28.32 Jan. 23, 2014 $89,051 $225,674
Stephen J. Densberger 3,500 14% $28.32 Jan. 23,2014 $62,336 $157,972
Charles J. Staab 2,000 8% $28.32 Jan. 23,2014 $35,621 $ 90,270
Bonalyn J. Hartley 2,500 10% $28.32 Jan. 23,2014 $44,526 $112,837
Donald L. Ware 4,000 16% $28.32 Jan, 23,2014 $71,241 $180,539

(1) The exercise price of the options granted is equal to the fair market value of the Company's common stock on
the date of grant. The options are exercisable on the date of the grant and expire ten years thereafter.

(2)  Potential realizable values are calculated on the assumption that the market value of the underlying stock
increases from the date of grant at an annualized rate of return of 5% and 10% compounded annually for the
ten-year term of the option and that the option is exercised and sold on the last day of its term for the
appreciated stock price.




Stock Option Exercises and Fiscal Year End Values

The following table sets forth information concerning the exercise of stock options by the
Chief Executive Officer and the named Executive Officers during the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2004, and the number and the fiscal year end value of unexercised options held by
the Chief Executive Officer and the Named Executive Officers at December 31, 2004. The value
realized on the shares acquired on exercise is the difference between the exercise price and the
fair market value on the date of exercise. The value of unexercised, in-the-money options at
December 31, 2004, is the difference between its exercise price and the fair market value of the
underlying stock on such date. These values have not been, and may never be, realized. The
underlying options have not been, and may never be, exercised; and actual gains, if any, on
exercise will depend on the value of Company common stock on the date of exercise.

Value of
Number Of Unexercised Unexercised In-the-Money

Shares Options At Fiscal Year End Options At Fiscal Year End (1)

Acquired Value
Name On Exercise Realized Exercisable Unexercisable Exercisable Unexercisable
Donald L. Correll - - 25,000 10,000 $40,000 $20,000
Stephen J. - - 20,000 -0- $54,940 -0-
Densberger
Charles J. Staab - - 17,000 -0- $54,940 -0-
Bonalyn J. Hartley - - 15,000 -0- $34,240 -0-
Donald L. Ware - - 18,594 -0- $35,213 -0-

(1)  The closing price of the Company's common stock as reported on the Nasdaq National Market System on
December 31, 2004 was $26.10 per share and is used in calculating the value of unexercised options.

Executive Officer Benefits

The Company’s executive officers are eligible to participate in benefit programs offered
to all salaried employees, including: qualified pension plan, 401(k) Elective Savings Plan
(including Company match), health and dental coverage, Company-paid term life insurance,
disability coverage and paid vacation. In addition, certain of the executive officers are provided
with either a leased or Company-owned automobile for business use. In connection with their
business duties, Messrs. Correll and Densberger are also provided with membership in a local
club. Severance benefits provided to Company executive officers listed in the Summary
Compensation Table are described below in the section entitled “Executive Agreements.”
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Pension Plan

The Company maintains a qualified, non-contributory defined-benefit pension plan for all
qualifying employees of the Company and its subsidiaries. In general, the pension plan provides
for monthly payments to or on behalf of each covered employee based upon such employee’s
career averaged annual compensation prior to retirement and the employee’s covered years of
service. Directors who are not employees are not eligible to participate in the plan. The pension
plan includes optional early retirement benefits, provided a participant has attained age 55 and
has completed ten or more years of covered service. Under the pension plan, the Company
makes an annual contribution for the benefit of eligible employees computed on an actuarial
basis. All contributions to the fund and expenses of administering the fund are paid by the
Company.

The following table shows the estimated annual benefits payable under the pension plan
for specified averaged career salaries and covered years of service. Benefits shown in the table
are computed on a straight life annuity basis and are not subject to any deduction for Social
Security or other offset amounts.

Annual Pension Benefit Based on Years of Service (1)

Estimated Annual Pension Benefit Based on Service of

Career Averaged

Salary S Years 10 Years 15 Years 20 Years 25 Years 30 Years
$ 60,000 $ 7,000 $14,000 $18,800 $23,300  $27,800 $32,700
80,000 9,300 18,700 24,900 31,000 37,300 43,700
100,000 11,700 23,500 31,200 38,900 46,700 54,700
120,000 14,000 28,000 37,300 46,900 56,100 65,400
140,000 16,300 32,700 43,700 54,500 65,100 75,300
160,000 18,700 37,300 49,700 61,700 73,000 83,500
180,000 21,000 42,000 55,500 67,900 79,700 91,500
200,000 23,300 46,700 60,000 73,200 86,400 99,600

(1) Calculation of Normal Retirement Benefit at age 65.

Years of service at December 31, 2004 and 2004 compensation covered by the pension
plan, for the Chief Executive Officer and the Named Executive Officers: Mr. Correll, 1 year,
$273,630; Mr. Densberger, 30 years, $133,868; Mr. Staab, 21 years, $119,808; Ms. Hartley, 26
years, $111,176; and Mr. Ware, 9 years, $133,154. Pursuant to the provisions of the pension
plan, these covered compensation figures represent total cash compensation received during
2004 (including salary plus bonus for services rendered during 2003) and therefore may differ
from the salary reported in the Cash Compensation Table set forth above.




Executive Agreements

Donald L. Correll. In August 2003, the Company and Donald L. Correll entered into an
Employment Agreement pursuant to which Mr. Correll presently serves as President and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company and its subsidiaries, Pennichuck Water Works, Inc.,
Pennichuck East Utility, Inc. and Pittsfield Aqueduct Company, Inc. Mr. Correll’s Employment
Agreement provides for an initial three-year term; commencing on the second anniversary
thereof, and each annual anniversary thereafter, this Agreement may be extended by the Board of
Directors for a subsequent two-year term. The Employment Agreement provides for the
payment of a base salary as well as participation in any bonus and incentive compensation, stock
option and employee benefit programs available to the Company’s executive officers, together
with life insurance in the amount of four (4) times his annual salary. Pursuant to the Agreement,
in connection with his business duties, the Company provides Mr. Correll with (i) a leased
automobile, and (i1) membership in a local club. Further, in lieu of medical insurance coverage
normally provided to the Company’s executive officers and given that Mr. Correll receives such
coverage from a previous employer, under the Agreement he also receives (a) a monthly
payment of $150 to compensate him for the premium due on his existing plan, (b) the amount of
any co-pay and deductible he may be required to pay under such plan, as well as (¢)
reimbursement for the cost of an annual physical examination. Pursuant to the Agreement, the
Company also provides Mr. Correll with (i) short term disability coverage encompassing up to
sixty percent (60%) of his then base salary for a period up to 26 weeks, as well as (i) long term
disability coverage encompassing up to sixty percent (60%) of his then base salary, subject to a
maximum benefit of six thousand dollars ($6,000) per month. In connection with
commencement of his employment pursuant to the Agreement, Mr. Correll (aa) received a grant
of non qualified options to acquire 30,000 shares of common stock under the Company’s stock
option plans, with an exercise price equal to the fair market value of the stock on the date of
grant, said options vesting in one third increments at the end of calendar year 2003 and each
calendar year end thereafter, and (bb) is also entitled to receive relocation assistance from the
Company in an amount not to exceed sixty thousand dollars ($60,000) on an after-tax cost basis.
See “Executive Compensation — Summary of Cash and Certain Other Compensation” above.

In the event the Company terminates Mr. Correll’s employment other than for “cause,”
he will be entitled to a severance payment equal to the greater of (i) his then current salary and
fringe benefits for the remaining term of the Agreement, or (ii) his then current salary and fringe
benefits for a twelve-month period. For purposes of Mr. Correll’s Agreement, “cause” would
exist if Mr. Correll is subject to a finding by the Board of Directors that (a) with respect to his
actions or failure to act concerning the Company and its affairs, he has been personally
dishonest, engaged in willful misconduct or fraud or breached a fiduciary duty, or (b) he has
intentionally failed to perform the duties reasonably assigned to him. In the event Mr. Correll’s
employment is terminated by the Company within twelve (12) months of an event constituting a
“change of control,” he will be entitled to a severance payment equal to the greater of (i) his then
current salary and fringe benefits for the remaining term of the Agreement, or (ii) his then
current salary and fringe benefits for a twenty-four (24) month period; in such case, all of his
outstanding stock options shall vest immediately. A “change of control” is defined as (i) an
acquisition by any individual, entity or group of beneficial ownership of 51% or more of the
voting power of the Company’s securities entitled to vote for the election of directors; (ii) a
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merger or consolidation which results in the Company’s then existing shareholders holding less
than 50% of the outstanding voting stock of the surviving corporation in the merger; (iii) a
change in the composition of a majority of the Company’s Board of Directors which is not
supported by the then current Board of Directors; or (iv) the sale or other transfer of all or
substantially all of the assets of the Company to a non-affiliated third party; provided however
that the sale, whether voluntary or pursuant to the exercise of the power of eminent domain, of
one or more of the Company’s water utilities only, but not of all of the assets of the Company or
its subsidiaries, does not constitute a change of control under this Agreement.

Charles J. Staab. Mr. Staab retired from employment with Pennichuck and resigned
from his positions as Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer of Pennichuck and its subsidiaries
effective as of January 31, 2005. Pursuant to an Agreement effective as of February 14, 2005,
Mr. Staab and Pennichuck agreed that: (1) he will be paid his regular salary through his last date
of employment, together with a payment for accrued and unused vacation time, minus all
appropriate withholdings and authorized deductions; (2) he will receive a lump sum severance
payment in the amount of $110,592.00, equivalent to forty-eight (48) weeks of current salary,
minus all appropriate state and federal withholdings and qualified contributions to the Elective
Savings Plan for Employees of Pennichuck Corporation; (3) Pennichuck will pay the cost of the
monthly premium for individual plan coverage for Mr. Staab under the group health plan that
Pennichuck provides for eligible retirees, and once he reaches ages 65 and is eligible for
Medicare, the cost of the monthly premium for individual Medicomp coverage up to the
“maximum allowable benefit” as that term is defined in Pennichuck’s Early Retirement Medical
Benefit Policy, as amended (the “early retirement benefit”); Pennichuck will pay the early
retirement benefit until the earlier of (i) Mr. Staab becoming ineligible under the Policy for
whatever reason, or (ii) Pennichuck ceasing to offer group health coverage to early retirees; (4)
Pennichuck will pay the cost of premiums for continuation coverage for Mr. Staab under
Pennichuck’s dental insurance plan, and for his eligible family members under the Pennichuck
group medical and dental insurance plans, both for the 12-month period immediately following
his last day of employment; (5) the Company will provide Mr. Staab with an outplacement
services program for a 6-month period following his last date of employment; and (6) Mr. Staab
will be allowed to exercise any outstanding options to acquire Pennichuck common stock for a
90 day period following his last date of employment.

In consideration for and as a material inducement to Pennichuck entering into the
Agreement, Mr. Staab: (a) executed a general release and discharge to Pennichuck and each of
its subsidiaries, affiliates, successors, assigns, directors, officers and employees from any and all
causes of actions, suits and/or claims for damages of any type arising or which may have existed
on or before the date he signed the Agreement; including, but not limited to rights under federal
or state laws prohibiting discrimination in employment including rights under the Federal Age
Discrimination in Employment Act; (b) agreed not to institute any lawsuit or claim against
Pennichuck or its related parties with respect to any cause of action or claim of any kind arising
or which may have existed on or before the date of the Agreement; (c) agreed to refrain from
making any disparaging or derogatory comments about Pennichuck or its related parties except
his right to provide information that is otherwise protected under federal and state statutes
including but not limited to the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002; (d) agreed to return all documents
and records relating to Pennichuck, except for certain computer and communications devices
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previously provided to him; (e) agreed not to disclose to anyone at any time any confidential or
proprietary information of Pennichuck, except that this provision is not intended to impair his
rights to provide information that is otherwise protected under federal and state statutes,
including but not limited to the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002; (f) agreed, during the 12-month
period immediately following the separation date, to cooperate and make himself available for
discussions and meetings with representatives of Pennichuck for up to 160 hours in order to
provide services relating to tax, regulatory, financing, transitional and related issues, as may be
requested, for which he will be paid on an hourly and/or daily rate for such services; and, (g)
agreed, during the 12-month period following his last date of employment, to cooperate with
Pennichuck and to make himself available as a witness for any legal or regulatory proceeding
involving Pennichuck or any of its officers and directors, for which he will receive an hourly rate
plus reasonable out-of-pocket expenses.

Change of Control Agreements. Messrs. Densberger and Ware, and Ms. Hartley are
each party to a Change of Control Agreement with the Company intended to ensure continuity in
the management of the Company in the event of a ‘change of control’ of the Company. Each
such agreement provides for a continuously renewing three-year term and for the payment of the
respective executive’s then current base salary and continuation of health and life insurance
benefits for a twelve month period upon the occurrence of both (a) a change of control and (b) a
termination of employment or substantial reduction or alteration in the executive’s responsibility,
authority or compensation for reasons other than good cause. For purposes of these agreements,
a change of control is deemed to have occurred if (i) any person or group acting in concert
acquires fifty-one percent (51%) or more of the Company’s voting power, (i) a merger or share
exchange occurs which results in the Company’s shareholders holding less than fifty percent
(50%) of the total voting power after such transaction, (iii) there is a change in the majority of
the Board of Directors of the Company other than by nominations approved by the then current
Board of Directors, or (iv) there shall be a sale or other transfer of all or substantially all of the
assets of the Company or its subsidiaries to a non-affiliated party.

Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions

The Company entered into a lease arrangement with HECOP III, LLC in April 2004 for
certain office space located in Merrimack, New Hampshire to serve as the Company’s
headquarters. The Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, the Southwood Corporation, holds a
fifty percent (50%) ownership interest in HECOP III, LLC; the remaining ownership interests are
held by John P. Stabile II, who is also the holder of ownership interests in several other joint
ventures with the Southwood Corporation. The terms of this lease arrangement were reviewed
and approved by the Company’s Audit Committee.
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Code of Ethics for Financial Professionals

The Company has adopted a Code of Ethics for Financial Professionals applicable to the
principal executive officer and all persons serving in a finance, accounting, treasury, tax or
investor relations role. The Code of Ethics sets forth standards designed to deter wrongdoing
and to promote honest and ethical conduct by such persons, including the avoidance of conflicts
of interest, protection of confidential information, and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations. A copy of the Code of Ethics for Financial Professionals is available at the
Company’s website, www.pennichuck.com.

Equity Compensation Plans

The following table summarizes information, as of December 31, 2004, relating to the
equity compensation plans of the Company pursuant to which equity securities of the Company
are authorized for issuance.

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION
Number of securities

remaining available for
future issuance under

Number of securities to Weighted-average equity compensation
be issued upon exercise exercise price of plans (excluding
of outstanding options, outstanding options, securities reflected in
warrants and rights warrants and rights column (a))
Plan category (a (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans 134,538 $24.43 116,601
approved by security
holders (1)
Equity compensation plans
not approved by security -0- - No express number set by
holders (2) plan (2)
Total 134,538 $24.43 116,601

) These plans are the Company’s 1995 Stock Option Plan and the 2000 Stock Option Plan.

(2) The Company adopted a Deferred Compensation Program for Directors of Pennichuck Corporation in
1987, as amended in 1997 (the “Plan”). The Plan enables directors to defer receipt of all or part of their
annual retainer and meeting fees until the individual ceases to be a director or upon age 70, if earlier.
Participating directors under the plan have the option of (1) deferring receipt of such fees, with interest
accruing thereon based on the Company’s average cost of money for its short term borrowings, or (2)
converting such fees on a semi-annual basis into common share equivalents based on the closing bid price
of the Company’s common stock on the conversion date, with dividends credited to the participant on such
unit share equivalents and similarly converted into additional common share equivalents. Upon termination
of the deferral period, participating directors receive a distribution consisting either of the full amount of
cash and interest accrued to his/her account or shares of restricted common stock of the Company equal to
the number of unit share equivalents so accumulated. No directors are presently participating in this Plan.
The Plan does not provide for a maximum number of shares of common stock that may be issued under the
Plan.
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REPORT OF THE COMPENSATION
AND BENEFITS COMMITTEE

General

The Compensation and Benefits Committee of the Board of Directors (the
“Compensation Committee”) is comprised of four members of the Board of Directors. The
Compensation Committee is responsible for establishing the Company’s executive compensation
program, including matters relating to the grant of options to purchase Company stock and any
performance-based compensation for Company executives, subject to the concurrence of the
Board of Directors. '

Compensation Philosophy

The Compensation Committee aims to ensure that the Company’s executive
compensation program enables the Company to attract, retain, motivate and reward the talented
executives it needs to advance the short- and long-term interests of shareholders and maintain a
leadership position within the water utility industry. The Committee retained independent
consultants in 2004 to advise them whether the total compensation opportunity available to
Company executives is competitive with the remuneration received by those in positions of
similar responsibilities in other comparable companies; the Committee also received such a
report regarding an assessment and comparison of the Company’s benefit plans.

The Compensation Committee’s intent is to motivate its senior executives to achieve the
Company’s goals of providing its customers with high quality, cost-effective, reliable water
services; managing the Company’s real estate and other water service related activities; and
providing the Company’s shareholders with a market-based return on their investment.

Toward that end, the compensation program:

*  Provides compensation levels that are competitive with those provided by
companies with which the Company may compete for executive talent.

*  Motivates senior executives to meet and exceed certain corporate financial goals and
to achieve the Company’s strategic business initiatives, and rewards them in the
form of incentive compensation for the Company’s achievements.

»  Creates a strong link between stockholder and financial performance in the form of
equity compensation for the Company’s executive officers.

Compensation Program

The compensation program for the Company’s executive officers is comprised of a base
salary, an annual incentive opportunity and a long-term equity incentive opportunity. Executive
officers may also participate in the Company’s Savings Plan for Employees and other benefit
plans generally available to all levels of salaried employees.
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Base Salary

The President, with the concurrence of the Compensation Committee, annually sets the
salary for each executive officer other than himself based on the assessment of that executive
officer’s responsibilities, performance and accomplishments over the prior years and the
established goals and objectives for that executive for the upcoming year.

The performance of each executive officer is reviewed annually. The Compensation
Committee reviews and approves all executive officer salary adjustments as recommended by the
President. The Compensation Committee reviews the President’s performance and establishes
his base salary.

Incentive Compensation

The Compensation Committee has established an annual incentive bonus program that
provides an opportunity to earn an annual cash incentive award when certain corporate financial
goals are achieved. Cash bonuses for executive officers are paid once a year in the year
following the fiscal year for which the stated goals were met. The Committee established an
incentive compensation goal for the Company's executive officers for the 2004 fiscal year based
on the achievement of certain earnings per share and return on equity in that year. None of the
executive officers of the Company received an incentive cash award for 2004 services because of
the Company's failure to achieve the established financial targets in fiscal 2004.

Equity-Based Program

The Company’s equity-based compensation program consists principally of stock options
that are granted from time to time under the Company’s stock option plans and are designed to
align management interests with those of the shareholders. The Committee bases grants of
equity-based awards on various factors, including each executive officer’s ability to contribute to
the Company’s future success and the other elements of such officer’s compensation. The
exercise price of stock options is equal to the fair market value of the stock when granted, and
will result in a gain for the executive only in the event of an appreciation in the stock price. The
Compensation Committee believes that stock options enable the Company to compete in the
marketplace for executive talent and further align the interests of executives with those of the
shareholders. Except as discussed below with respect to options granted to Mr. Correll upon
commencement of his employment, the Company’s stock options generally vest fully on the date
of grant, immediately tying the executive to the Company’s stock performance.

President’s Compensation

Mr. Correll became President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company in August
2003; his fiscal 2003 compensation was determined by his Employment Agreement. His
compensation for fiscal 2004 consists of a base salary, an incentive compensation bonus
opportunity, and equity compensation in the form of stock options. When determining the
components of Mr. Correll’s compensation for fiscal 2004, the Compensation Committee gave
consideration to his leadership and contributions to the Company’s management structure during
his initial months of employment, as well as the compensation paid to chief executive officers of
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other similarly sized publicly owned companies in comparable industries, taking into account his
accumulated years of experience in the water utility industry. Mr. Correll received a grant of non
qualified options to acquire 30,000 shares of common stock under the Company’s option plans in
connection with the commencement of his employment, with an exercise price based on the fair
market value of the stock on the date of grant; these options vest in three segments, with one
third or 10,000 options vesting at end of calendar year 2003, one third or 10,000 options vesting
at the end of calendar year 2004 and the final one third vesting at the end of calendar year 2005.
He received a grant of options to acquire 5,000 shares of common stock under the Company’s
option plans in January 2004, with an exercise price based on the fair market value of the stock
on the date of grant. Mr. Correll did not receive an incentive bonus for fiscal 2004 based on the
Company’s failure to achieve the financial targets established by the Compensation Committee,
both earnings per share and return on equity, for that year.

The Internal Revenue Code generally imposes a limitation on the deduction for federal
income tax purposes of compensation paid in any one year, subject to certain specified
exceptions. The Company’s policy is to have all compensation fully deductible. Given the level
of compensation paid to the Chief Executive Officer and the other executive officers named in
the Summary Compensation Table, the deduction limitation is presently inapplicable to the
Company. The Company will address this limitation if and when it becomes applicable to the
Company’s compensation program.

Resf)ectfully submitted,

Charles E. Clough (Chairman)
Steven F. Bolander

Robert P. Keller

John R. Kreick

The foregoing “Report of the Compensation and Benefits Committee” shall not be
deemed incorporated by reference by any general statement incorporating this Proxy Statement
into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
except to the extent that the Company specifically incorporates this information by reference,
and shall not otherwise be deemed filed under such Acts.

COMPARATIVE STOCK PERFORMANCE

The following graph provides a comparison of the yearly cumulative total shareholder
return on the common stock of the Company for the last five years with the yearly cumulative
total return on the Standard & Poor’s 500 Index and the average yearly cumulative total return of
an industry peer group over the same period, assuming a $100 investment on December 31,
1999. All of these cumulative returns are computed assuming the reinvestment of dividends at
the frequency with which dividends were paid during applicable years. Historical stock
performance during this period may not be indicative of future stock performance.

227 -




COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE FIVE YEAR TOTAL RETURN
$200
——
$100 < \\D/‘/a
$50
$o L] L L LJ L
Dec99 Dec00 Dec01 Dec02 Dec03 Dec04
—o=— PENNICHUCK CORP —0— S&P 500 INDEX —— PEER GROUP
Company Name / Index 12/31/99 12/31/00 12/31/01  12/31/02 12/31/03 12/31/04
Pennichuck Corporation 100 89.99 117.70 129.87 131.28 125.10
S&P 500 Index 100 90.90 80.09 62.39 80.29 89.03
Peer Group* 100 ' 115.40 129.50 123.98 158.31 182.30

*The Peer Group companies consist of American States Water Co., Aqua America Inc., Artesian Resources
Corporation, BIW Ltd., California Water Service Group, Connecticut Water Service Inc., Middlesex Water
Company, Pennichuck Corporation, STW Corporation, Southwest Water Company and The York Water Company.

RELATIONSHIP WITH INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS
Ratification of Appointment of Independent Accountants

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors has appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers
LLP as the independent accountants for the Company for the fiscal year ending December 31,
2003, subject to ratification of the shareholders. The Board of Directors recommends a vote
FOR the ratification of the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as independent
accountants for the Company to audit the books and accounts of the Company for the fiscal year
ending December 31, 2005. No determination has been made as to what action the Audit
Committee and the Board of Directors would take if the shareholders do not ratify the
appointment. Representatives of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, the Company’s independent
accountants for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004, are expected to be in attendance at the
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Annual Meeting and will have the opportunity to make a statement, should they desire to do so,
and are expected to be available to respond to questions.

Fees Paid to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

The following table sets forth the aggregate fees billed by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
for professional services rendered in connection with the audit of the Company’s annual
financial statements for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2003, and
fees billed for audit-related services, tax services and all other services rendered during those
periods.

Fee Category Fiscal 2004 Fiscal 2003
(in thousands)
Audit Fees (1) $ 119,500 $ 148,041

Audit-Related Fees ; - -

Tax Fees (2) 9,700
All Other Fees (3) ' 21,020 25,200
Total Fees ; $ 140,520 $ 182,941
(1) Audit Fees consist of fees billed for professional services rendered for the audit of the Company’s

consolidated financial statements and review of the interim consolidated financial statements included in
quarterly reports. For fiscal 2003, also includes fees billed for Section 404 compliance services required by
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and its implementing regulations.

2) Tax fees consist of fees billed for professional services related to federal tax planning and consultation.

(3) All other fees consist of fees for all products and services other than those reported above. For fiscal 2004,
includes fees, costs and expenses arising from refinancing activities. For fiscal 2003, includes fees, costs
and expenses arising from regulatory investigations.

All audit services, audit-related services, tax services and other services for fiscal 2004 were pre-
approved by the Audit Committee, which concluded that the provision of such services by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP was compatible with the maintenance of that firm’s independence
in the conduct of its auditing function.




ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K

The Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K is available without charge upon request
from our Investor Relations department at Pennichuck Corporation, 25 Manchester Street,
Merrimack, New Hampshire 03054, Attention: Investor Relations; Telephone No.

(603) 882-5191.

OTHER MATTERS

The Board of Directors knows of no business that will be presented for consideration at
the Annual Meeting other than those items set forth in this Proxy Statement. The enclosed proxy
confers upon each person entitled to vote the shares represented thereby discretionary authority
to vote such shares in accordance with his or her best judgment with respect to any other matters
which may properly be presented for action at the meeting.
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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For The Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2004
OR

(] TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

Commission File Number 0-18552

PENNICHUCK CORPORATION

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

New Hampshire 02-0177370
(State or other jurisdiction (LR.S. Employer
of incorporation or organization) Identification No.)
25 Manchester Street

Merrimack, New Hampshire 03054
(603) 882-5191

(Address and telephone number of principal executive offices)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act: None

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:
Common Stock, par value $1.00 per share
(Title of Class)
Preferred Stock Purchase Rights
(Title of Class)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or
15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the
registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90
days. Yes No []

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not
contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or
information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this
Form 10-K.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is an accelerated filer (as defined in Exchange Act Rule
12b-2): Yes [ ] No

The aggregate market value of the common stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant, based on the
closing sale price of the Company’s common stock on June 30, 2004, as reported on the Nasdaq National Market
was $62,729,906. For purposes of this calculation, the “affiliates” of the registrant include its directors and
executive officers. This determination of affiliate status is not necessarily a conclusive determination for any
other purpose.

The number of shares of the registrant’s common stock, $1 par value, outstanding as of March 24, 2005 was
2,415,147,
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Certain information required for Part III of this report is incorporated by reference to the registrant’s
definitive Proxy Statement for its 2005 annual meeting of the registrant’s shareholders filed with the
Commission.
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PARTI

Item 1. BUSINESS

o«

The terms “we,” “our,” “our company,” and ‘“us” refer, unless the context suggests otherwise, to
Pennichuck Corporation (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries, including Pennichuck Water Works, Inc.
(“Pennichuck”), Pennichuck East Utility, Inc. ( “Pennichuck East”), Pittsfield Aqueduct Company (“Pittsfield”),
Pennichuck Water Service Corporation (the “Service Corporation”) and The Southwood Corporation
(“Southwood” ).

Overview

We are engaged primarily in the collection, storage, treatment and distribution of potable water in southern
and central New Hampshire. We have three business segments: regulated water utilities, non-regulated water
management services and real estate development and investment. Water utility revernues constituted 85% of our
consolidated revenues in 2004. We are headquartered in Merrimack, New Hampshire, which is located
approximately 45 miles north of Boston, Massachusetts. Pennichuck Corporation was incorporated in New
Hampshire in 1983,

Our Strategy

Our mission is to be a leading supplier of quality, safe drinking water and water-related services in New
England and to achieve sustainable growth in our revenues and earnings by:

Investing in our regulated water utilities to maintain reliable, high quality service. To maintain our position
as a respected water supplier, we will make ongoing capital investments to meet or exceed the applicable
regulatory requirements and to maintain our infrastructure.

Acquiring additional small and mid-size water systems in New Hampshire and nearby portions of Muaine,
Massachusetts and Vermont. We believe there remain significant opportunities to grow our customer base in
New Hampshire and nearby portions of Maine, Massachusetts and Vermont. We estimate that there are a total of
1,850 water systems in those target areas. We expect that increasingly stringent regulation, the resulting increase
in capital requirements and the need for skilled operators will continue to cause system owners to consider
selling their water systems or outsourcing the management of their systems.

Expanding our water management business with a focus on servicing small and mid-size water systems,
where we believe we can leverage our capital resources as well as our operating and technical expertise. Service
Corporation’s strategy calls for a focus on segments in which it can provide high-quality service in a cost-
effective manner. These segments include small and mid-size municipal utilities, small systems such as
community water systems and non-transient, non-community water systems.

Developing our water management business by establishing one or more regional operations centers and
then targeting growth opportunities that may be serviced from those centers. In order to service new customers
effectively, we must have staff close to those customers. Accordingly, Service Corporation will develop its
business around geographic hubs — business centers of sufficient size to support at least a limited full time staff.
Building Service Corporation’s business in the surrounding area will be part of the staff’s job description. We
currently plan to pursue opportunities through five potential New Hampshire hubs that correspond roughly to
Nashua, coastal New Hampshire, Lakes Region, western New Hampshire and the Conway region as well as hubs
in the neighboring states of Maine, Massachusetts and Vermont.

Pursuing acquisitions of large water systems to expand into new geographic markets in the northeastern
United States. An important and new element of our strategic plan is to seek to expand into new geographic

markets in the northeastern United States by acquiring one or more large water systems. We expect to focus on
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systems that have sufficient scale to warrant establishing and maintaining a management presence in a new
market. These systems will likely be significantly larger than the small and mid-size water systems that we are
targeting nearby our existing service areas. We do not expect, however, that these larger systems will be
substantially larger than Pennichuck. We believe there are a number such large water systems in the northeastern
United States that are potentially attractive acquisition opportunities. We anticipate that this large water system
segment within the U.S. water utility industry will continue to consolidate, as system owners, whether investor-
owned utilities or municipalities, facing increasingly stringent regulation and the resulting increase in capital
requirements, consider acquisitions by other companies. The pace at which acquisition opportunities will arise is,
of course, unpredictable.

Water Utility Business

Overview. Three of our subsidiaries are water utilities engaged in the collection, storage, treatment,
distribution and sale of potable water in southern and central New Hampshire, subject to the jurisdiction of the
New Hampshire PUC:

*  Pennichuck Water Works, Inc. (“Pennichuck”), our principal subsidiary, was established in 1852 and
services the City of Nashua, New Hampshire and 10 surrounding New Hampshire municipalities west of
the Merrimack River with an estimated population of 110,000, almost 10% of the population of the
State of New Hampshire.;

* Pennichuck East Utility, Inc. (“Pennichuck East”) was organized in 1998 and serves 11 communities
most of which are located in southern and central New Hampshire east of the Merrimack River; and

» Pittsfield Aqueduct Company, Inc. (“Pittsfield”), which we acquired in 1998, serves customers in and
around Pittsfield, New Hampshire.

The City of Nashua is engaged in ongoing efforts that began in 2002 to acquire through an eminent domain
proceeding all or a significant portion of Pennichuck’s assets. The eminent domain proceeding and its effects on
us are described elsewhere in this report. See “—Ongoing Eminent Domain Proceeding”, “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and Item 3.

Service Areas. Pennichuck is franchised by the New Hampshire PUC to distribute water in the City of
Nashua, New Hampshire and in portions of the towns of Ambherst, Bedford, Derry, Epping, Hollis, Merrimack,
Milford, Plaistow and Salem, New Hampshire. Pennichuck’s transmission mains extend from Nashua into
portions of the surrounding towns of Amherst, Hudson, Merrimack and Milford. We also own and operate three
stand-alone systems in Milford. Its franchises in the remaining towns consist of stand-alone satellite water
systems. Pennichuck has no competition in its core franchise area, other than from customers using their own
wells. Pennichuck serves approximately 25,000 customers, and its 2004 revenues totaled $16.0 million.

Pennichuck East was organized in 1998 to acquire certain water utility assets from the Town of Hudson,
New Hampshire following the Town’s acquisition of those assets from an investor-owned water utility which
previously served Hudson and surrounding communities. Pennichuck East is franchised to distribute water in
portions of the New Hampshire towns of Litchfield, Pelham, Windham, Londonderry, Derry, Plaistow, Sandown,
Atkinson, Raymond, Bow and Hooksett, which are near the areas served by Pennichuck. Pennichuck East has no
commercial competition in its core franchise area. The water utility assets owned by Pennichuck East consist
principally of water transmission and distribution mains, hydrants, wells, pump stations and pumping equipment,
water services and meters, easements and certain tracts of land. Pennichuck East serves approximately 4,600
customers and annual water revenues were approximately $3.1 million for calendar year 2004.

Pittsfield was acquired by the Company in 1998 and serves approximately 640 customers in and around
Pittsfield, New Hampshire with annual water revenues of approximately $473,000 for calendar year 2004.
Pittsfield has no competition in its franchise area.




In January 2005, we entered into an agreement to acquire three water systems in the Lakes Region and
central part of New Hampshire: the Locke Lake water system in Barnstead, the Birch Hill water system in
Conway and the Sunrise Estates water system in Middleton, New Hampshire. We expect that the newly acquired
water systems will become part of our Pittsfield subsidiary. The acquisition, which is our largest since 1998, is
subject to completion of our due diligence and the approval of the New Hampshire PUC. We expect the
acquisition to close by the end of 2005.

Water Supply Facilities. Pennichuck’s principal properties are located in Nashua, New Hampshire, except
for portions of our watershed or buffer land which are located in the neighboring towns of Amherst, Merrimack
and Hollis, New Hampshire. In addition, Pennichuck owns four impounding dams which are situated on the
Nashua and Merrimack border.

The primary source of potable water for our core Pennichuck system is the Pennichuck Brook, Holt Pond,
Bowers Pond, Harris Pond and Supply Pond in the Nashua area that together can hold up to 500 million gallons
of water. We supplement that source during the summer months by pumping water from the adjacent Merrimack
River. Pennichuck can deliver up to 31.2 million gallons per day, or mgd, into the distribution system. By
comparison, Pennichuck’s peak month, which occurred in June 1999, had an average daily demand for that
month of 21.2 mgd.

We own a water treatment plant in Nashua that uses a combination of physical and chemical removal of
suspended solids and sand and carbon filtration to treat the water that Pennichuck supplies. The plant has a rated
capacity of 35.0 mgd. The plant’s capacity will not be affected by the upgrade described elsewhere in this
prospectus.

We own a raw water intake and pumping facility located on the Merrimack River in Merrimack, New
Hampshire. This supplemental water supply provides an additional source of water during summer periods and
will provide a long-term supply for Pennichuck’s service area. A permit from the Army Corps of Engineers that
has been extended through December 21, 2009 allows us to divert water from the Merrimack River. We may
divert up to 30.0 mgd only when the river level is above 91.2 feet. When the river level is below 91.2 feet,
Pennichuck may divert up to 20.0 mgd if a specified minimum flow is maintained and up to 12.0 mgd if flow
falls below this minimum. Our existing pumping facility on the Merrimack River is capable of providing up to
16.2 mgd, and as part of our 2005 to 2008 capital expenditures program discussed elsewhere in this prospectus,
we plan to install new pumps that will increase our pumping capacity to 21.0 mgd.

We also own approximately 672 acres of land located in Nashua and Merrimack, New Hampshire that are
held for watershed and reservoir purposes.

We own 11 water storage reservoirs having a total storage capacity of 20.7 million gallons, six of which are
located in Nashua, two in Ambherst, one in Bedford, one in Derry and one in Hollis, New Hampshire.

We own a 900,000 gallon per day gravel-packed well located in Amherst, New Hampshire.

The sources of supply for Pennichuck East consist of purchased water from the Manchester Water Works, a
well system owned by the Town of Hudson, in Litchfield, New Hampshire, and individual bedrock wells.
Pennichuck East has entered into long-term water supply agreements to obtain water from the Manchester Water
Works and Hudson. The terms of our Manchester supply contract are described elsewhere in this report. See
Item 7. We have an agreement with Hudson, which expires in 2017, that allows us to pump up to 283,500 gallons
per day from its wells at a cost equal to the variable cost of production or operation associated with the system as
a whole or any of its components. Hudson will charge us a higher rate for water pumped in excess of the 283,500
gallons allowed per day.




Pittsfield’s sole source of supply is Berry Pond, which holds approximately 97.8 million gallons. Pittsfield
owns the land surrounding Berry Pond, and it treats the water from this pond through a 0.5 mgd water filtration
plant located in Pittsfield, New Hampshire.

Water Distribution Facilities. As of December 31, 2004, the distribution facilities of the Company’s
regulated water companies consisted of, among other assets, the following:

Pennichuck Pennichuck East Pittsfield

Transmission & distribution mains (in miles) ............ 418 120 13
Service CONNECHionS . . ..ot i it 24,042 4,750 636
Hydrants . ......... i i 2,317 438 67

Capital Expenditures. The water utility business is capital intensive. We typically spend significant sums
each year for additions to or replacement of property, plant and equipment. During the 2005 to 2008 period, our
capital expenditures will be particularly large as we:

» upgrade Pennichuck’s Nashua water treatment plant to meet the requirements of the Interim Enhanced
Surface Water Treatment Rule discussed below and other upgrades intended to comply with current and
projected water quality requirements and allow for operating redundancy,

» undertake various water distribution, storage, supply, maintenance, rehabilitation and replacement
projects, and

» conduct a pilot project for a proposed radio-based meter reading system.

We estimate that our projected capital expenditures during the 2005 to 2008 period will total $54.3 million in
current dollars. By comparison, for the four year period 2001 to 2004, our capital expenditures were $33.1
million.

Regulation

New Hampshire PUC. The Company’s water utilities are regulated by the New Hampshire PUC with
respect to their water rates, financings and provision of service. New Hampshire law provides that utilities are
entitled to charge rates which permit them to earn a reasonable return on the cost of the property employed in
serving their customers, less accrued depreciation, contributed capital and deferred income taxes (“Rate Base”).
The cost of capital permanently employed by a utility in its utility business marks the minimum rate of return
which a utility is lawfully entitled to earn on its Rate Base. Capital expenditures associated with complying with
federal and state water quality standards have historically been recognized and approved by the New Hampshire
PUC for inclusion in our water rates, though there can be no assurance that the New Hampshire PUC will
approve future rate relief in a timely or sufficient manner to cover our capital expenditures.

Pennichuck’s water rates that were in effect during 2004 were based on a March 2002 New Hampshire PUC
order in which Pennichuck was granted an overall permanent rate relief of 14.43% based on an overall rate of
return of 8.58% and an approved rate base of approximately $43.1 million. In March 2005, we reached settlement
with the New Hampshire PUC staff on our requested rate relief for Pennichuck that we filed in May 2004. A
hearing on the settlement is scheduled for April 5, and we expect that the New Hampshire PUC will issue a final
written decision shortly thereafter. In September 2004, the New Hampshire PUC authorized an interim
annualized increase of $1.3 million effective retroactively for service rendered on and after June 1, 2004. The
settlement agreement, if approved by the New Hampshire PUC, will result in a final annualized rate relief of $1.7
million, also effective as of June 1, 2004. The settlement agreement did not stipulate the overall rate of return or
the approved Rate Base.

Pennichuck East is authorized an overall rate of return of 8.37% on an approved rate base of approximately
$7.5 million. Pennichuck East has not filed for rate relief since our 1998 acquisition of the utility. Pennichuck
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East is planning to file a request for rate relief during the second quarter of 2005. We do not expect a final
decision on the rate relief until early 2006.

Pittsfield is authorized to earn an overall rate of return of 8.42% on an approved rate base of approximately
$1.6 million.

Under New Hampshire law, the Company may not be acquired unless and until there is a final, non-
appealable order of the New Hampshire PUC approving the acquisition. The New Hampshire PUC may approve
an acquisition only if it determines that the acquisition will not have an adverse effect on rates, terms, service or
operation of the utilities and is lawful, proper and in the public interest.

Water Quality Regulation. The Company’s water utilities are subject to the water quality regulations issued
by the United States Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA™) and the New Hampshire Department of
Environmental Services (“DES”). The EPA is required to periodically set new maximum contaminant levels for
certain chemicals as required by the federal Safe Drinking Water Act. The quality of the Company’s water
utilities’ treated water currently meets or exceeds all current standards set by the EPA and the DES.

Pennichuck’s filtration plant in Nashua is impacted by the Interim Enhanced Surface Water Treatment Rule,
which established a new turbidity standard of 0.3 Nephelometric Turbidity Units or NTU. Turbidity is a measure
of sediment or foreign particles that are suspended in the water. Pennichuck has completed its evaluation of
alternatives to meet the new turbidity standard, and we expect it will complete the design of the modifications
required to its filtration plant by the end 2005.

The Merrimack River is nutrient-rich, which in the past, under certain environmental conditions, has caused
algae formation in our holding ponds. As a result, we did not meet the monthly standards for turbidity in August
2001. Since then, we have been in compliance with the turbidity standards. We expect that various planned
upgrades to our water treatment plant will allow us maintain compliance with the turbidity standards even if
similar environmental conditions occur again in the future.

Three of Pennichuck’s small community water systems have wells that produce water with arsenic levels in
excess of the new standard of 10 parts per billion. Pennichuck will be installing arsenic treatment systems at
these locations in 2005. Pennichuck’s and Pennichuck East’s remaining community water systems have wells
that produce water meeting the new arsenic standard.

Water Management Services

We complement our water utility business by providing non-regulated, water-related monitoring,
maintenance, testing and compliance reporting services for water systems for various towns, businesses and
residential communities primarily in southern and central New Hampshire. We conduct this business through our
subsidiary Pennichuck Water Service Corporation (“Service Corporation”). The communities in which Service
Corporation manages water systems are depicted on the map referenced on the inside front cover of this
prospectus.

Service Corporation activities include providing contract operations and maintenance, water testing and
billing services to municipalities and small, privately owned community water systems.

Municipalities. In 1998, Service Corporation entered into a long-term agreement with the Town of Hudson
to provide operations and maintenance contract services to the Town with respect to the water utility assets the
Town acquired from an investor-owned water utility. In September 2001, Service Corporation entered into a
long- term agreement with the Town of Salisbury, Massachusetts to perform similar operations and maintenance
services. During 2004, Service Corporation provided such services pursuant to 67 operating contracts.




Non-transient, non-community water systems. The DES has mandated water quality standards for non-
transient, non-community water systems — defined as public facilities such as schools, apartment and office
buildings accommodating more than 25 persons and served by a community well. There are an estimated 600
such systems in New Hampshire which will require the services of a certified water operator, such as Service
Corporation, in order to meet the mandates of the DES. Accordingly, Service Corporation is actively pursuing
new contracts under which it would serve as a certified water operator and provide various water-related
monitoring, maintenance, testing and compliance reporting services for these systems in New Hampshire.

Competition. In marketing its services to municipalities, Service Corporation must address competition from
incumbent service providers, including municipal employees, and a reluctance by municipalities to outsource
water management to an investor-owned company. For contracts with nontransient, non-community water
systems, Service Corporation competes primarily with engineering firms who design and build these systems.

Real Estate Development and Investment

Our subsidiary The Southwood Corporation (“Southwood”) is actively engaged in real estate planning,
development and management of residential, commercial, industrial and retail properties. We originally
organized Southwood to develop approximately 1,490 acres of land in Nashua and Merrimack, New Hampshire
that Pennichuck formerly held for watershed protection. In 1983 Pennichuck transferred most of that land to
Southwood and the balance to the Company. Since 1983, Southwood has sold and/or contributed to joint
ventures over 30 land projects aggregating 1,019 acres, with gross proceeds of $26.5 million.

Undeveloped Land. Southwood and the Company collectively own several parcels of developable land in
Nashua and Merrimack, New Hampshire, totalling approximately 580 acres. The portfolio is comprised of 12
separate parcels ranging in size from 10.5 acres to 102 acres. Three parcels, aggregating 92 acres, are located
within the City of Nashua and the remaining 9 parcels, aggregating 490 acres, are located within Merrimack. The
entire portfolio of land held for future development is classified under “current use” status, resulting in a tax
assessment that is based on the property’s actual use and not its highest or best use.

During the next several years, Southwood expects to pursue the permitting and other land use approvals
necessary to realize the value of the remaining 580 acres. It will undertake those efforts either alone or in concert
with others. It may also reinvest the proceeds from the sale of one or more parcels in other income-producing real
estate in order to defer the recognition of taxes.

Developed Land and Real Estate Investments. Of the land originally transferred from Pennichuck,
Southwood contributed various parcels to four joint ventures to develop the Heron Cove Office Park a
3-building, 147,000 square foot, multi-tenant office project in Merrimack, New Hampshire. Southwood has a
50% ownership interest in each of those joint ventures, which are sometimes referred to in this prospectus as
HECOP I-IV. HECOP I, II and III own commercial office buildings. HECOP IV owns a nearby 9.1 acre parcel
that has been approved for the construction of commercial office space. The managing partner of the HECOP
joint ventures is John P. Stabile II, a local developer with whom Southwood has participated in four residential
joint ventures during the past 10 years.

Southwood’s investment in one or more joint ventures may be jeopardized if the debt financing secured by
the properties of those joint ventures cannot be refinanced on acceptable terms. For example, Southwood has
pledged its investment in two joint ventures to secure $3.0 million of mortgage indebtedness that matures in June
2007. Southwood’s investment in those joint ventures had a carrying value of $650,000 as of December 31, 2004.

The typical term of a lease for commercial office space in one of Southwood’s existing joint venture
properties is between three and seven years. The combined vacancy rate for the Southwood joint venture projects
was 12% as of March 1, 2005.




Since 1988, Southwood had been involved in the planning and development of Southwood Corporate Park,
a 65-acre commercially zoned land parcel located in Nashua, New Hampshire. From 1988 through 2001,
Southwood sold four lots totaling 25 acres in the Corporate Park. In January 2002, Southwood sold the remaining
40 acres to Winstanley Enterprises, Inc. (“Winstanley”), a regional real estate developer, under the terms of an
option agreement between Southwood and Winstanley. Under that 1995 agreement, Winstanley paid to
Southwood an option fee each year equal to the annual carrying costs associated with that land.

In January 2003, Southwood sold approximately 67 acres to Bowers Landing of Merrimack II, LLC. At the
closing on January 15, 2003, Southwood received $260,000 in cash and a promissory note in the amount of
$1,224,000. The note was scheduled to mature on October 16, 2005, but at the borrower’s election, was repaid in
full on October 15, 2004.

On January 3, 2005, Southwood completed the sale of a 58 acre parcel of land that was first placed under
contract in 2001. The purchase price was $570,000.

Financial Information About Industry Segments

Our business segment data for the latest three years is presented in “Note 12 — Business Segment
Information” in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements included in this prospectus.

Properties

We own a building in Nashua which serves as an operations center and storage facility for our construction
and maintenance activities.

In April 2004, Pennichuck entered into a long-term lease arrangement with HECOP III for approximately
13,000 square feet of office space located in Merrimack, New Hampshire which serves as our headquarters.
Southwood and John P. Stabile II each own a 50% interest in HECOP II1.

Our properties used in our water utility business are described elsewhere in this prospectus. See “—Water
Utility Business,” above.

Our properties used in our real estate business are primarily described elsewhere in this prospectus. See
“—Real Estate Development and Investment,” above.

Southwood also has a 60% ownership in Westwood Park LLC, a consolidated joint venture formed in 1997
to develop a tract of land in northwest Nashua. In 2001 and 2002, Westwood sold three substantial parcels of
land for an aggregate sales price of approximately $7.5 million. Westwood’s remaining holdings are comprised
of two parcels of land aggregating approximately 52 acres, which were retained from such sales for potential use
as a potable water wellfield and distribution site and are not likely usable for conventional development. There is
no plan to sell either parcel.

Except as noted in “Note 3 — Debt” in the accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements,
there are no mortgages or encumbrances on our properties.

Employees

We employ 88 full-time employees and officers, nearly all of whom are Pennichuck employees. Of these,
there are 48 management and clerical employees who are non-union. The remaining employees are members of
the United Steelworkers Union. The current union contract, which was re-negotiated in February 2002, expires in
February 2007. We believe that our employee relations are satisfactory.




Ongoing Eminent Domain Proceeding

Overview. The City of Nashua is engaged in ongoing efforts that began in 2002 to acquire all or a significant
portion of Pennichuck’s assets through an eminent domain proceeding under New Hampshire Revised Statutes
Annotated Chapter 38. Whether the City will ultimately be permitted to acquire our assets and, if so, the
compensation that the City would have to pay us for those assets are highly uncertain and will likely involve
protracted proceedings before the New Hampshire PUC. New Hampshire law does not require that our board of
directors or shareholders ratify or approve any such forced sale of assets or the compensation that Pennichuck
would receive if the City proceeds with the taking after approval by the New Hampshire PUC. We have
vigorously opposed the City’s efforts to acquire our assets by eminent domain and intend to continue to do so.
Our eminent domain-related expenses have been, and are expected to continue to be, significant.

Background. We entered into an agreement in April 2002 to be acquired in a merger with Aqua America
Inc. (formerly known as Philadelphia Suburban Corporation). Our shareholders would have received, based upon
the value of Aqua America shares at the time the merger was announced, 1.387 shares of Aqua America for each
of our shares, representing a value per share of $33.00. In February 2003, before we submitted the merger to our
shareholders, we and Aqua America agreed to abandon the proposed transaction because of actions taken by the
City of Nashua to acquire our assets by eminent domain.

Nashua’s Initiation of Eminent Domain Proceedings. Nashua’s Mayor stated his opposition to our proposed
merger with Aqua America almost immediately after we announced it. In November 2002, the Nashua Board of
Aldermen adopted a formal resolution to hold a City-wide referendum to approve an eminent domain proceeding
or other acquisition of all or a portion of Pennichuck’s water works system serving the residents of Nashua and
others. In January 2003, Nashua residents approved that referendum.

In November 2003, the City of Nashua made a proposal to purchase all of our assets for a purchase price of
$121 million. The offer was subject to various conditions, including the City’s completion of a municipal bond
offering to fund the purchase price. The City claimed that its proposal exceeded by $15 million the approximate
value that our shareholders would have received under the proposed Aqua America merger at the time that
transaction was first announced. The City asserted that the difference would offset the corporate taxes that
Pennichuck would incur in a sale of assets to the City. In December 2003, our board of directors unanimously
rejected the City’s proposal. At that time, we publicly stated that our board had concluded that the City’s
proposal was inadequate and not in the best interests of our shareholders, significantly underestimated the value
of our assets and failed to recognize both the underlying value of our shares and the potential tax liabilities that
would result from the proposed transaction. We also stated that we believed that the City’s proposal failed to
make allowances for assuming our long-term debt and other liabilities, which at the time totaled approximately
$27.2 million.

The City’s 2003 proposal is not necessarily indicative of the valuation that would be assigned to our assets
by the New Hampshire PUC nor does is necessarily reflect a price that the City might be willing to pay for our
assets at this time. The City’s proposal purported to cover all of our assets. The City has not renewed its 2003
proposal.

In March 2004, as part of the eminent domain process, the City filed a petition with the New Hampshire
PUC seeking approval to acquire all of our water utility assets, whether or not related to our Nashua service area.
The New Hampshire PUC ruled in January 2005 that the City could not use the eminent domain procedure to
acquire any of the assets of Pennichuck East or Pittsfield, and that, with regard to the assets of Pennichuck, the
question of which assets, if any, could be taken by the City was dependent on a determination to be made after a
hearing as to what was in the public interest.

Issues to be Presented to the New Hampshire PUC. The New Hampshire PUC has not set a schedule for the
eminent domain proceeding. We do not expect the New Hampshire PUC to rule definitively on the City’s
petition before late 2006. Given the highly integrated nature of Pennichuck’s system and the significant interests
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of other communities in Pennichuck’s service area, we expect that the New Hampshire PUC will have to address
a number of unprecedented issues related to Pennichuck’s assets and operations outside the City of Nashua.
These issues could have an effect on any New Hampshire PUC determination regarding (i) whether a taking of
Pennichuck’s assets by eminent domain would be in the public interest, including the portion of the Pennichuck
assets that could be taken by eminent domain, and (ii) the amount of compensation that would have to be paid to
Pennichuck if the City acquired any of its assets by eminent domain.

The January 2003 referendum approved by the voters of Nashua creates a statutory presumption that an
eminent domain taking is in the interest of the residents of Nashua. We believe, however, that it may be possible
for us to overcome that presumption and that under New Hampshire law the referendum is irrelevant to the issue
of whether the City should be permitted to acquire any of Pennichuck’s assets that are not necessary to serve
Nashua customers.

Uncertainty Regarding Compensation to Pennichuck. If the City were successful in acquiring any of
Pennichuck’s assets in an eminent domain proceeding, it is highly uncertain what valuation methodologies would
be used in determining the compensation the City would have to pay to Pennichuck in exchange for taking these
assets by eminent domain. The total compensation awarded would comprise the value to be paid for the
Pennichuck assets and the additional consequential damages, if any, caused by the severance of the plant and
property proposed to be purchased from Pennichuck’s other plant and property. In addition, we believe that we
would have a legal basis to seek compensation for the related harm to Pennichuck’s affiliated companies,
including Service Corporation and our utility subsidiaries. There can be no assurance, however, that we will be
successful in obtaining damages based upon the effect of a taking on our other utilities.

If the New Hampshire PUC determines that a taking of Pennichuck assets by the City is in the public
interest, then we believe it is likely to consider five valuation methodologies in determining the compensation to
be paid to Pennichuck for its assets:

+ current replacement cost less depreciation,

» capitalized earnings (i.e., a discounted cash flow method),

* comparable sales,

» original cost less depreciation (sometimes referred to as net book value), and

» cost of alternative facility capable of delivering utility service.

Although these five methodologies are not expressly required by statute, in cases involving the valuation of
utility property for purposes of property tax assessments, New Hampshire courts have recognized that all of these
approaches to valuation should be given consideration. However, there is no express requirement that the
ultimate determination of value be based on any one or more of these methods, and the New Hampshire PUC
may give weight to any one or more of them depending on the circumstances. Moreover, the New Hampshire
PUC may decide to use different methodologies to value different asset categories. The choice of methodology
may also depend on the scope of the assets to be taken.

Methodologies for determining the value of assets and the amount of damages suffered as a result of
eminent domain takings by public utility commissions in other states may not be indicative of the methodologies
that will be used by the New Hampshire PUC, because such determinations are dependent on the particular facts
and circumstances of each case.

Right to Appeal. Pennichuck or the City would have the right to appeal directly to the New Hampshire
Supreme Court any order issued by the New Hampshire PUC in the eminent domain proceeding. However, the
Supreme Court would overturn an order by the New Hampshire PUC only if it is demonstrated that the New
Hampshire PUC has made an error of law or, by a clear preponderance of the evidence, that a factual or policy

11




determination by the New Hampshire PUC was contrary to law, unjust or unreasonable. The New Hampshire
Supreme Court applies a presumption of reasonableness to factual determinations by the New Hampshire PUC.

Certain Tax Considerations. If the City of Nashua acquires for cash in an eminent domain proceeding any
of Pennichuck’s assets, Pennichuck would be taxed as if it had willingly sold those assets to the City. Unless we
are able to utilize a special nonrecognition provision discussed below, we would recognize gain for federal
income tax purposes equal to the excess of the-aggregate value Pennichuck receives for each asset less its
adjusted cost basis in those assets. The aggregate adjusted tax basis of Pennichuck’s assets is significantly less
than the aggregate adjusted book value of those assets as reflected in our Consolidated Financial Statements
appearing elsewhere in this prospectus. The difference exists primarily because the rate at which we depreciate
Pennichuck assets for federal income tax purposes is greater than the depreciation rate that we use for financial
reporting purposes. Therefore, if the New Hampshire PUC were to value our assets using a methodology that
results in a value equal to or greater than our adjusted book value, for example, the taxable gain that we would
recognize from such sale would likely be material to us. If we then distributed the cash proceeds from such sale
to our shareholders, another tax would be triggered at the shareholder level, with shareholders generally being
taxed at a rate of 15% on the portion of the cash received.

It may be possible for Pennichuck to defer the recognition of gain on the deemed sale of the assets if within
a certain time period it reinvests the amount received from the sale in property that is similar or related in service
or use to the property acquired by the City of Nashua. The rules for replacing real property under these
circumstances are less stringent than the rules for replacing personal property. To the extent that some of the
assets subject to sale are determined under state and local law to be personal property and not real property,
Pennichuck will be more limited in its options for locating suitable replacement property for these assets and,
thus, less likely to defer any potential tax at the corporate level. There can be no assurance that Pennichuck
would be successful in deferring a recognition of all or any of the taxable gain by reinvesting the proceeds in
replacement property.

This description of certain tax consequences of an eminent domain taking by the City does not purport to
constitute tax advice to any holder of our common stock. Each holder is urged to consult his, her or its own tax
advisor as to the specific tax consequences of an eminent domain taking to the holder, including the application
and effect of foreign, state and local income and other tax laws.

City May Not Proceed with Acquisition. In an eminent domain scenario, the City would not be bound to
proceed with the acquisition until ratified by a vote of two-thirds of Nashua Board of Alderman. In addition, we
expect that the City would need to incur debt financing to fund the purchase, depending on the size of the
transaction. Consequently, even if the New Hampshire PUC authorizes the City to use eminent domain to acquire
any or all of Pennichuck’s assets, there is no assurance that the City will proceed with the acquisition.

Our Opposition to Nashua’s Efforts. Our board of directors and shareholders would not have the right to
approve a forced sale of Pennichuck assets to the City in an eminent domain proceeding or the amount of
damages that the city would have to pay to us as a consequence of such a taking. We have vigorously opposed
the City’s efforts to acquire any of Pennichuck’s assets by eminent domain and intend to continue to do so. We
contend, among other things, that an eminent domain taking by the City would not be in the public interest, as
required by New Hampshire law. Our eminent domain related-expenses have been and are expected to continue
to be significant. Our expenses in 2004 were $1.2 million. We expect that the amount of our eminent domain-
related expenses in 2005 will be comparable to the amount of those expenses in 2004.

Possible Regional Water District. The City of Nashua has entered into an agreement with certain other
municipalities in southern and central New Hampshire to form the Merrimack Valley Regional Water District. If
the City should acquire any of Pennichuck’s assets, then the City may elect to transfer such assets to the District.
The District’s charter provides that prior to June 1, 2005, any municipality which contains any customers of or
any part of our water supply, transmission, treatment and distribution systems or which itself is one of our
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customers is eligible for membership in the District. In addition to the City, the municipalities currently
comprising the District are Amherst, Bedford, Litchfield, Londonderry, Pelham, Raymond and Pittsfield. The
District has the authority under New Hampshire law to issue bonds to fund a transfer of assets from the City, but
the District does not have authority to take assets by eminent domain. The City may contend that the District’s
existence supports the City’s contention that a taking of Pennichuck’s assets by eminent domain would be in the
public interest. We are unable to predict, however, what weight, if any, the New Hampshire PUC will give to the
District’s existence in considering the merits of the City’s eminent domain petition.

Pittsfield Eminent Domain Actions. The Town of Pittsfield voted at its 2003 town meeting to acquire the
assets of our Pittsfield subsidiary by eminent domain. In April 2003, the Town notified us in writing of the
Town’s desire to acquire the assets. We responded that we did not wish to sell the assets. Thereafter, no further
action was taken by the Town until March 2005, when the Town again voted to take the assets of our Pittsfield
subsidiary and also to appropriate $60,000 for the eminent domain process. On March 22, 2005, we received a
letter from the Town reiterating the Town’s desire to acquire the assets of our Pittsfield subsidiary. We have 60
days to formulate a response. We do not have a basis to evaluate whether the Town will actively pursue the
acquisition of our Pittsfield assets by eminent domain.
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RISK FACTORS

The City of Nashua’s use of the power of eminent domain to acquire a significant portion of our water
utility assets creates uncertainty and may result in material, adverse consequences for us and our
shareholders.

We are involved in ongoing proceedings with the City of Nashua regarding the City’s desire to acquire all or
a significant portion of the water utility assets of Pennichuck, our principal subsidiary. The City is pursuing such
acquisition pursuant to its power of eminent domain under New Hampshire law. Whether the City will ultimately
be permitted to acquire our assets and, if so, the compensation that the City would have to pay us for those assets
are highly uncertain and will likely involve protracted proceedings before the New Hampshire PUC. Our board
of directors and shareholders would not have the right to approve a forced sale of Pennichuck assets to the city in
an eminent domain proceeding or the amount of damages that the City would have to pay to us as a consequence
of such a taking. If the New Hampshire PUC authorizes the City to use eminent domain to acquire any or all of
Pennichuck’s assets, the City would not be bound to proceed with the acquisition, and could decide not to
proceed.

Given the highly integrated nature of our businesses, a forced sale of a significant portion of our water
related assets may result in increased costs and operating inefficiencies borne by our remaining assets.
Additionally, Service Corporation’s ability to service its existing contracts, as well as pursue additional operating
contracts, could be impaired. The existence of a pending eminent domain proceeding also could adversely affect
Pennichuck’s future prospects and result in the loss of one or more key employees.

The City has stated publicly that it would consider retaining us to manage whatever water system assets the
City may acquire from Pennichuck by eminent domain. The City has received expressions of interest from us and
other prospective operators. We have not decided how aggressively, if at all, we would pursue the opportunity to
manage those assets, and even if we chose to pursue the opportunity aggressively, there is no assurance that we
would be the successful bidder.

Our vigorous opposition to the City of Nashua’s efforts to acquire our assets by eminent domain has had,
and will likely continue to have, a material adverse effect on our operating results and has been, and will
continue to be, a significant distraction to our management.

We have vigorously opposed the City of Nashua’s efforts to acquire our assets by eminent domain and
intend to continue to do so. Our eminent domain related expenses have been, and are expected to continue to be,
significant. These expenses in 2003 and 2004 were $235,000 and $1.2 million, respectively. We do not expect
the New Hampshire PUC to rule on the matter before late 2006. A substantial portion of our President and Chief
Executive Officer’s attention has been and will continue to be devoted to coordinating various aspects of our
response to the City’s eminent domain initiative. In addition, we expect that from time to time in the future one
or more other senior officers may need to participate significantly in various aspects of our response to the City’s
eminent domain efforts. We cannot assure you that management’s attention to the City’s eminent domain
initiative will not adversely affect their oversight of other aspects of our business.

Our water utility business requires significant capital expenditures, and the rates we charge our customers
are subject to regulation. If we are unable to obtain government approval of our requests for rate relief, or
if approved rate relief is untimely or inadequate to cover our investments, our operating results would
suffer.

Our ability to maintain and meet our financial objectives is dependent upon the rates we charge our
customers. These rates are subject to approval by the New Hampshire PUC. We file rate relief requests, from
time to time, to recover our investments in utility plant and expenses. The water utility business is capital
intensive. We typically spend significant sums each year for additions to or replacement of property, plant and
equipment. Once we file a rate relief petition with the New Hampshire PUC, the ensuing administrative and
hearing process may be lengthy and costly. The timing of our rate relief requests are therefore partially dependent
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upon the estimated cost of the administrative process in relation to the investments and expenses that we hope to
recover through the rate relief to the extent approved. We can provide no assurances that any future rate relief
request will be approved by the New Hampshire PUC; and, if approved, we cannot guarantee that this rate relief
will be granted in a timely or sufficient manner to cover the investments and expenses for which we initially
sought the rate relief.

The relatively large magnitude of the future rate relief that we expect to request in order to earn a return
on our projected 2005 to 2008 capital expenditures may adversely affect our ability to obtain timely and
adequate rate relief and therefore could adversely affect our ability to service the debt that we expect to
incur to finance such projects.

During the 2005 to 2008 period, our capital expenditures will be particularly large as we upgrade our water
treatment plant to meet more stringent federally mandated water quality standards, undertake various water
distribution, storage, supply, maintenance, rehabilitation and replacement projects and conduct a pilot project for
a proposed radio-based meter reading system. Our estimated capital expenditures for our water utilities during
the 2005 to 2008 period are expected to total $54.3 million in current dollars. By comparison, for the four year
period 2001 to 2004, our capital expenditures were $33.1 million.

Given the relatively large magnitude of our construction program, we expect that our future rate relief
requests will be significant. We intend to submit one or more requests for rate relief as significant components of
our capital projects are placed into service. There can be no assurance that the New Hampshire PUC will approve
future rate relief in a timely or sufficient manner to cover our investments and expenses during the 2005 to 2008
period. Our ability to service the debt that we expect to incur to finance our 2005 to 2008 construction program
would be adversely affected if we were unable to obtain timely and adequate rate relief relating to the capital
expenditures incurred during that program.

Our ability to undertake our 2005 to 2008 capital expenditure program depends greatly on our ongoing
ability to obtain external financing. If we are unable to obtain such financing on reasonable terms, so that
we are unable to complete all of our capital improvements on a timely basis, our operating results could be
adversely affected.

We estimate that approximately 25% to 30% of our projected capital expenditures during the 2005 to 2008
period will be financed from cash flow from our operations (after payment of dividends on common stock). We
intend to fund the balance primarily by obtaining debt financing from external sources, including $50.0 million
from the proposed sale of tax-exempt bonds. Some of our external financing may be obtained through subsequent
equity offerings. Our ability to secure external debt financing at reasonable costs and terms depends primarily on
our ability to maintain continuing access to credit under our revolving credit facility and our access to long-term
debt markets. Our revolving credit facility, which we recently increased to $16.0 million, will expire on
December 31, 2007. Borrowings under the facility are subject to various terms and conditions, including
covenants restricting borrowing if certain specified credit ratios are not attained.

Access to long-term debt at reasonable costs and terms requires that we maintain our credit ratios at levels
consistent with comparable investment grade borrowers, as well as at levels consistent with the issuance
covenants contained in our existing loan agreements. Should we be unable to access long-term debt at reasonable
costs and terms, our ability to finance our 2005 to 2008 capital expenditures on a timely basis could be materially
impaired. In such an event, we may need to seek other forms of capital at less favorable costs and terms or defer
or reduce some of our capital expenditures. Any delay in implementing capital improvements could adversely
affect our ability to request and receive rate relief from the New Hampshire PUC relating to capital expenditures
incurred by us.
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If we are unable to pay the principal and interest on our indebtedness as it comes due or we default under
certain other provisions of our loan documents, our indebtedness could be accelerated and our operating
results, financial condition and cash flows could be adversely affected.

Our ability to pay the principal and interest on our indebtedness as it comes due will depend upon our
current and future performance. Our performance is affected by many factors, some of which are beyond our
control. We believe that our cash flow from operations and, if necessary, borrowings under our existing credit
facility, will be sufficient to enable us to make our debt payments as they become due. If, however, we do not
generate sufficient cash, we may be required to refinance our obligations or sell additional equity, which may be
on terms that are not favorable to us. No assurance can be given that any refinancing or sale of equity will be
possible when needed or that we will be able to negotiate acceptable terms. In addition, our failure to comply
with certain provisions contained in our trust indentures and loan agreements relating to our outstanding
indebtedness could lead to a default under these documents, which could result in an acceleration of our
indebtedness.

We expect that all or substantially all of our then outstanding indebtedness would be accelerated if the
City of Nashua were to acquire a significant portion of our assets; such acceleration could adversely affect
our financial condition, operating results and cash flows.

Our $16.0 million revolving credit facility that we recently entered into with Bank of America provides that
any indebtedness outstanding under the facility would be due upon the City of Nashua acquiring all or a material
portion of Pennichuck’s assets in an eminent domain proceeding. We expect that all future debt arrangements,
including those that will be incurred to fund our 2005 to 2008 capital expenditure program, will provide
expressly or in effect that there would be an acceleration of our indebtedness if the City acquires all or a
significant portion of our assets, whether in an eminent domain proceeding or otherwise. Such an acceleration
could adversely affect our financial condition and operating results if we are unable to repay such indebtedness at
that time or to refinance the indebtedness on equally favorable terms and conditions.

If we are unable to manage the construction phases of our 2005 to 2008 capital expenditure program
successfully, so that we are unable to complete the upgrade of our water treatment plant on a timely basis,
our operating results could be adversely affected and the total amount of capital expenditures may exceed
our projected capital resources.

Our significant projected capital expenditures for the 2005 to 2008 period result primarily from our need to
upgrade our water treatment plant to meet federally mandated standards. The water treatment plant project will
be constructed in stages. We expect that the initial stage will begin in the second half of 2005 and the project will
be completed in 2008. The cost of the entire water treatment plant project is currently estimated at approximately
$32 million. The following are principal risks that we believe are associated with our water treatment plant
construction project:

* The price of steel, which is a significant portion of the overall cost of the water treatment plant project,
may increase substantially from our current estimates, which risk we expect to bear under the terms of
the construction contracts.

» There may be cost overruns resulting from change orders or other factors not linked to the price of steel
that we may have to bear under the terms of the construction contracts.

*  One or more significant contractors or subcontractors may encounter financial difficulties and be unable
to complete their obligations under the construction contracts on a timely basis or at all.

» Capital investment cannot be included in rate relief until the project is in service. Therefore, the timing
of rate relief will be adversely affected if construction problems or other factors delay the operation of
new plant components.
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If we are unable to successfully manage the construction phases of our 2005 to 2008 capital expenditure
program, so that we are unable to complete the upgrade of our water treatment plant on time to comply with
federal standards, our operating results could be adversely affected, and the total amount of capital expenditures
during the period may exceed our projected capital resources. If mismanagement is determined to have resulted
in cost overruns, then the New Hampshire PUC may not allow recovery for all of the costs associated with the
project.

We have restrictions on our ability to pay dividends. There can also be no assurance that we will continue
to pay dividends in the future or, if dividends are paid, that they will be in amounts similar to past
dividends.

The terms of our debt instruments impose conditions on our ability to pay dividends. Our earnings, financial
condition, capital requirements, applicable regulations and other factors, including the timeliness and adequacy
of rate relief, will determine both our ability to pay dividends on our common stock and the amount of those
dividends. We have paid dividends on our common stock each year since 1856, but there can be no assurance
that we will continue to pay dividends in the future or, if dividends are paid, that they will be in amounts similar

- to dividends that we have paid in recent periods.

The loss of a significant commercial or industrial customer can and has adversely affected our operating
results and cash flows.

Our revenues will decrease, and such decrease may be material, if a significant commercial or industrial
customer terminates or materially reduces its use of our water. Approximately $4.5 million, or 23.5%, of our
2004 water utility revenues was derived from commercial and industrial customers. We recently lost an industrial
customer that accounted for $156,000 of revenues in 2004 when its plant in our service area ceased operations.
Our largest customer is an Anheuser Busch (“AB”) bottling plant located in Merrimack, New Hampshire. We
recently renewed a contract with AB providing for a supply of up to 3.0 million gallons per day for a term of ten
years. We estimate that our 2005 revenues from AB will be $850,000. If AB or any other large commercial or
industrial customer reduces or ceases its consumption of our water, we may seek New Hampshire PUC approval
to increase the rates of our remaining customers to recover any lost revenues. There can be no assurance,
however, that the New Hampshire PUC would approve such a rate relief request, and even if it did approve such
a request, it would not apply retroactively to the date of the reduction in consumption. The delay between such
date and the effective date of the rate relief may be significant and adversely affect our operating results and cash
flows.

We are subject to federal, state and local regulation that may impose significant limitations and
restrictions on the way we do business.

Various federal, state and local authorities regulate many aspects of our business. Among the most
important of these regulations are those relating to the quality of water we supply our customers. These laws
require us to obtain various environmental permits from environmental regulatory agencies for our operations
and to perform water quality tests that are monitored by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, or EPA, and
the New Hampshire Department of Environmental Services, or DES, for the detection of certain chemicals and
compounds in our water. We could be fined or otherwise sanctioned by regulators for non-compliance with these
laws, regulations and permits. In addition, government authorities continually review these regulations,
particularly the drinking water quality regulations and may propose new or more restrictive requirements in the
future. If new or more restrictive limitations on permissible levels of substances and contaminants in our water
are imposed, we may not be able to adequately predict the costs necessary to meet regulatory standards. If we are
unable to recover the cost of implementing new water treatment procedures in response to more restrictive water
quality regulations through the rates we charge our customers, or if we fail to comply with such regulations, it
could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and operating results.
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An important element of our growth strategy is the acquisition of water systems. Any pending or future
acquisitions we decide to undertake will involve risks.

The acquisition and integration of water systems is an important element in our growth strategy. This
strategy depends on identifying suitable acquisition opportunities and reaching mutually agreeable terms with
acquisition candidates. The negotiation of potential acquisitions as well as the integration of acquired businesses
could require us to incur significant costs and resources. Further, acquisitions may result in dilution for the
owners of our common stock, our incurrence of debt and contingent liabilities and fluctuations in quarterly
results. In addition, the businesses and other assets we acquire may not achieve the financial results that we
expected.

The current concentration of our business in southern and central New Hampshire makes us susceptible to
any adverse development in local regulatory, economic, demographic, competitive and weather conditions.

Our core service area, which accounted for 62% of our 2004 consolidated revenues, comprises Pennichuck’s
franchise in the City of Nashua, New Hampshire and portions of the surrounding towns of Ambherst, Hollis and
Merrimack. Our revenues and operating results are therefore subject to local regulatory, economic, demographic,
competitive and weather conditions in that area. A change in any of these conditions could make it more costly or -
difficult for us to conduct our business. In addition, any such change would have a disproportionate effect on us,
compared to water utility companies that do not have such a geographic concentration.

Weather conditions and overuse may interfere with our sources of water, demand for water services and
our ability to supply water to our customers.

We depend primarily on surface water from the Pennichuck Brook and, to a lesser extent, the Merrimack
River in Nashua, New Hampshire to meet the present and future demands of our customers. Unexpected
conditions may interfere with our water supply sources. Drought and overuse may limit the availability of surface
water. These factors might adversely affect our ability to supply water in sufficient quantities to our customers
and our revenues and operating results may be adversely affected. Additionally, cool and wet weather, as well as
drought restrictions and our customers’ conservation efforts, may reduce consumption demands, also adversely
affecting our revenues and operating results. Furthermore, freezing weather may also contribute to water
transmission interruptions caused by pipe and main breakage. If we experience an interruption in our water
supply, it could have a material adverse effect on our operating results, financial condition and cash flows.

Contamination of our water asupply may cause disruption in our services and adversely affect our
operating results, financial condition and cash flows.

Our water supply is subject to contamination from the migration of naturally occurring substances in
groundwater and surface systems and pollution resulting from man-made sources. In the event that our water
supply is contaminated, we may have to interrupt the use of that water supply until we are able to substitute the
flow of water from an uncontaminated water source through our interconnected transmission and distribution
facilities. In addition, we may incur significant costs in order to treat the contaminated source through expansion
of our current treatment facilities or development of new treatment methods. Our inability to substitute water
supply from an uncontaminated water source, or to adequately treat the contaminated water source in a cost-
effective or timely manner, may have an adverse effect on our operating results, financial condition and cash
flows.

The necessity for increased security has and may continue to result in increased operating costs.

In the wake of the September 11, 2001 terrorist attacks and the ensuing attention to threats to the nation’s
health and security, we have expended resources to increase security measures at our facilities and heighten
employee awareness of threats to our water supply. We have also incurred expenses to tighten our security
measures regarding the delivery and handling of certain chemicals used in our business. We will continue to bear
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increased costs for security precautions to protect our facilities, operations and supplies. We are not aware of any
specific threats to our facilities, operations or supplies. However, it is possible that we would not be in a position
to control the outcome of such events should they occur.

Damage to, or an upgrade of, any of our dams may adversely affect our financial condition, revenues,
operating results and cash flows.

Pennichuck owns eight dams, including four impounding dams which are situated on the Nashua and
Merrimack border. A failure of any of those dams could result in injuries and property damage downstream for
which we may be liable and which may adversely affect our financial condition, revenues and operating results.
The failure of a dam would also adversely affect our ability to supply water in sufficient quantities to our
customers and could adversely affect our financial condition, revenues, operating results and cash flows.

We also are required from time to time to repair or upgrade the dams that we own. The cost of such repairs
can be and has been material. In 2004, we incurred approximately $1 million to upgrade the spillways and
earthen embankments of our Supply and Harris Pond dams.

In January 2004, the New Hampshire DES issued a letter to Pennichuck setting forth certain deficiencies
with regard to the Merrimack Village dam. Pennichuck has obtained a 24-month extension of the time in which
to complete the necessary repairs, and is considering whether to sell, demolish or repair the dam. If the dam is
not sold, Pennichuck expects to bring the dam into compliance during 2006. We have not yet obtained an
estimate of the cost that would be necessary to bring the Merrimack Village dam into compliance.

The success of all aspects of our regulated and unregulated businesses depends significantly on the services
of the members of our senior management team, and the departure of any of those persons could cause our
operating results to suffer.

Our success depends significantly on the continued individual and collective contributions of our senior
management team. If we lose the services of any member of our senior management or are unable to hire and
retain experienced management personnel, it could harm our operating results.

Our water management subsidiary’s revenue growth depends on our ability to enter into new operating
contracts and maintain our existing contracts with municipalities, communities and non-transient, non-
community water systems.

In our target market of southern and central New Hampshire and nearby portions of Maine, Massachusetts
and Vermont, municipalities and communities own and operate the majority of water systems. A significant
portion of Service Corporation’s marketing and sales efforts is spent demonstrating the benefits of contract
operations to elected officials and municipal authorities. Employee unions and certain “public interest” groups
generally oppose the principle of outsourcing these services to companies like us and are active opponents in this
process. The political environment means that decisions are made based on many factors, not just economic
factors. There can be no assurance that we can maintain or expand our water management business.

Our water management subsidiary’s business depends on trained, qualified employees.

State regulations set the staff training, experience and staff qualification standards required for Service
Corporation’s employees to operate specific water facilities. We must recruit, retain and develop qualified
employees, maintain training programs and support employee advancement. We must provide the proper
management and operational staff of state-certified and qualified employees to support the operation of water
facilities. Failure to do so could put us at risk, among other things, for operational errors at the facilities, which
would have an adverse effect on our water management business.
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Our water management subsidiary’s business is subject to environmental and water quality risks.

Clients of Service Corporation are owners of the facilities that we operate under contract. The facilities must
be operated in accordance with various federal and state water quality standards. We also handle certain
hazardous materials at these facilities, for example, sodium hydroxide. Any failure of our operation of the
facilities, including noncompliance with water quality standards, hazardous material leaks and spills, and similar
events, could expose us to environmental liabilities, claims and litigation costs. We cannot assure you that we
will successfully manage these issues, and failure to do so could have a material adverse effect on our future
results of operations.

Our real estate development activities and investments through Southwood present risks different than
those related to our core water utility and water management businesses.

Our Southwood subsidiary and the Company collectively own several parcels of developable land in Nashua
and Merrimack, New Hampshire, comprising approximately 580 acres. During the next several years, we expect
to pursue the permitting and other land use approvals necessary to realize some or all of the value of those
parcels. We will undertake those efforts either alone or in concert with others. In addition, Southwood has a 50%
ownership interest in three separate joint ventures owning commercial office buildings located in Merrimack,
New Hampshire and a 50% interest in another nearby parcel of land that is approved for the construction of
commercial office space.

Southwood’s activities and investments present risks different than those related to our core water utility
and water management businesses. We believe that the principal risks of Southwood are the following:

¢ The value we realize for our undeveloped land will depend primarily on whether development permits
and other land use approvals can be obtained in a timely, cost-effective manner. The process of
obtaining such permits and approvals is inherently uncertain, lengthy and expensive.

* The value of our undeveloped land will also be affected by fluctuations in interest rates, construction
costs and economic conditions prevailing in the Nashua/Merrimack area and the supply of investment
capital for commercial real estate and related assets.

* A change in economic or other conditions may make certain development projects less viable, and we
may decide to abandon or delay such projects. Our future operating results may be adversely affected by
write-offs of costs that have been capitalized in connection with potential development projects that we
subsequently determine not to pursue.

* We account for Southwood’s investment in the four current joint ventures using the equity method of
accounting, meaning that we recognize on a current basis 50% of each joint venture’s operating results.
Those results reflect ongoing carrying costs such as maintenance and property taxes.

* From time to time a Southwood joint venture may need to make significant capital improvements to its
property in order to remain competitive. Such additional investment could adversely affect our return on
a project.

* Any expiration, default or termination of a lease may adversely affect Southwood’s revenues. A
reduction in demand for the joint venture properties may cause us to continue to incur operating costs
without offsetting income.

» The combined vacancy rate for the Southwood joint venture projects was 12% as of March 1, 2005.
Commercial building occupancies and rental rates typically decline in an economic downturn.
Southwood’s share of the net operating income (or loss, if any) from leases associated with those
buildings could be adversely impacted by a downturn in the local economy and commercial real estate
market.
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* Southwood’s investment in one or more joint ventures may be jeopardized if the debt financing secured
by the properties of those joint ventures cannot be refinanced on acceptable terms.

» The disposition of a single significant Southwood investment can affect our financial performance in
any period, and therefore our real estate investment activities could increase (and have historically
increased) fluctuations in our operating results and cash flow.

Item2. PROPERTIES
Office Buildings

The Company owns a building in Nashua which serves as an operations center and storage facility for its
construction and maintenance activities. Except as noted in “Note 3- Debt” in the accompanying Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K Report, there are no mortgages or
encumbrances on our properties.

Water Supply Facilities

Pennichuck’s principal properties are located in Nashua, New Hampshire, with the exception of several
source-of-supply land tracts which are located in the neighboring towns of Amherst, Merrimack and Hollis, New
Hampshire. In addition, Pennichuck owns four impounding dams which are situated on the Nashua and
Merrimack border.

The location and general character of Pennichuck’s principal plant and other materially important physical
properties are as follows:

1. Holt Pond, Bowers Pond, Harris Pond and Supply Pond and related impounding dams comprise the chief
source of water supply in Nashua, New Hampshire.

2. An Infilco Degremont treatment plant using physical chemical removal of suspended solids and sand and
carbon filtration with a rated capacity of 35 mgd, located in Nashua, New Hampshire.

3. A raw water intake and pumping facility located on the Merrimack River in Merrimack, New Hampshire.
Pennichuck has a permit from the Army Corps of Engineers to withdraw up to 30 mgd of water from the
Merrimack River at this intake. The existing pumps are capable of providing up to 16.2 mgd. This supplemental
water supply provides an additional source of water during dry summer periods and will provide a long-term
supply for Pennichuck’s service area.

4. Approximately 672 acres of land located in Nashua and Merrimack which are owned and held for
watershed and reservoir purposes.

5. Eleven water storage reservoirs having a total storage capacity of 20.7 million gallons, six of which are
located in Nashua, two in Amherst, one in Bedford, one in Derry and one in Hollis, New Hampshire.

6. A 900,000 gallon per day gravel-packed well located in Amherst, New Hampshire.

The sources of supply for Pennichuck East consist of a well system, owned by the Town of Hudson, in
Litchfield, New Hampshire, purchased water from the Manchester Water Works or individual bedrock wells.
Pennichuck East has entered into long-term water supply agreements to obtain water from Hudson and
Manchester Water Works.

The Pittsfield Aqueduct Company owns the land surrounding Berry Pond and it treats the water from this

Pond through a .5 mgd water filtration plant located in Pittsfield, New Hampshire. Berry Pond serves as the sole
source of supply for Pittsfield.
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Water Distribution Facilities

The distribution facilities of the Company’s regulated water companies consist of, among other assets, the
following:

Pennichuck Pennichuck East Pittsfield

Transmission & distribution mains (in miles) ............ 418 120 13
OIVICES o ottt 24,042 4,750 636
Hydrants ............. . i 2,317 438 67

Land Held for Future Development

At December 31, 2004, the remaining portfolio of land held for future development aggregated
approximately 580 acres. Title to these properties are held in the name of either Pennichuck Corporation or
Southwood Corporation, and are managed by Southwood. The portfolio is comprised of 12 separate parcels
ranging in size from 10.5 acres to 102 acres. Three parcels, aggregating 92 acres, are located within the
municipality of Nashua, New Hampshire, and the remaining 9 parcels, aggregating 490 acres, are located within
the municipality of Merrimack, New Hampshire.

The entire portfolio of land held for future development is classified under “current use” status, resulting in
an assessment that is based on the property’s actual use and not its highest or best use.

Item3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Municipalization Efforts

On March 25, 2004, the City filed a petition with the New Hampshire Public Utilities Commission (the
“NHPUC”) under the New Hampshire utility municipalization statute, NHRSA Ch. 38, seeking to take by
eminent domain all of the utility assets of the Company‘s three utility subsidiaries. Under NHRSA Ch. 38, if the
NHPUC makes a finding that it is in the public interest to do so, a municipality may take the assets of a utility
providing service in that municipality. The NHPUC is also charged with determining the amount of
compensation for the assets that it finds it is in the public interest for the municipality to take. On January 21,
2003, the NHPUC issued an order ruling, among other things, that (1) the City does not have the legal authority
to pursue a taking of the assets of the two Pennichuck utility subsidiaries that provide no service in Nashua,
Pennichuck East Utility, Inc. or Pittsfield Aqueduct Company, Inc. and (2) the City does have the legal authority
to pursue a potential taking of all of the assets of Pennichuck Water Works, Inc., subject to a determination by
the NHPUC as to what portion of those assets, if any, it is in the public interest for Nashua to take.

Pursuant to an order issued by the NHPUC on October 1, 2004, the City filed written testimony on
November 22, 2004 supporting its position that the proposed taking is in the public interest. The Commission has
indicated that it will set a procedural schedule for the remainder of the case after the parties have submitted
written statements of their positions regarding the sequencing of events in the case and have met to discuss
procedural issues.

If the City is successful in obtaining a determination by the NHPUC that it should be allowed to take some
or all of Pennichuck’s assets, the City is not required under NHRSA Ch. 38 to complete the taking and could
ultimately choose not to proceed with the purchase of the assets. The Company cannot predict the ultimate
outcome of these matters. It is possible that, if the acquisition efforts of the City are successful, the financial
position of the Company would be materially impacted.

Prior to the City’s filing of its eminent domain case at the NHPUC, the Company filed a Petition for
Declaratory Judgment in New Hampshire Superior Court seeking a determination that the City had waited too
long to seek condemnation authority from the NHPUC after obtaining a public vote on November 26, 2002
regarding municipalization of water utility assets as well as a determination that NHRSA Ch. 38 was
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unconstitutional on a number of grounds and, later, that the NHPUC proceeding ultimately filed by the City
exceeded the scope of the assets that were properly the subject of an attempted taking by the City under NHRSA
Ch. 38. On September 1, 2004, the Superior Court ruled adversely to the Company on a number of these issues,
deferred to the NHPUC with regard to the issue relating to the scope of the assets that the City could seek to
acquire, and determined that one of the constitutional claims raised by the Company should be addressed only
after the proceeding at the NHPUC had concluded. On October 22, 2004, the Company filed an appeal with the
New Hampshire Supreme Court on a number of its claims. Briefs have been filed with the court, and the parties
are awaiting the scheduling of oral arguments.

In addition to its efforts to obtain declaratory relief, the Company also brought suit against the City in New
Hampshire Superior Court to obtain monetary damages that the Company believes resulted from the City’s
efforts to acquire some or all of the assets of the Company. The City removed the case to United States District
Court for the District of New Hampshire and then sought to have the case dismissed in its entirety. On
September 13, 2004, the District Court dismissed the Company’s federal law claims without prejudice on the
basis that the Company had not yet exhausted its available state law remedies and remanded the case to New
Hampshire Superior Court for consideration of the Company’s state law claims. On December 1, 2004, the
Superior Court dismissed the remainder of the case without prejudice on the basis that the claim for damages was
premature and giving the Company the right to refile the case at a later date depending on the outcome of the
proceeding before the NHPUC.

Please see Item 1 for a discussion of the background of the proceeding, the issues and uncertainties
associated with the proceeding, and the possible outcomes of the proceeding.

Regulatory Investigation

Overview. The Company and Maurice L. Arel, the Company’s former President and Chief Executive Officer,
were the subject of parallel investigations by the New Hampshire Bureau of Securities Regulation (the “Bureau’)
and the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) that began in late 2002 and early 2003,
respectively. Effective December 16, 2004, the Bureau and the SEC entered into settlements with the Company
and Mr. Arel regarding matters related to those investigations.

The settlement with the Company was effected through (1) a Consent Order issued by the Bureau (the “New
Hampshire Order”) and (2) an SEC Order Instituting Cease-and-Desist Proceedings, Making Findings, and
Imposing a Cease-and-Desist Order Pursnant to Section 21C of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “SEC
Order”). The allegations in the Orders relate primarily to the Company’s public disclosures regarding various
transactions involving joint ventures formed by the Company’s Southwood subsidiary (the “Southwood Joint
Ventures”). The Southwood Joint Ventures were organized to commercialize land that had long been held by
Pennichuck. The Bureau and the SEC simultaneously entered into separate settlement agreements with Mr. Arel.
The Company and Mr. Arel neither admitted nor denied any of the factual or legal allegations contained in their
respective settlement documents.

Scope of the Orders. The New Hampshire Order directs the Company to refrain from any violation of the
relevant provisions of New Hampshire law, including:

« RSA 421-B:3, which makes it unlawful for any person, in connection with the offer, sale, or purchase of
any security, to make any untrue statemnent of a material fact or to omit to state a material fact necessary
in order to make the statements made, in the light of the circumstances under which they are made, not
misleading, or to engage in any act, practice, or course of business which operates or would operate as a
fraud or deceit upon any person, and

* RSA 421-B:19, which makes it unlawful for any person to make or cause to be made a statement in any
document filed with the Bureau or in any proceeding brought by the Bureau that is, at the time and in
the light of the circumstances under which such statement is made, false or misleading in any material
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respect or, in connection with such statement, to omit to state a material fact necessary in order to make
the statement made, in the light of the circumstances under which it was made, not misleading.

The SEC Order directs the Company to cease and desist from committing or causing any future violation of
the relevant federal securities laws, including:

* Section 10(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”) and SEC Rule 10b-5, which
prohibit the making of material misrepresentations or omissions with scienter in connection with the
purchase or sale of any security,

* Section 14(a) of the Exchange Act and SEC Rule 14a-9, which make it unlawful to solicit proxies by
means of any proxy statement which, at the time and in the light of the circumstances under which it is
made, is false or misleading with respect to any material fact, or which omits to state any material fact
necessary in order to make the statements therein not false or misleading, and

* Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act, which requires issuers of securities registered with the SEC to file
periodic reports with the SEC containing information prescribed by specific SEC rules, and SEC Rule
12b-20, which requires, in addition to information required by SEC rules to be included in periodic
reports, such further material information in those periodic reports as may be necessary to make the
required statements not misleading.

No monetary sanctions were imposed under the SEC Order in recognition that monetary sanctions were
imposed under the New Hampshire Order.

Payments required by New Hampshire Order. The Company and Mr. Arel were jointly and severally required to
pay to the State of New Hampshire an administrative fine of $50,000 and investigation costs of $60,000. Mr.
Arel made both payments under the terms of a settlement between him and the Company.

Shareholders of the Company as of March 31, 2003 were entitled to receive a payment totaling $280,000
under the terms of the New Hampshire Order. The payment was made as of March 1, 2005. The Company and
Mr. Arel have agreed that Mr. Arel shall be financially responsible for $160,000 of that amount and the Company
shall be responsible for $120,000. In accordance with the terms of the New Hampshire Order, neither Mr. Arel
nor any director of the Company who was a shareholder as of March 31, 2003 received a portion of the
shareholder payment.

Other Proceedings

The Company and its subsidiaries are not otherwise involved in any material litigation or other proceedings
which, in management’s opinion, would have an adverse effect on the business, the consolidated financial
condition or the operating results or cash flows of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Item 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A YOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

During the fourth quarter of the fiscal year covered by this Report, no matters were submitted to a vote of
security holders.




PARTII

Item 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common stock is listed on the Nasdaq National Market and trades under the symbol “PNNW.” On
March 24, 2005, there were approximately 635 holders of record of the 2,415,147 shares of our common stock
outstanding. The closing price per share of our common stock on March 30 was $26.05. The following table sets
forth the comparative market prices per share of our common stock based on the high and low closing sales
prices as reported on the Nasdaq National Market during the applicable periods and the dividends declared by the
Company during those periods.

Period High Low Dividends Declared
2004:
Fourth Quarter ............ ..o iiiriiiiinnn. $27.50  $23.98 $.215
Third Quarter ............ ..ttt 27.00 24.10 215
Second Quarter . ....... ... .. .. i 28.75 24.85 215
FirstQuarter .. ......... ..ottt 29.78 27.89 215
2003:
Fourth Quarter ..............ciiniiininnnnnn. $35.00 $22.44 $.215
Third Quarter ......... ... ... i, 26.95 23.50 215
SecondQuarter .......... ..., 25.82 21.35 215
FirstQuarter ........ .. .. ... i 28.81 20.24 195

We expect to continue to pay comparable cash dividends in the future, subject to the terms of our debt
agreements. Certain bond and note agreements involving our Pennichuck subsidiary, require, among other things,
restrictions on the payment or declaration of dividends by Pennichuck to us. Under Pennichuck’s most restrictive
covenant, approximately $5.9 million of its retained earnings was unrestricted for payment or declaration of
common dividends to us at December 31, 2004. See Note 3 of the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements for further discussion regarding this and other debt covenants.
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Item 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

We have derived the selected historical financial data as of and for each of the years ended December 31,
2004, 2003 and 2002, from our audited financial statements and related notes. You should read the information
below in conjunction with our historical financial statements and related notes and our “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” appearing in this report, which is
incorporated by reference herein. Stock information has been adjusted to reflect the four-for-three stock split
effected December 3, 2001.

For the Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
Income Statement: (In thousands, except share and per share data)

Operating revenues

Water utility operations ........... $ 19601 $ 18,680 $ 18830 $ 17412 $ 15964

Water management services . .. .. ... 1,932 1,702 1,459 958 662

Real estate operations . . ........... 1,437 949 3,088 4,156 6,989

Other............ ..., 55 57 45 228 57

Total operating revenues .......... 23,025 21,388 23,422 22,754 23,672
Operating expenses

Water utility operations ........... 15,130 14,567 12,785 12,409 11,614

Water management services . ....... 1,369 1,522 1,239 881 485

Real estate operations . ............ 282 104 1,750 912 2,357

Total operating expenses .......... 16,781 16,193 15,774 14,202 14,456
Operatingincome . ................. 6,244 5,195 7,648 8,552 9,216
Eminent domain expenses ........... (1,202) (235) — — —
Merger and other expenses .......... (162) (879) (1,946) — —
Otherincome ..................... 31 56 65 221 183
Interest expense ................... (1,952) (1,969) (1,978) (1,981) (1,991)
Income before income taxes ......... 2,959 2,168 3,789 6,792 7,408
Provision for income taxes ........... 1,140 888 1,450 2,657 2,870
Minority interest . ... ............... 1 (33) 2 (523) (855)
Netincome .........c.cvvvinnen... $ 1,820 $% 1,247  $ 2,341 % 3612 % 3,683

Earnings per common share (dituted) .. $ 076 $ 052 8§ 097§ 1.520 § 1.56M

Weighted average shares outstanding

(dituted) ....................... 2,409,324 2,398,198 2,411,781 2,400,088 2,369,272
Cash dividends declared per common
share ........... ... ... .. ... $ 08 $ 084 § 0.81@ % 076 % 0.73
As of December 31,
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
Balance Sheet: (In thousands)

Utility plant and equipment, at original
cost less accumulated

depreciation. .................... $ 90,88 $ 85727 $ 79,672 $ 73960 $ 68438
Totalassets ...........ccvvvnnn ... 102,127 97,210 90,982 87,840 82880
Lineofcredit ..................... 3,800 2,000 — — —
Current portion of long term debt .. ... 9,889 368 354 348 319
Long-term debt including current

portion ........ ... ... i 26,835 27,247 27,214 27,420 27,237
Shareholders’ equity ............... 30,151 30,172 30,433 30,724 28,780
Total capitalization including line of

credit. ... 60,786 59,419 57,647 58,144 56,017

(1) Includes $0.65, $0.67, and $1.45 per share effect of sales of real estate for $2.6 million, $2.7 million, and
$5.6 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

(2) Includes a one-time special dividend of $0.033 per share that we declared in 2003 in connection with the
Aqua America merger agreement that we terminated in February 2003.
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Item7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Introduction

We are a non-operating holding company whose income is derived from the earnings of our five wholly
owned subsidiaries. We are engaged primarily in the collection, storage, treatment and distribution of potable
water for domestic, industrial, commercial and fire protection service in southern and central New Hampshire
through our three utility subsidiaries: Pennichuck, Pennichuck East and Pittsfield. Our water utility revenues
constituted 85% of our consolidated revenues in 2004. Pennichuck, our principal subsidiary which was
established in 1852, accounted for 69% of our 2004 consolidated revenues. Pennichuck’s core franchise area
presently includes the City of Nashua, New Hampshire and 10 surrounding municipalities.

Our water subsidiaries are regulated by the New Hampshire Public Utilities Commission (“New Hampshire
PUC”) and must obtain New Hampshire PUC approval to increase their water rates to recover increases in
operating expenses and to obtain the opportunity to earn a return on investments in plant and equipment. New
Hampshire law provides that utilities are entitled to charge rates which permit them to earn a reasonable return on
the cost of the property employed in serving its customers, less accrued depreciation, contributed capital and
deferred income taxes (“Rate Base”). The cost of capital permanently employed by a utility in its utility business
marks the minimum rate of return which a utility is lawfully entitled to earn on its Rate Base. Capital
expenditures associated with complying with federal and state water quality standards have historically been
recognized and approved by the New Hampshire PUC for inclusion in our water rates, though there can be no
assurance that the New Hampshire PUC will approve future rate increases in a timely or sufficient manner to
cover our capital expenditures.

The businesses of our two other subsidiaries are non-regulated water management services and real estate
development and investment. Service Corporation provides various non-regulated water-related monitoring,
maintenance, testing and compliance reporting services for water systems for various towns, businesses and
residential communities in and around southern and central New Hampshire. Its most significant contracts are
with the Town of Hudson, New Hampshire and the Town of Salisbury, Massachusetts.

Southwood is actively engaged in real estate planning, development and management of residential,
commercial, industrial and retail properties. Historically, most of Southwood’s activities were conducted through
real estate joint ventures. During the past 10 years Southwood has participated in four residential joint ventures
with John P. Stabile II, a local developer. Southwood’s earnings have from time to time during that period
contributed a significant percentage of our consolidated net income. Southwood’s contributions from the sale of
real estate have increased the fluctuations in our net income during that period. We expect that Southwood will
contribute a smaller proportion of our future revenues and earnings.

As you read Management’s Discussion and Analysis, please refer to our Consolidated Financial Statements
and the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item § of this report.

Forward-Looking Statements

Certain statements in this Management’s Discussion and Analysis are forward-looking statements within the
meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
and are made based upon, among other things, our current assumptions, expectations and beliefs concerning
future developments and their potential effect on us. These forward-looking statements involve risks,
uncertainties and other factors, many of which are outside our control, that may cause our actual results,
performance or achievements to be materially different from any future results, performance or achievements
expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements. In some cases you can identify forward-looking
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statements where statements are preceded by, followed by, or include the words “in the future,” “believes,”

“expects,” “anticipates,” “plans” or similar expressions, or the negative thereof.

Forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties, and there are important factors that could cause
actual results to differ materially from those expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements. Such
factors include, among other things, whether eminent domain proceedings are successful against some or all of
our water utility assets, the success of applications for rate relief, changes in governmental regulations, changes
in the economic and business environment that may impact demand for our water and real estate products,
changes in capital requirements that may affect our level of capital expenditures, changes in business strategy or
plans and fluctuations in weather conditions that impact water consumption. These risks and others are described
elsewhere in this report, including particularly under the caption “Risk Factors.” We undertake no obligation to
publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events
or otherwise.

Events Significantly Affecting Our Earnings During Recent Years

Overview. Our earnings during the five year period ended December 31, 2004 were significantly affected by
the following events that occurred during one or more years of that period:

» Sales of land by Southwood, which were especially significant in 2000, 2001, 2002 and 2004;

» Expenses related to the merger agreement that we entered into in April 2002 with Aqua America Inc.
(formerly known as Philadelphia Suburban Corporation) and terminated in February 2003;

»  Our actions to oppose ongoing efforts by the City of Nashua, New Hampshire that began in 2002 to
acquire all or a significant portion of Pennichuck’s assets through an eminent domain proceeding under
New Hampshire utility law; and

» Defense and settlement costs related to parallel investigations by the U.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC”) and the New Hampshire Bureau of Securities Regulation (the “Bureau™) that
began in late 2002 and early 2003 and settled in December 2004.

Southwood Real Estate-Related Revenues. Our revenues and earnings were positively affected by significant
sales of Southwood land during four of the past five years. The following table sets forth the amount of revenues
that we recognized during each year in the 2000 to 2004 period attributable to those land sales and the percentage
that those revenues represented of our total revenues during each of those years.

% of
Southwood  Consolidated
_\ﬂ Land Sales Revenues
2000 . . e e e e $5,590,000 23.6%
2000 . e e 2,677,000 11.8%
200 . e e 2,595,000 11.1%
2003 L e e e 532,000 2.5%
2004 . e e e 1,224,000 5.3%

We expect that the overall trend shown in the preceding table will continue, and Southwood’s revenues from land
sales will constitute a decreasing percentage of our consolidated revenues.

Terminated Merger Agreement. We entered into an agreement in April 2002 to be acquired in a merger with
Aqua America Inc. Our shareholders would have received Aqua America shares having a value of $33.00 per
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share at the time we announced the agreement. In February 2003, before the merger was submitted to our
shareholders, we agreed with Aqua America to abandon the proposed transaction, because of actions taken by the
City of Nashua, summarized below, to attempt to acquire all or a significant portion of Pennichuck’s assets by
eminent domain. We incurred $1.9 million and $231,000 of merger-related expenses that we recognized in 2003
and 2002, respectively.

City of Nashua’s Ongoing Eminent Domain Proceeding. The City of Nashua’s Mayor stated his opposition
to our proposed merger with Aqua America almost immediately after we announced it. In January 2003, Nashua
residents approved a referendum authorizing the City to pursue the acquisition of our assets by eminent domain
or otherwise. In March 2004, as part of the eminent domain process, the City filed a petition with the New
Hampshire PUC seeking approval to acquire all of our water utility assets, whether or not related to our Nashua
service area. The eminent domain proceeding and potential consequences for us are described elsewhere in this
prospectus. See Item 1.

We have vigorously opposed the efforts of the City to acquire our assets by eminent domain and intend to
continue to do so. The New Hampshire PUC has not set a schedule for the eminent domain proceeding, and we
do not expect the New Hampshire PUC to rule on the matter before late 2006. Our eminent domain related
expenses in 2003 and 2004 were $235,000 and $1.2 million, respectively. We expect our eminent domain
expenses in 2005 to be comparable to those expenses incurred in 2004,

SEC and New Hampshire Investigations and Settlement. We and our former President and Chief Executive
Officer, who resigned in April 2003, were the subject of parallel investigations by the SEC and the Bureau that
began in early 2003 and late 2002, respectively. As disclosed elsewhere in this prospectus, the SEC and the
Bureau alleged that some of our public disclosures regarding various joint venture transactions in the mid to late-
1990s were materially false or misleading in several respects, and the Bureau contended that we exercised
insufficient oversight of Southwood’s joint ventures, allegedly evidenced by our failing to obtain or to keep
adequate records, failing to obtain formal appraisals of the land we contributed to the joint ventures, and failing
to consider or investigate real estate development alternatives since the early 1990s. See Item 1.

Effective December 16, 2004, the SEC and the Bureau entered into settlements with the former President
and us. The former President paid the State of New Hampshire an administrative fine of $50,000 and
investigation costs of $60,000. In addition, under the terms of the New Hampshire settlement our shareholders as
of March 31, 2003 received a payment totaling $280,000 as of March 1, 2005. The former President was
financially responsible for $160,000 of that amount and we were responsible for the balance. Qur investigation-
related expenses in 2003 and 2004 were $498,000 and $162,000, respectively.

Recent Developments

Settlement of Pennichuck Rate Relief. In March 2005, we reached a settlement with the New Hampshire
PUC staff on our requested rate relief for Pennichuck that we filed in May 2004. A hearing on the settlement is
scheduled for April 5, and we expect that the New Hampshire PUC will issue a final written decision shortly
thereafter. In September 2004, the New Hampshire PUC authorized an interim annualized increase of $1.3
million effective retroactively for service rendered on and after June 1, 2004. The settlement agreement, if
approved by the New Hampshire PUC, will resuit in a final annualized rate increase of $1.7 million, also
effective as of June 1, 2004. There can be no assurance that the rate relief will be granted.

New Bank Revolving Credit Facility. Effective March 22, 2005, we restructured and expanded our debt
arrangements with Bank of America, increasing our revolving credit facility to $16.0 million from $6.5 million.
The Bank of America facility permits us to borrow, repay and re-borrow, in varying amounts and from time to
time at our discretion through December 31, 2007, subject to the terms and conditions of the facility. The new
arrangement replaced one that was scheduled to expire in April 2005.
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Long-Term Debt. In January 2005, we issued $6.6 million of long-term, fixed rate tax-exempt debt, with $3
million representing new funds and the balance utilized to optionally redeem a like amount of higher cost tax-
exempt debt. In March 2005, we issued $5.0 million of 5-year taxable debt to an insurance company pursuant to
a private placement transaction. A portion of the proceeds ($1.5 million) represented new funds and the balance
($3.5 million) was utilized to fund the maturity of a like amount of higher cost taxable debt.

In late March 2005 we received a commitment from Bank of America, the lender for an existing $4.5
million loan to the Company and Pennichuck East, as co-borrowers, due April 8, 2005, to extend the loan to a
new maturity date on or before December 31, 2009. The extension commitment contains covenants substantially
similar to the Company’s new revolving credit facility as described above. The Company’s board of directors is
expected to approve the transaction subject to New Hampshire PUC approval. We have filed a petition with the
New Hampshire PUC seeking approval of the extension and a related swap transaction to convert the loan to a
fixed interest rate on or before April §, 2005.

Pending Acquisition. In January 2005, we entered into an agreement to acquire three water systems with
approximately 1,100 total customers in the Lakes Region and central part of New Hampshire: the Locke Lake
water system in Barnstead, the Birch Hill water system in Conway and the Sunrise Estates water system in
Middleton, New Hampshire. The acquisition, which is our largest since 1998, is subject to completion of our due
diligence and the approval of the New Hampshire PUC. We expect the acquisition to close by the end of 2005.

Critical Accounting Policies

We have identified the accounting policies below as those policies critical to our business operations and the
understanding of the results of operations. The preparation of financial statements requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and revenues and expenses.
We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Changes in the estimates or other judgments included within these
accounting policies could result in significant changes to the financial statements. Our critical accounting policies
are as follows.

Regulatory Accounting. The use of regulatory assets and liabilities as permitted by Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 71 (“SFAS 717), “Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation”
stipulates generally accepted accounting principles for companies whose rates are established by or are subject to
approval by an independent third-party regulator such as the New Hampshire PUC. In accordance with SFAS 71,
we defer costs and credits on the balance sheet as regulatory assets and liabilities when it is probable that these
costs and credits will be recognized in the rate-making process in a period different from when the costs and
credits were incurred. These deferred amounts, both assets and liabilities, are then recognized in the income
statement in the same period that they are reflected in rates charged to our water utilities’ customers. In the event
that the inclusion in the rate-making process is disallowed, the associated regulatory asset or liability would be
adjusted to reflect the change in our assessment or change in regulatory approval.

We did not defer the costs associated with the terminated merger agreement with Aqua America, the City of
Nashua’s ongoing eminent domain proceeding or the SEC and Bureau regulatory investigations and settlements.

Revenue Recognition. The revenues of our water utility subsidiaries are based on authorized rates approved
by the New Hampshire PUC. Estimates of water utility revenues for water delivered to customers but not yet
billed are accrued at the end of each accounting period. We read our residential customer meters generally on a
quarterly basis and record revenues based on meter reading results. Unbilled revenues from the last meter-
reading date to the end of the accounting period are estimated based on historical usage patterns and the effective
water rates. The estimate of the unbilled revenue is a management estimate utilizing certain sets of assumptions
and conditions. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Accrued unbilled revenues recorded in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 were approximately $1.8 million
and $1.7 million, respectively.
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Our non-utility revenues are recognized when services are rendered or when water is delivered. Revenues
are based, for the most part, on long-term contractual rates.

Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits. Qur pension and other postretirement benefits costs are
dependent upon several factors and assumptions, such as employee demographics, plan design, the level of cash
contributions made to the plans, earnings on the plans’ assets, the discount rate, the expected long-term rate of
return on the plans’ assets and health care cost trends.

In accordance with SFAS No. 87, “Employers Accounting for Pensions” (“SFAS 87”) and SFAS No. 106,
“Employers Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other than Pensions” (“SFAS 106”), changes in pension and
postretirement benefit obligations other than pensions (“PBOP”) associated with these factors may not be
immediately recognized as pension and PBOP costs in the statements of income, but generally are recognized in
future years over the remaining average service period of the plans’ participants.

As further described in Note 6 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements, we revised the
discount rate in 2004 to 5.75% from 6.25% in 2003 to reflect market conditions. In determining pension
obligation and cost amounts, this and other assumptions may change from period to period, and such changes
could result in material changes to recorded pension and PBOP costs and funding requirements. Further, the
value of our pension plan assets, which partially consist of equity investments, were adversely affected by
significant declines in the financial markets from 2000 through 2002, which more than offset positive investment
performance during 2003 and 2004. Fluctuations in market returns may result in increased or decreased pension
costs in future periods. These conditions impacted the funded status of our pension plan at both December 31,
2004 and 2003, and therefore, will also impact pension costs for 2005.

Our pension plan currently meets the minimum funding requirements of the Employee Retirement Income
Security Act of 1974. Although we are not required to make contributions to the plan, we anticipate that we will
contribute approximately $195,000 to the plan in 2005.

Results of Operations—General

In this section, we discuss our 2004, 2003 and 2002 results of operations and the factors affecting them. Our
operating activities, as discussed in greater detail in Note 12 to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements,
are grouped into three primary business segments as follows:

*  Water utility operations,
*  Water management services, and
» Real estate development and investment.

Our consolidated revenues tend to be significantly affected by weather conditions experienced throughout
the year and by sales of major real estate parcels which may occur from time to time. Water revenues are
typically at their lowest point during the first and fourth quarters of the calendar year. Water revenues in the
second and third quarters tend to be greater because of increased water consumption for non-essential usage by
our customers during the late spring and summer months.

Results of Operations—2004 Compared to 2003

Overview. For the year ended December 31, 2004, our consolidated net income was $1.8 million, compared
to net income of $1.2 million in 2003, an increase of approximately 46%. On a per share basis, basic income per
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share was $.76 for the twelve months ended December 31, 2004 as compared to $.52 per share for the year ended
December 31, 2003. The increase in consolidated net income was primarily attributable to

* a temporary rate increase approved by the New Hampshire PUC of 8.9% implemented by Pennichuck
for service rendered on and after June 1, 2004,

* a permanent rate increase of 17.7% approved by the New Hampshire PUC and implemented by
Pittsfield in February 2004; and

* a1.5% increase in the combined utility customer base for the year.

These factors contributed to a 7.6% increase in revenues to $23.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2004
from $21.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2003.

Our costs related to defending against the City of Nashua’s eminent domain proceeding increased
significantly in 2004, which more than offset a decline in the costs related to the SEC and Bureau investigations.
Our eminent domain related expenses were $1.2 million in 2004 compared to $235,000 in 2003. Our
investigation-related expenses in 2004 were $162,000 compared to $648,000 in 2003. Excluding the effect of the
eminent domain and investigation-related expenses, our consolidated net income was $2.6 million, or $1.10 per
share, in 2004 and $1.9 million, or $.80 per share, in 2003.

We believe that a presentation of net income excluding these expenses is useful to investors because it is
indicative of our financial performance in the ordinary course of business. We use net income excluding these
expenses to evaluate our financial performance because we expect that the financial impact of these expenses has
become or, in the relatively near term, will become insignificant. Expenses related to the terminated merger
agreement with Aqua America and the settlement with the SEC and the Bureau will not have a material financial
impact on us in 2005 and beyond. We expect that the financial impact of expenses related to the eminent domain
proceeding will cease within the next two to three years. The material limitation associated with using this
measure is that it does not include all of the expenses required to be included by generally accepted accounting
principles. We compensate for this limitation when using this measure by comparing it directly to net income
calculated according to generally accepted accounting principles.

Water Utility Operations. Our water utility operations include the activities of Pennichuck, Pennichuck East
and Pittstield, each of which is regulated by the New Hampshire PUC. On a combined basis, net income of our
three utilities in calendar year 2004 was approximately $1.6 million, an increase of $288,000 from 2003
principally due to the rate relief received by two of the utility subsidiaries from the New Hampshire PUC in 2004
as well as modest growth in our utility customer base as discussed below.

Our utility operating revenues increased to $19.6 million in 2004, or almost 5% from 2003. For 2004,
approximately 82%, 16% and 2% of our total utility operating revenues were generated by Pennichuck,
Pennichuck East and Pittsfield, respectively, as shown in the following table.

2004 2003 Change
Pennichuck ........ ... . . . i $15,992,000 $15,254,000 $738,000
Pennichuck Bast .. ..ot e e 3,136,000 2,979,000 157,000
Pittsfield . ... 473,000 447,000 26,000
Total .. $19,601,000 $18,680,000 $921,000

The overall increase in water revenues reflects the rate relief granted to Pennichuck and Pittsfield during
2004 as well as a 1.5% increase in the combined utility customer base during the year, resulting in a total
combined customer base of approximately 29,900 as of December 31, 2004. Overall billed consumption of our
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three utilities was relatively flat during the period. Total billed consumption in Pennichuck’s core system as well
as within our Pittsfield system was slightly lower than consumption levels during 2003. Total billed consumption
in Pennichuck East was approximately 1.6% greater than 2003. Total rainfall during 2004 was nearly 42 inches
compared to almost 49 inches of rain during 2003. This decrease in rainfall contributed to the increased
consumption in Pennichuck East, which traditionally experiences higher revenues attributable to irrigation
activities during the summer months.

In May 2003, Pittsfield filed a Notice of Intent to File for Rate Relief in which it sought an increase in its
annual revenues. That rate case was concluded in December 2003, and in January 2004 the New Hampshire PUC
granted an increase of 17.7%, representing additional annual revenues of approximately $73,000. This rate relief
is effective for water bills rendered on and after January 1, 2004. The positive effect of this rate relief was
partially offset by lower consumption due to a wetter than normal summer.

On May 28, 2004, Pennichuck filed a Petition for Rate Relief with the New Hampshire PUC in which it is
seeking an overall increase in its rates, which if granted, would have resulted in approximately $2.3 million of
additional annual revenues. On September 30, 2004, the New Hampshire PUC granted Pennichuck temporary
rate relief of 8.9% effective for service rendered on or after June 1, 2004. This temporary rate relief represents
approximately $1.3 million in annual water revenues and such increase will be adjusted when permanent rates are
set by order of the New Hampshire PUC. In March 2005, we reached a settlement with the New Hampshire PUC
staff on our requested rate relief for Pennichuck that we filed in May 2004. A hearing on the settlement is
scheduled for April 5, and we expect that the New Hampshire PUC will issue a final written decision shortly
thereafter. The settlement agreement, if approved by the New Hampshire PUC, will result in a final annualized
rate relief of $1.7 million, effective retroactively for service rendered on and after June 1, 2004.

For the year ended December 31, 2004, utility operating expenses increased by $563,000, or 3.9%, to $15.1
million as shown in the table below.

2004 2003 Change
Operations & MaiNtenance ... ...........c..ovuriinunnineeon.. $ 9,949,000 $ 9,406,000 $ 543,000
Depreciation & amortization . ...............oeeiiieiaiinei... 3,062,000 2,843,000 219,000
Taxes other than iNCOME taXES .. ... .ottt 2,119,000 2,318,000  (199,000)
TOtal o $15,130,000 $14,567,000 $ 563,000

The operations and maintenance expenses of our water utility business include such categories as:
»  water supply, treatment, purification and pumping,

* transmission and distribution system functions, including repairs and maintenance and meter reading,
and

e customer service and general and administrative functions.
The combined increase in our utilities’ operating expenses over 2003 was chiefly the result of the following:

« approximately $105,000 of increased purification and treatment costs in our core Pennichuck system,
- reflecting higher purchased water, power, chemical and labor costs;

»  $404,000 of increased general and administrative costs primarily relating to costs for employee benefits,
property and casualty insurance and administrative salaries;

» recognition of approximately $218,000 in additional depreciation and amortization charges resulting
from approximately $24.7 million of new capital investment over the past three years; and

+ a$200,000 decrease in local and state property taxes as a result of a $294,000 tax abatement recorded in
the fourth quarter of 2004 from the State of New Hampshire that more than offset the impact of
additional taxable assets placed in service within the utilities” franchise areas during 2004.
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These increased costs are expected to be embedded in our utilities’ future cost of providing water service.
As such, our utilities will continue to seek future rate relief to recover these increasing costs.

For calendar year 2004, 87%, 10% and 3% of the combined utilities’ operating income was provided by
Pennichuck, Pennichuck East and Pittsfield, respectively, compared to 83%, 14% and 3% in 2003.

Water Management Services. The following table provides a breakdown of revenues from our non-
regulated, water-related water management services operations for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003.

2004 2003 Change
Municipal CONtracts ...........c.cvveinieeunnernnnnnans $1,234,000 $1,191,000 $ 43,000
Community system COntracts . .............evueeeen... 339,000 235,000 104,000
Watertight program ........ ... ... ... ... .. ... 223,000 184,000 39,000
Miscellaneous . . ..ot e 136,000 92,000 44,000
Total .o e $1,932,000 $1,702,000  $230,000

The $43,000 increase in contract revenues from municipal contracts primarily resulted from additional
contract fees billed by Service Corporation for unplanned work performed under those contracts. The combined
base annual fees under those two municipal contracts represent approximately $786,000 and $765,000 for the
years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, with the balance of $448,000 and $426,000 representing
fees earned for services performed in addition to the base scope of services for 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Contract revenues from community system contracts for 2004 were $339,000, representing 77 operating
contracts at the end of 2004 compared to 67 such contracts at the end of 2003. The increase in community system
contract revenues for the year resulted from higher fees from unplanned services which totaled $213,000 in 2004
and $116,000 in 2003. For 2004 and 2003, Service Corporation revenues included $223,000 and $184,000,
respectively, for fees earned under its Watertight program. This program provides maintenance service to
residential customers for a fixed annual fee. At the end of 2004, approximately 3,400 customers were enrolled in
this program which was consistent with 2003.

Expenses associated with our contract operations were $1.4 million and $1.5 million for 2004 and 2003,
respectively, comprised primarily of direct costs for servicing our various operating contracts and allocated
intercompany charges for general and administrative support for contract operations. The $100,000, or 6.7%,
decline in expenses from 2003 to 2004 resulted principally from a decrease of $275,000 in allocated
intercompany charges due to a change in the methodology that we used to allocate to Service Corporation the
cost of the resources provided by the Company and Pennichuck. The decrease in the intercompany charge more
than offset an increase in direct expenses of $93,000.

Real Estate Development and Investment. For the year ended December 31, 2004, Southwood’s revenues
were $1.4 million compared to $949,000 in 2003. In the table below, we show the major components of
Southwood’s revenues during 2004 and 2003.

2004 2003

Land sales:
FOlSOM PrOPerty . ... vov ittt ettt $1,224,000  $257,000
Westwood Park LLC ... .. ... i (6,000) 150,000
Other ........ P 80,000 125,000
1,298,000 532,000
Income from unconsolidated equity investments ... ................... 139,000 417,000
TOtaAl .« .ot e $1,437,000  $949,000




The increase in our real estate revenues resulted principally from the sale of an approximately 67 acre parcel
of unimproved land located in Merrimack, New Hampshire. In January 2003, Southwood sold this land to the
Folsom Development Corporation for approximately $1.5 million. Under the terms of that sale, Southwood
received approximately $257,000 in cash and a long-term note receivable of $1.2 miilion. The note, which was
set to mature in October 2005, carried a floating interest rate of prime plus 1.5% and was secured by a first
mortgage on the property. The note was fully paid during the fourth quarter of 2004, resulting in recognition of
the remaining gain of $1.2 million in accordance with the requirements established under Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 66, “Accounting for Sales of Real Estate.”

At December 31, 2004 and 2003, Southwood had a 50% ownership interest in four joint ventures organized
as limited liability companies, as discussed in greater detail under “—Off Balance Sheet Arrangements” and also
under Note 4 in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. The remaining 50% ownership interest in each
joint venture is held by John P. Stabile II, a local developer, with whom Southwood has also participated in four
residential joint ventures during the past 10 years. Southwood uses the equity method of accounting for its
investments in the joint ventures. Consequently, Southwood’s investment is adjusted for its share of earnings or
losses and for any distributions received from the joint venture. For the year ended December 31, 2004,
Southwood’s share of pre-tax earnings and distributions from these joint ventures was approximately $195,000
and $0, respectively, compared to pre-tax earnings of $417,000 and distributions of $67,500 for 2003. The
decline in the joint ventures pre-tax earnings resulted primarily from several tenant vacancies in the HECOP I
and HECOP III buildings. Southwood’s share of pre-tax earnings is included under “Revenues-real estate
operations” in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Income.

Southwood also has a 60% ownership in Westwood Park LLC, a consolidated joint venture formed in 1997
to develop a tract of land in northwest Nashua. During 2003, Westwood received $150,000 representing
escrowed funds from a land sale which occurred in 2000.

Expenses associated with our real estate operations were $282,000 and $104,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. This increase was primarily attributable to increased professional
fees associated with an increased emphasis on management and development of our real estate portfolio during
2004, Southwood’s 2004 operating expenses of approximately $282,000 consisted primarily of $10,000 of
property taxes associated with its remaining landholdings, $86,000 for general and administrative costs and
$178,000 in allocated intercompany charges due to additional Company resources utilized for the planning and
development of our existing land portfolio. We expect that during each of the next several years Southwood will
incur approximately $1 million of expenses for development efforts, salaries and other administrative costs.

Eminent Domain-Related Expenses. Our costs incurred in defending against the City of Nashua’s eminent
domain proceeding increased significantly in 2004 to $1.2 million from $235,000. The increase was primarily
attributable to expenses incurred in a significant public relations campaign opposing the City’s efforts and to
costs incurred in litigating several cases with the City in state and federal courts.

Merger and Other Expenses. Expenses attributable to the terminated merger agreement with Aqua America
and the SEC and Bureau investigations and settlement declined significantly in 2004 compared to 2003. We had
no merger expenses in 2004 compared to $231,000 in 2003, when we terminated the merger agreement with
Aqua America.

Our expenses and settlement costs relating to the SEC and Bureau investigations decreased 69.1% to
$200,000 compared to $648,000 in 2003. Our settlement with the SEC and Bureau that was effective in
December 2004 required a payment made on March 1, 2005 of $280,000 to our shareholders as of March 31,
2003. Our former President was financially responsible for $160,000 of that amount, and we were responsible for
the balance. We expect that our 2005 expenses in connection with implementing the settlement will be
substantially less than our 2004 investigation related expenses.
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Interest Fxpense. For the year ended December 31, 2004, our consolidated interest expense was
approximately $2.0 million which was not a material change from 2003. Interest expense in both years primarily
represents interest on long-term indebtedness of the Company and our three regulated water utilities as discussed
in Note 3 to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Results of Operations—2003 Compared to 2002

Overview. For the year ended December 31, 2003, our consolidated net income was $1.2 million, compared
to net income of $2.3 million in 2002, a decrease of nearly 47%. Basic income per share was $.52 for 2003, a
$.46 per share decrease from 2002. This decrease in consolidated net income was primarily due to

¢ $498,000 of expenses related to the SEC and Bureau regulatory investigations discussed above;

+  $235,000 of expenses related to preliminary steps taken by the City of Nashua prior to commencing in
March 2004 the eminent domain proceeding discussed above; and

»  $231,000 of expenses incurred relating to the terminated merger agreement with Aqua America
discussed above.

Excluding the effect of those expenses in 2003 and 2002, consolidated net income was $2.0 million, or $.84
per share, and $3.5 million, or $1.48 per share, respectively. We believe that a presentation of net income
excluding these expenses is useful to investors because it is more indicative of our financial performance in the
ordinary course of business for the reasons discussed above. See “—Results of Operations—2004 Compared to
2003.”

Further contributing to this decrease in net income was an 8.7% decrease in consolidated revenues primarily
from a decline in both our regulated water and real estate business revenues.

Water Utility Operations. On a combined basis, net income of our three utilities in calendar year 2003 was
approximatety $1.2 million, a decrease of $1.1 million from 2002 principally due to an increase in distribution,
production and administrative costs as discussed below and to a lesser extent by an increase in rainfall during the
summer of 2003.

Utility operating revenues for 2003 decreased to $18.7 million, or less than 1% from 2002. For 2003,
approximately 82%, 16% and 2% of our total utility operating revenues were generated by Pennichuck,
Pennichuck East and Pittsfield, respectively, as shown in the following table.

2003 2002 Change
Pennichuck .......... .. ... ... ... i, $15,254,000 $15,344,000 $ (90,000)
Pennichuck East .............. ... . ... ... .... 2,979,000 3,098,000 (119,000)
Pittsfield ....... ... ... . . 447,000 388,000 59,000
Total ... .. $18,680,000  $18,830,000  $(150,000)

The overall decline in our water revenues reflects the greater level of precipitation experienced in the
regions served by our water utilities during the third quarter of 2003 over the third quarter of 2002. We typically
experience our greatest demand during the third quarter as a result of irrigation activities, particularly in July and
August. Total rainfall during the third quarter of 2003 was nearly 14 inches compared to 7.3 inches in the third
quarter of 2002. As a result, the combined billed consumption of our three utilities declined by 2.9% from 2002.

The negative impact on water revenues was partially offset by the positive effect of a 5.76% rate increase
approved by the New Hampshire PUC and implemented by Pennichuck in April 2002 and a 2.0% increase in
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customers over 2002, resulting in a total combined customer base of approximately 29,400 as of December 31,

2003.

For the year ended December 31, 2003, utility operating expenses increased by $1.8 million, or 13.9%, to

$14.6 million as shown in the table below.

2003 2002 Change
Operations & maintenance ....................... $ 9,406,000 $ 8,057,000  $1,349,000
Depreciation & amortization .. .................... 2,843,000 2,639,000 204,000
Taxes other than income taxes .................... 2,318,000 2,089,000 229,000
Total ... e $14,567,000  $12,785,000  $1,782,000

The combined increase in our utilities’ operating expenses over 2002 was chiefly the result of the following:

*  $800,000 of increased general and administrative costs primarily relating to costs for employee benefits,
property and casualty insurance, directors’ and officers’ liability insurance and administrative salaries;

* recognition of approximately $244,000 in additional depreciation and amortization charges resulting
from approximately $18.6 million of new capital investment over the past three years;

*  $240,000 of increased purification and treatment costs in our core Pennichuck system reflecting higher

~ purchased water, power, chemical and labor costs;

* an increase in local and state property taxes totaling $209,000 as a result of additional taxable assets
placed in service within the utilities’ franchise areas during the past year and a $115,000 tax abatement
recorded in the third quarter of 2002 from the State of New Hampshire; and

« an increase of approximately $150,000 in distribution system expenses as a result of colder temperatures
experienced in the first quarter of 2003 and the utilities’ comprehensive system-wide flushing program
undertaken in the second and third quarters of 2003 as well as increased labor costs.

These increased costs are expected to be embedded in the utilities’” future cost of providing water service. As
such, our utilities will continue to seek future rate relief to recover these increasing costs.

For calendar year 2003, 83%, 14% and 3% of the combined utilities” operating income was provided by
Pennichuck, Pennichuck East and Pittsfield, respectively, which was comparable to 2002.

Water Management Services. The following table provides a breakdown of revenues from our non-
regulated, water-related contract operations for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002:

Municipal COMMTACES ... ..ottt i e e
Community SYStem CORMIACTS ... ... oteiinner e,
Watertight program . ... e
Miscellaneous . .. ...t

2003 2002 Change
$1,191,000 $1,011,000 $180,000
235,000 249,000  (14,000)
184,000 165,000 19,000
92,000 34,000 58,000
$1,702,000 $1,459,000 $243,000

Of the $180,000 increase in contract revenue from municipal contracts, approximately $156,000 resulted
from additional contract fees billed by Service Corporation for unplanned work performed under those contracts.
The combined base annual fees under those two municipal contracts represent approximately $765,000 and
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$741,000 for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively, with the balance of $426,000 and
$270,000 representing fees earned for services performed in addition to the base scope of services for 2003 and
2002, respectively.

Contract revenues from community system contracts for 2003 were $235,000, representing 67 operating
contracts at the end of 2003 compared to 52 such contracts at the end of 2002. The decline in community system
contract revenues for the year resulted from lower fees from unplanned services which totaled $116,000 in 2003
and $140,000 in 2002. For 2003 and 2002, Service Corporation revenues included $184,000 and $165,000,
respectively, for fees earned under its Watertight program. At the end of 2003, approximately 3,400 customers
were enrolled in this program, representing a 27% increase over 2002.

Expenses associated with our contract operations were $1.5 million and $1.2 million for 2003 and 2002,
respectively, comprised primarily of direct costs for servicing our various operating contracts and allocated
intercompany charges for general and administrative support for contract operations. The increased expenses
from 2002 to 2003 resulted principally from (i) additional direct expenses of $146,000 for servicing the operating
contracts and (ii) an increase of $126,000 in allocated intercompany charges due to additional Company and
Pennichuck resources utilized for the operation and development of Service Corporation’s various activities.

Real Estate Development and Investment. For the year ended December 31, 2003, revenues from
Southwood’s real estate activities were $949,000 compared to $3.1 million in 2002. In the table below, we show
the major components of real estate revenues during 2003 and 2002.

2003 2002

Land sales:
Southwood Corporate Park .. ... ot —  $2,427,000
Folsom Property .. ... e $257,000 —
HECOP IV e — 168,000
Westwood Park LLC .. ... 150,000 —
O heT . . 125,000 179,000
532,000 2,774,000
Income from unconsolidated equity investments . . .............c.iiuiiiina...n 417,000 314,000
Total . o $949,000 $3,088,000

As shown above, the decrease in our real estate revenues resulted principally from the sale of approximately
40 acres in Southwood Corporate Park in January 2002 to Winstanley Enterprises Inc. (“Winstanley”) under the
terms of a 1995 option agreement between Southwood and Winstanley.

In January 2003, Southwood sold a 67 acre parcel of unimproved land located in Merrimack, New
Hampshire to the Folsom Development Corporation for approximately $1.5 million. Under the terms of that sale,
Southwood received approximately $257,000 in cash and a long-term note receivable of $1.22 million. The pre-
tax gain on that sale was approximately $1.5 million, of which $257,000, representing the net cash received at
closing, is included in “Revenues—Real Estate Operations” in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of
Income. The remaining gain of approximately $1.2 million, represented by the note receivable, was deferred,
according to the requirements established under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 66,
“Accounting for Sales of Real Estate.”

At December 31, 2003 and 2002, Southwood had a 50% ownership interest in four joint ventures, as
discussed above. See ‘““—Results of Operations—2004 Compared to 2003.” For the year ended December 31,
2003, Southwood’s share of pre-tax earnings and distributions from these joint ventures was approximately
$417,000 and $67,500, respectively, compared to pre-tax earnings of $314,000 and distributions of $175,000 for
calendar year 2002. The improvement in the joint ventures’ pre-tax earnings resulted primarily from interest cost
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savings of $137,000 on the re-refinancing of their mortgages during 2002. Southwood’s share of pre-tax earnings
is included under “Revenues—Real Estate Operations” in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Income.

Southwood also has a 60% ownership in Westwood Park LL.C, a consolidated joint venture formed in 1997
to develop a tract of land in northwest Nashua. During 2003, Westwood received $150,000 representing
escrowed funds from a land sale which occurred in 2000.

Expenses associated with our real estate operations were $104,000 and $1.8 million for the years ended
December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The principal reason for this significant decrease was the recognition
of approximately $1.7 million of direct infrastructure costs associated with the Southwood Corporate Park land
sale in 2002 discussed above. Southwood’s 2003 operating expenses of approximately $104,000 consisted
primarily of $9,000 of property taxes associated with its remaining landholdings and $65,000 for general and
administrative costs.

Eminent Domain-Related Expenses. Our costs incurred in defending against the City of Nashua’s eminent
domain proceeding were $235,000 in 2003. We did not incur any such expenses in 2002.

Merger and Other Expenses. Expenses attributable to the terminated merger agreement with Aqua America
and the SEC and Bureau investigations and settlement declined significantly in 2003 compared to 2002. For
2003, those expenses were comprised of approximately $648,000 for legal and other fees as well as estimated
settlement costs relating to the regulatory- investigations and $231,000 relating to the terminated merger
agreement with Aqua America. For 2002, those expenses related primarily to investment banking, legal and other
fees associated with the terminated merger agreement with Aqua America. We entered into the merger agreement
in April 2002 and terminated it in February 2003.

Interest Expense. For the year ended December 31, 2003, our consolidated interest expense was
approximately $2.0 million which was not a material change from 2002. Interest expense in both years primarily
represents interest on long-term indebtedness of the Company and our three regulated water utilities as discussed
in Note 3 to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Overview. Our primary sources of funds are cash flow from utility operations, cash proceeds from the sale
of portions of our real estate holdings, borrowings pursuant to our bank revolving credit facility and proceeds
from the sale of long-term debt and equity securities. Qur primary uses of funds are capital expenditures
associated with our continuous utility construction program, dividends on our common stock payable as and
when declared by our board of directors and repayments of principal on our outstanding debt obligations,
whether pursuant to scheduled sinking fund payments or final maturities.

For the past several years, cash flows from operations have largely fluctuated based on four factors:
(i) weather, (ii) amount and timing of rate increases, (iit) gain recognized on the sale of Southwood land,
especially during 2000, 2001, 2002 and 2004, as described above, and (iv) significant expenses associated with
the proposed merger with Aqua America that terminated in 2003, the costs associated with the City of Nashua’s
ongoing eminent domain proceeding and costs related to the SEC and Bureau regulatory investigations that were
settled in December 2004, each discussed in more detail above. For 2004, net cash provided by operating
activities decreased by $1.3 million, or 29.8%, for the reasons discussed above under “—Resuits of Operations—
2004 Compared to 2003.” Net cash used in investing activities decreased by $1.8 million, or 25.1%, compared to
2003 due to reduced capital expenditures and an increase in the proceeds from the sale of land.

For the period 2000 to 2004, the majority of our funds were provided through a combination of cash flow
from utility operations and sales of portions of our real estate holdings. We supplemented these sources of funds
beginning in the fourth quarter of 2003 and throughout 2004 by drawing down a portion of the funds available
under our bank revolving credit facility. In addition, we also generated approximately $85,000 during the period
2000 to 2004 through the issuance of new shares of common stock under our Dividend Reinvestment Plan.
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2005 to 2008 Capital Expenditures Program. We expect our capital expenditures to increase substantially
during the 2005 to 2008 period, as discussed elsewhere in this prospectus. See “Risk Factors” and “Our
Business.” The following table summarizes our capital expenditures and other funds requirements for the 2005 to
2008 period.

2005 2006 2007 2008
Utility plant additions .......................... $14,500,000 $23,300,000 $11,400,000 $5,100,000
Other ... 2,400,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000
Total ... $16,900,000 $25,300,000 $13,400,000 $7,100,000

2001 2002 2003 2004
Utility plant additions .......................... $ 8,200,000 $ 8,400,000 $ 9,000,000 $7,500,000
Other ... ... — — —_— —_
Total ... $ 8,200,000 $ 8,400,000 $ 9,000,000 $7,500,000

Our water utilities are capital intensive businesses. We are engaged in continuous construction programs at
our utility subsidiaries primarily for water distribution system repair, rehabilitation and replacement, water
storage facility maintenance and additions, and more recently, water supply security. For the period 2001 to
2004, capital expenditures for water distribution, storage, and supply totaled $33.1 million, or approximately $8.3
million per year. For 2005 and the period 2006 to 2008, comparable.expenditures are expected to total $14.5
million and $39.8 million in current dollars, respectively, or approximately $13.6 million per year.

In addition to our recurring programs, we are embarking on two major new construction initiatives. The first
is an upgrade of our water treatment plant that is necessary in order for the plant to meet more stringent, federally
mandated safe drinking water standards. The water treatment plant project will commence in the second half of
2005 and is expected to be completed during 2008. Capital expenditures associated with the water treatment plant
upgrade project are expected to total approximately $8.9 million for 2005 and $21.6 million for 2006 to 2008.

The second is the installation of a radio meter reading (RMR) system. The RMR system will enable a switch
from quarterly to monthly billing and will facilitate the introduction of conservation-based pricing during periods
of extremely heavy consumption (the summer months). We will pilot the RMR system in 1,000 residential
customer premises in 2005 with a full system roll-out, based upon the success of the pilot, scheduled for 2006
and 2007. Capital expenditures for the RMR system are expected to be $125,000 in 2005 and $2.1 million for
2006 to 2008.

In addition to the upgrade of our water treatment plant and the installation of the RMR system, we expect to
incur other capital expenditures aggregating $5.5 million in 2005 and $16.1 million for 2006 to 2008. These other
expenditures include, in part, potential acquisition of small regional regulated water utility systems, consistent
with our record of prior acquisitions, and potential real estate-related acquisitions by Southwood.

2005-2008 External Financing Requirements. Due to the significant increases in our utility construction
program commencing in 2005-2008 and as described above, we expect that only 25% to 30% of our funding
requirements will be provided by cash flow from our operations (after payment of dividends on common stock).
We expect that the balance of our funding will be obtained through long-term debt arrangements and the issuance
of common stock. Our timing and mix of future debt and equity financing is subject to a number of factors
including, but not limited to (i) debt and equity market conditions; (ii) the need to maintain a balanced capital
structure in order to preserve financial flexibility and to manage the overall cost of capital; and (iii) certain debt
issuance covenants as contained in our outstanding loan agreements. There is no assurance that we will be able to
complete all or any of the future debt and equity financings described below or to complete them on a timely
basis.
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The receipt of timely and adequate rate relief will also be critically important in providing us cash flow from
operations and the ability to access credit and permanent capital, both debt and equity, at reasonable costs and
terms. We are unable, however, to predict the outcome of our future rate relief filings.

Recent and Contemplated Long-Term Debt Arrangements. In January 2005, we issued $6.6 million of long-
term, fixed rate tax-exempt debt, with $3.0 million representing new funds and the balance utilized to optionally
redeem a like amount of higher cost tax-exempt debt.

In March 2005, we issued $5.0 million of S-year taxable debt to an insurance company pursuant to a private
placement transaction. A portion of the proceeds ($1.5 million) represented new funds and the balance
($3.5 million) was utilized to fund the maturity of a like amount of higher cost taxable debt.

Effective March 22, 2005, we restructured and expanded our debt arrangements with Bank of America,
increasing our revolving credit facility to $16.0 million from $6.5 million. The Bank of America facility permits
us to borrow, repay and re-borrow, in varying amounts and from time to time at our discretion through December
31, 2007, subject to the terms and conditions of the facility. The new arrangement replaced one that was
scheduled to expire in April 2005.

In late March 2005 we received a commitment from Bank of America, the lender for an existing
$4.5 million loan to the Company and Pennichuck East, as co-borrowers, due April 8, 2005, to extend the loan to
a new maturity date on or before December 31, 2009. The extension commitment contains covenants
substantially similar to the Company’s new revolving credit facility as described above. The Company’s board of
directors is expected to approve the transaction subject to New Hampshire PUC approval. We have filed a
petition with the New Hampshire PUC seeking approval of the extension and a related swap transaction to
convert the loan to a fixed interest rate on or before April 8, 2005.

We also have access, from time to time, to low cost long-term debt from two sources. First, we have applied
and will continue to apply for long-term debt funds directly from the State of New Hampshire under the State’s
Revolving Fund program (SRF). Funds provided under the SRF loans carry long-term fixed costs at interest rates
set with reference to various Municipal Bond Indices, which rates are generally below the rates for comparable
U.S. Treasury securities of like maturity. As of March 29, 2005, we had three outstanding SRF loans aggregating
approximately $850,000. In the first quarter of 2005, we received a preliminary commitment from the State for a
new SRF loan in the amount of $750,000. The new SRF loan is expected to close at or around mid-year 2005.

Our other source of low cost, long-term debt is tax-exempt debt issued on our behalf by the New Hampshire
Bond Finance Authority (BFA). The BFA acts solely as a passive conduit to the tax-exempt bond markets with
us acting as the obligor for the associated tax-exempt debt. At March 29, 2005 we had six outstanding BFA (or
its predecessor entity) issues aggregating $18.6 million.

2005 to 2008 Tax-Exempt Bond Financing Plan. We intend to raise approximately $50 million in one or
more BFA debt financings in 2005 through 2008. The BFA recently gave preliminary approval for the financing.
The proposed amount would cover substantially all of our capital expenditures for 2005 through 2008
(approximately $50 million of a total of $54.3 million), including our water treatment plant upgrade project,
various water distribution, storage, supply maintenance, rehabilitation and replacement projects and the proposed
RMR system. Such financing requires certain approvals including, but not limited to, an allocation of a portion of
the State’s annual volume cap for certain types of tax-exempt bond offerings including offerings of the type we
are contemplating. There is no assurance that we will be able to complete the contemplated BFA financings on a
timely basis or at all.

Significant Financial Covenants. Our new revolving credit facility contains three financial maintenance
tests which must be met on a quarterly basis. These maintenance tests are as follows:

(1) our Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio must exceed 1.2x;
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(2) our Tangible Net Worth must exceed $25 million plus new equity proceeds; and
(3) our Funded Debt must not exceed 65% of our Total Capitalization.

Also, various Pennichuck and Pennichuck East loan agreements contain tests that govern the issuance of
additional indebtedness. These issuance tests are as follows:

(1) to issue short-term debt, our Total Debt must not exceed 65% of our Total Capital (unless the new
short-term debt is subordinated to existing debt);

(2) toissue long-term debt, our Funded Debt must not exceed 60% of our Property Additions; and

(3) to issue long-term debt, our Earnings Available for Interest divided by our Interest Expense must
exceed 1.5x.

Under Pennichuck’s most restrictive covenant, approximately $5.9 million of its retained earnings was
unrestricted for payment or declaration of common dividends to the Company at December 31, 2004.

As of March 29, 2005, we were in compliance with all of our financial covenants.

Contemplated Equity Offering. We are planning to conduct a public offering of our common stock during
the second quarter of 2005 pursuant to a registration statement that we expect to file with the SEC on or about
March 31, 2005. We anticipate that the net proceeds to us from that offering will be approximately $10 million to
$12 million. We intend to use the net proceeds primarily to fund utility capital additions and for other general
corporate purposes. Pending such use, we plan to repay indebtedness under our revolving credit facility with
Bank of America. There can be no assurance that the offering will be completed in 2005 or at any later time.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

At December 31, 2004 and 2003, Southwood had a 50% ownership interest in four joint ventures organized
as limited liability companies. The remaining 50% ownership interest in each of the joint ventures is held by
John P. Stabile II, a local developer with whom Southwood has also participated in four other residential joint
ventures during the past ten years. The formation of these joint ventures provides Southwood with an opportunity
to develop its landholdings in such a manner as to provide for a long-term income stream through commercial
rental activities. Additionally, the joint ventures, as legal entities, mitigate the financial risk associated with sole
ownership of developed commercial properties by Southwood. The joint ventures, whose assets and liabilities are
not included in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets, own certain commercial office buildings on
which there are outstanding mortgage notes totaling $9.0 million and $9.2 million as of December 31, 2004 and
2003, respectively. Distributions from the joint ventures have from time to time during the past ten years been a
significant source of funds to support our dividend payments to shareholders. We account for Southwood’s
investment in the four current joint ventures using the equity method of accounting, meaning that we recognize
on a current basis 50% of each joint venture’s operating results. Those results reflect ongoing carrying costs such
as maintenance and property taxes. Information about our revenues, expenses and cash flows arising from the
joint ventures is included in Note 4 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Contractual Obligations

The following table discloses aggregate information about our contractual obligations as of December 31,
2004, and the periods in which payments are due, adjusted for the implementation of our expanded and
restructured credit facility with Bank of America described above:

Less than 1
Total year 1to 3 years 3 to S years After 5 years

Long-termdebt ................... $30,610,214 $13,668,152(0 $1,137,263 $1,938,594 $13,866,205
Capital leases .. ................... 25,484 21,109 4,375 — —
Operating leases .................. 215,022 53,079 107,917 52,263 1,763

Pension and post retirement
contributions @ .. ............... 2,776,000 188,000 395,000 443,000 1,750,000
Purchase obligations @ ............. — — — — —
Total ................... $33,626,720 $13,930,340 $1,644,555 $2,433,857 $15,617,968

(1) Includes $13.3 million of debt that had been due within less than one year as of December 31, 2004, which
had either been refinanced with long-term debt or was the subjet of firm commitments to refinance with
long-term debt.

(2) Pension and post retirement contributions cannot be reasonably estimated beyond 2005 and may be
impacted by such factors as return on pension assets, changes in the number of plan participants and future
salary increases.

(3) Pennichuck has a Wholesale Water Agreement (the “Agreement”) with Manchester (NH) Water Works
(“MWW?) to purchase water from MWW through six metering points for various community water systems
owned by Pennichuck and Pennichuck East. The Agreement, amended in February 2003, has a 25-year term
and provides for an average daily flow to Pennichuck and Pennichuck East of up to 2.1 million gallons per
day (“mgd”) with a maximum daily flow rate of 3.5 mgd. Pennichuck and Pennichuck East purchase water
at a rate established by MWW for all of its non-Manchester customers. The current rate, effective January 1,
2005, is $0.87 per one hundred cubic feet (“ccf”) in areas where fire protection is not provided by MWW
and $1.14 per ccf where fire protection is provided. The Agreement requires that Pennichuck and
Pennichuck East pay a one-time source development charge (“SDC”) of $1.14 for each gallon of the 2.1
million gallons of the average daily flow. To date, Pennichuck and Pennichuck East had achieved a
combined peak average daily flow of 894,311 gallons. The SDC is re-calculated annually to reflect any
increases in average daily flow and, if the flow is increased, Pennichuck and Pennichuck East pay the SDC
for the incremental demand. Any incremental SDC is payable in January of each year. SDC payments began
in 1989 and as of December 31, 2003, the total SDC paid to MWW was $1,050,100, which allows the
Company to draw an average daily flow of up to 921,140. The incremental SDC paid in 2003 and 2002 was
$30,585 and $88,320, respectively. There was no SDC due in January 2004 since the average daily flow in
2003 was less than the previous high average usage level established in 2002. Any future payments to
MWW would be subject to an increase in average daily flow. No future obligations under this contract are
disclosed since such future payments are based on future water consumption levels that are affected by
weather conditions and customer growth.

In April 2004, Pennichuck entered into a long-term lease arrangement with HECOP III, LLC for
approximately 13,000 square feet of office space located in Merrimack, New Hampshire which serves as our
headquarters. Southwood holds a 50% ownership interest in HECOP III, LLC and the remaining ownership
interests are held by John P. Stabile II, who is also the holder of ownershlp interests in three other LLC joint
ventures with Southwood as discussed above.

Pension Plan. We maintain a defined benefit pension plan covering substantially all of our employees. The

accounting for this plan under FASB 87, “Employer’s Accounting for Pensions,” requires that we use key
assumptions when computing the estimated annual pension expense. These assumptions are (i) the discount rate
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applied to the projected benefit obligation, (ii) the long-term rate of return on plan assets and (iii) the long-term
rate of future increases in compensation. A lower discount rate increases the present value of our pension
obligations and our annual pension expense. We reduced our discount rate from 6.25% to 5.75% for 2004,
reflecting the overall change in market conditions. Our expected long-term rate of return on pension plan assets is
based on the plan’s expected asset allocation, expected returns on various classes of plan assets as well as
historical returns. We assumed that our long-term rate of return on pension plan assets was 8% in 2004 and 2003
and 9% in 2002. In addition, we assumed an increase in participant compensation levels of 3%, 4% and 5% in
2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. These key assumptions are reviewed annually with our actuary and
investment advisor and are updated to reflect the plan’s experience. Actual results in any given year will often
differ from our actuarial assumptions because of economic and other conditions which may impact the amount of
pension expense we recognize.

At December 31, 2003, we had a minimum pension liability of approximately $78,000, representing the
excess of our pension liabilities over our plan assets. However, during 2004, the rate of return on plan
investments was approximately 17.2% compared to a negative rate of return of 7.4% in 2003. As a result, the
market value of our plan assets was slightly lower than our accumulated benefit obligation by approximately
$606,000 at December 31, 2004. We recorded an adjustment of approximately $528,000 which resulted in a
maximum pension liability of approximately $606,000 at the end of 2004 and a credit, net of taxes, of
approximately $317,000 to Other Comprehensive Income. Future adjustments to Other Comprehensive Income
will be affected by changes in realized returns on pension plan assets, contributions to pension assets by us and
changes in discount rates.

Dividend Reinvestment and Common Stock Purchase Plan. We offer a Dividend Reinvestment and
Common Stock Purchase program that is available to our shareholders and residential utility customers residing
in New Hampshire. Under this program, our shareholders may reinvest all or a portion of their common
dividends into shares of common stock at prevailing market prices. We also accept optional cash payments to
purchase additional shares at 100% of the prevailing market prices. This program has provided us with additional
common equity of $38,000 in 2004 and $47,000 in 2002. No additional common equity was provided with
respect to this program during 2003.

Environmental Matters. Our water utility subsidiaries are subject to the water quality regulations set forth by
the EPA and the New Hampshire Department of Environmental Services (“DES”). The EPA is required to
periodically set new maximum contaminant levels for certain chemicals as required by the federal Safe Drinking
Water Act (“SDWA?”). The quality of our treated water currently meets or is better than all standards set by the
EPA and the DES. However, increased monitoring and reporting standards have led to additional operating costs
for us. Any additional monitoring and testing costs arising from future EPA and DES mandates should eventually
be recovered through water rates in our utilities” future rate filings.

Pennichuck’s filtration plant in Nashua is impacted by the Interim Enhanced Surface Water Treatment Rule,
which established a new turbidity standard of 0.3 Nephelometric Turbidity Units or NTU. Turbidity is a measure
of sediment or foreign particles that are suspended in the water. Pennichuck has committed approximately $1.6
million in its 2005 capital budget to complete the design phase required for this project. An additional $7.1
million has been allocated in its 2005 budget to initiate construction of required improvements. As discussed
earlier, Pennichuck estimates the total cost to comply with this new standard to be approximately $32 million
over the next three years although such estimates are subject to any future changes in the Rule and changes in
design and construction that may be required.

Three of Pennichuck’s small community water systems have wells that produce water with arsenic levels in
excess of the new standard of 10 parts per billion which is effective in February 2006. Pennichuck will install
arsenic treatment systems at these locations, however, the expenditures necessary to comply with this standard
are not expected to be a material part of our future capital expenditure program. Pennichuck’s remaining
community water systems have wells that produce water meeting the new arsenic standard.
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Capital expenditures associated with complying with federal and state water quality standards have
historically been recognized and approved by the New Hampshire PUC for inclusion in our water rates, though
there can be no assurance that the New Hampshire PUC will approve future rate increases in a timely or
sufficient manner to cover our capital expenditures.

New Accounting Standards

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,” as
amended and revised in December 2003 (“FIN 46R”), which addresses the consolidation of a variable interest
entity (“VIE”) by a business enterprise that is the primary beneficiary. A VIE is an entity that does not have
sufficient equity investment at risk to permit it to finance its activities without additional subordinated financial
support, or whose equity investors lack the characteristics of a controlling financial interest. The primary
beneficiary of a VIE is the enterprise with the majority of the risks or rewards associated with the VIE.
Application of FIN 46R is required for all potential VIEs that are referred to as special-purpose entities for
periods ending after December 15, 2003 and, for all other types of entities that are potential VIEs that are not
referred to as special purpose entities, the consolidation requirements apply for periods ending after March 15,
2004. We have assessed the impact of FIN 46R and determined that we do not have any VIEs for which the
Company is the primary beneficiary requiring consolidation of the entity as of December 31, 2004. For all other
types of entities, the Company is still assessing the impact that FIN 46R will have on its consolidated financial
position.

In December 2004, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123R, “Share Based
Payment” (“SFAS 123R”). SFAS 123R addresses the accounting for transactions in which a company receives
employee services in exchange for (a) equity instruments of the company or (b) liabilities that are based on the fair
value of the company’s equity instruments or that may be settled by the issuance of such equity instruments. SFAS
123R also eliminates the ability to account for share-based compensation transactions using Accounting Principles
Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and requires that such transactions be
accounted for using a fair-value-based method. SFAS 123R is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2005.
The Company is currently assessing the impact that SFAS 123R will have on its consolidated financial statements.
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Item 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Information regarding market risk of the Company and our subsidiaries is presented in “Note 3—Debt” and
“Note 5—Fair Value of Financial Instruments” in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements included
elsewhere in this report.
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Item8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of Pennichuck Corporation:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of
income, stockholders’ equity, other comprehensive income and cash flows present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Pennichuck Corporation and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the
results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2004
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our
opinion, the financial statement schedules listed in the index appearing under Item 15(a)(2) on page 80, present
fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related
consolidated financial statements. These financial statements and financial statement schedules are the
responsibility of the Company’s management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements and financial statement schedules based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in
accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Boston, Massachusetts

March 3, 2005
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PENNICHUCK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

December 31,

2004 2003
ASSETS
Property, Plant and Equipment
Land . oo $ 1,136 $ 1,196
BUildings ..ottt e 21,912 21,016
EQUIPIENt . ... ot e 96,803 92,556
Construction Work In Progress . . .....vu ettt 2,840 718
122,691 115,486
Less accumulated depreciation . ........... ... ..t e (31,805) (29,759)
90,886 85,727
Current Assets
Cashandcashequivalents . ........ ... . .. . . . i i i, 969 391
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $37 in 2004 and 2003 ................. 1,478 1,332
Unbilled revenue ... ...ttt i e e e e 1,787 1,663
Refundable income taxes ........ ..ot e 313 1,145
Materials and supplies, at COSt . ... .. . e 886 726
Prepaid expenses and other curtent assets . ...............iueenneininaennn.. 955 519
6,388 5,776
Other Assets
Deferred 1and costs . ... e e 1,017 849
Deferred charges and otherassets ................ i 3,094 3,087
Investment in real estate partnerships . ............ . ... il 742 547
Notereceivable . ... ... ... e —_ 1,224
4,853 5,707
TOtal ASSELS . . o v et e et $102,127 $ 97,210

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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PENNICHUCK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS—CONTINUED
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

December 31,

2004 2003
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Stockholders’ Equity
Common stock—$1 par value
Authorized—11,500,000 shares in 2004 and 2003
Issued—2,414,569 and 2,397,092 shares, respectively
QOutstanding—2,413,617 and 2,396,140 shares, respectively ................... $ 2415 $ 2,397
Additional paid in capital . ... ... ... . 15,631 15,208
Retained earnings . .......c.vitiitii i e e 12,933 13,178
Accumulated other comprehensive income ......... .. ... ool (690) (473)
30,289 30,310
Less treasury stock, at cost; 952 shares . ........ ... i (138) (138)
30,151 30,172
MINOTItY INETESE . . . o\ ittt e et et e e e e e 6 8
Preferred stock, no par value, 100,000 shares authorized,
no shares issued in 2004 and 2003 .. ... ... — —_
Commitments and contingencies (Note 9)
Long-term debt, less current portion . .. ...ttt e 16,946 26,879
Current Liabilities
Line of credit . .. .o 3,800 2,000
Current portion of long-termdebt . ...... ... .. .. 9,889 368
ACCOUNES Payable . ... 1,083 913
Accrued interest payable ... .. i e 369 370
Other current liabilities . ... ... .. . . 2,227 1,773

17,368 5,424

Deferred Credits and Other Reserves

Deferred INCOME taXeS . . ..t vttt e e e 9,735 8,552
Deferred gainonlandsale .. ... ... ... — 1,224
Deferred investment tax creditS . ... ... ... e 933 966
Regulatory liability ....... e e e e 1,119 1,107
Post-retirement health benefit obligation ......... .. .. ... .. .. .. .. .. ... ..... 643 560
Accrued pension liability .. ...... ... . e 606 78
Other Habilities . ... e e 335 345
13,371 12,832

Contributions in Aid of Construction . ..........o. ittt et e 24,285 21,895
Total Stockholders” Equity and Liabilities . ... ...t tur e, $102,127 $97,210

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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PENNICHUCK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

Years Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Revenues
Water utility OPErations . . . ... .ovvteeeriit e $ 19,601 $ 18,680 $ 18,830
Real estate operations ...............cooiiriinenninann.. 1,437 949 3,088
Water management SEIVICES ... ... vvvv e ereernenaernnnnnan 1,932 1,702 1,459
Other . ... e 55 57 45

23,025 21,388 23,422
Operating Expenses

Water utility operations . ... 15,130 14,567 12,785
Real estate Operations . ............oenineeninerennenannan. 282 104 1,750
Watc_ar MAaNAZEMENt SEIVICES . .. oo\ v et et et e e e 1,369 1,522 1,239
16,781 16,193 15,774
Operating InComie .. ..., e 6,244 5,195 7,648
Eminent domain €Xpenses .. . .......covtieuntit e (1,202) (235) —
Merger and other expenses ........... ... ... (162) (879) (1,946)
Other INCOME . . . .ot e e e e e e 31 56 65
Interest @XPense . ... oo ot e e (1,952} (1,969) (1,978)
Income Before Provision for Income Taxes .......... ..., 2,959 2,168 3,789
Provision for Income Taxes . ...........c.oviriniiiiianinnnnn. 1,140 888 1,450
Net Income Before Minority Interest ............................ 1,819 1,280 2,339
Minority Interest in Loss (Earnings) of Westwood Park LLC,
et Of (X ... e 1 (33) 2
NetINCOME . .ottt e e $ 1,820 $ 1,247 % 2,341
Earnings Per Common Share:
BaSiC ot $ 76 $ 52 3 98
Diluted .. ... e $ 76 % 52 0% .97
Weighted Average Shares Qutstanding:
BasiC ... e e 2,401,367 2,392,919 2,390,942
Diluted . ... ..o 2,409,324 2,398,198 2,411,781

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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PENNICHUCK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(In thousands, except share data)

Accumulated
Common Common Additional Other
Stock— Stock— Paid-in Retained Treasury Comprehensive
Shares Amount Capital Earnings Stock Income Total
Balances at December 31,

2001 ... 2,389,019 $2,389 $15,098 $13,544  $(128) $(308) $30,595
Netincome ................ 2,341 2,341
Dividend reinvestment plan . . . 1,789 2 45 47
Common dividends declared—

$.813pershare ........... (1,944) (1,944)
Exercise of stock options . . ... 2,583 2 27 (16) 13
Other comprehensive

Income ........... ..., (619) (619)
Balances at December 31,

2002 .. 2,393,391 2,393 15,170 13,941 (144) 927) 30,433
Netincome ................ 1,247 1,247
Common dividends declared— '

$.84 pershare ............ (2,010) (2,010)
Exercise of stock options .. ... 3,701 4 38 6 48
Other comprehensive

MCOME .. .vvrevnnannnn. 454 454
Balances at December 31,

2003 ... 2,397,092 2,397 15,208 13,178 (138) 473) 30,172
Netincome ................ 1,820 1,320
Dividend reinvestment plan . .. 1,527 2 36 38
Common dividends declared—

$.86pershare ............ (2,065) (2,065)
Contribution of common stock

topensionplan ........... 15,750 16 384 400
Exercise of stock options .. ... 200 3 3
Other comprehensive

income ................. (217) 217)
Balances at December 31,

2004 ... ... 2,414,569 $2,415 $15,631 $12,933  $(138) $(690) $30,151

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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PENNICHUCK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(In thousands)
Years Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
NetinCOME . ..ottt e e e e e e e e $1,820 $1,247 $ 2341
Other comprehensive income:
Additional minimum pension liability adjustment ................. ... ... (656) 581  (1,020)
Unrealized gain (loss) onderivatives ...............ciiiinineennen... 4 (84) (476)
Reclassification of net losses realized innetincome ...................... 275 257 244
Income tax benefit (expense) relating to other comprehensive loss .. ......... 160 (300) 633
(217) 454 (619)
Comprehensive InCome ... ... ... ittt $1,603 $1,701 $1,722

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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PENNICHUCK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)
Years Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
Operating Activities:
NELINCOME . . .ttt e e e e e et $1,820 $1,247 $2,341
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortization . ... ........uvuuiiierrineinaeenn.. 3,117 2914 2,775
Gainonsaleofland ......... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... (1,224) 257) (765)
Amortization of deferred investment tax credits .................... (33) (33) 33)
Provision for deferred income taxes ............................. 1,183 1,918 863
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Increase in accounts receivable and unbilled revenue ................ (270) (142) (258)
(Increase) decrease in refundable incometaxes ... .................. 832 811 (209)
Increase in materials and supplies .............. ... ... ... ... ... (160) (137) (225)
Increase in prepaid EXpenses ... ........iiiii i (436) 29) (10)
Increase in deferred charges and other assets ...................... (379) (572) (139)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued expenses .. ....... 553 487 (631)
Increase (decrease)inother ........... ... .. ... . ... .. ... . . .. ..., 533 (320) 201
Net cash provided by operating activities ............ ... oiiiiii ... 5,536 4,265 4,000
Investing Activities:
Purchases of property, plant & equipment . .............. .. ... ... ... .. (5,438) (7,181) (5,274)
Contributions in aid of CONSIIUCHON . .. .o v vttt 140 178 157
Decreaseinrestrictedcash . ....... ... ... .. .. — 151 —
Net decrease innotesreceivable . ........ ... . i — 605 221
Proceeds fromsaleof land .. ... ... ... . . 1,224 257 2,426
Net change in investment in real estate partnerships and deferred
Jand COSES ..ottt (364) (399) (269)
Net cash used in investing activities . ......... .. cuetnirinnenennrnenannn. (4,438) (6,389) (2,739)
Financing Activities:
Advancesonlineof credit ....... ... ... ... . . 1,800 2,000 —
Payments on long-termdebt ... ... ... ... ... (368) (365) (351)
Proceeds from long-term borrowings . . ......... ..t i 71 399 145
Proceeds from issuance of common stock and dividend reinvestment plan ... 41 47 61
Dividends paid ... ... e e (2,064) (2,010) (1,944)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities .. ........................ (520) 71  (2,089)
Decreaseincash ... . e e e 578  (2,053) (828)
Cashatbeginningof year .. ... ... .. i 391 2,444 3272
Cashatendofyear ......... .ottt i § 969 $ 391 $2444

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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PENNICHUCK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1—Significant Accounting Policies

Pennichuck Corporation (the “Company”) is an investor-owned holding company located in Nashua, New
Hampshire with three wholly owned operating subsidiaries, Pennichuck Water Works, Inc. (“Pennichuck”),
Pennichuck East Utility, Inc. (“Pennichuck East”) and Pittsfield Aqueduct Company, Inc. (“Pittsfield”), involved
in regulated water supply and distribution in Nashua and towns throughout southern and central New Hampshire;
non-regulated, water-related services conducted through Pennichuck Water Service Corporation (the “Service
Corporation”); and real estate management and development activities conducted through The Southwood
Corporation (“Southwood™).

Pennichuck, Pennichuck East and Pittsfield (collectively referred to as the “Company’s utility subsidiaries™)
are engaged principally in the gathering and distribution of potable water to approximately 29,900 customers in
southern and central New Hampshire. The Company’s utility subsidiaries, which are regulated by the New
Hampshire Public Utilities Commission (the “NHPUC?”), are subject to the provisions of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. (“SFAS”) 71, “Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation.” The
Service Corporation is involved in providing non-regulated, water-related services to over 8,600 customers while
Southwood owns, manages and develops real estate.

(a) Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly
owned subsidiaries. All intercompany transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

(b) Investment in Joint Ventures

Southwood uses the equity method of accounting for its investments in joint ventures in which it does not
have a controlling interest. Under this method, Southwood records its proportionate share of earnings or losses
which are included under “Revenues-Real estate operations™ with a corresponding increase or decrease in the
carrying value of the investment. The investment is reduced as cash distributions are received from the joint
ventures. See Note 4, “Equity Investments in Unconsolidated Companies” for further discussion of its equity
investments.

(c) Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

(d) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in banks, demand deposits and investments in short-term money
market funds with initial maturities, when purchased, of three months or less. Included in cash and cash
equivalents are funds received in escrow pursuant to the sale of a building in accordance with the tax
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PENNICHUCK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

free exchange provisions of Internal Revenue Code Section 1031. This building previously served as the
Company’s corporate office until its relocation to a new leased facility on April 30, 2004, The Company sold this
building on November 9, 2004 for approximately $800,000 and is currently identifying like-kind property
acquisitions in settlement of the Internal Revenue Code provisions.

(e) Inventory

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost, using the average cost method, or market.

() Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment, which includes principally the water utility assets of the Company’s utility
subsidiaries, is recorded at cost plus an allowance for funds used during construction on major, long-term
projects. The provision for depreciation is computed on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives
of the assets including property funded with contributions in aid of construction. The useful lives range from 5 to
84 years and the average composite depreciation rate was 2.66% in 2004, 2.67% in 2003 and 2.69% in 2002.
Depreciation expense in 2004, 2003 and 2002 was $3,137,658, $2,937,358 and $2,730,486, respectively. The
components of Property, Plant and Equipment at December 31, 2004 and 2003 are as follows:

Useful
2004 2003 Lives
($000°s)
Utility Property:
Land . ... e $ 1,125 $ 1,125 —_
Sourceof supply ....... . . 22,422 20,579 34-75
Pumping & purification . .. ......... . ... ... oL 9,401 9,183 15-35
Transmission & distribution .......................... 60,170 57,692 40-84
General, including services, meters, hydrants and other
EQUIPIMENT . .. ottt et 26,717 24,907 7-75
Construction work in progress .................c.c.o.... 2,840 718
Total Utility Property ....... ... ... ... ... ... ... 122,675 114,204
Non-utility Property . ..........0 e 16 1,282 5
Total Property, Plant & Equipment ... .............. $122,691 $115,486

Maintenance, repairs and minor improvements are charged to expense as incurred. Improvements which
significantly increase the value of property, plant and equipment are capitalized.

(g) Treasury Stock

Treasury stock held by the Company represents shares tendered by employees as payment for existing
outstanding options. Treasury stock received is recorded at its fair market value when tendered. Any such
treasury stock held by the Company is not retired but instead is held until its ultimate disposition has been
decided.

(h) Allowance for Funds Used During Construction (“AFUDC”)

AFUDC represents a non-cash credit to income with a corresponding charge to plant in service. AFUDC
amounts reflect the cost of borrowed funds and, if applicable, equity capital when used to fund major plant
construction projects. During 2004 and 2003, total AFUDC credited to income was approximately $93,000 and
$4,000, respectively. There were no AFUDC amounts credited to income during 2002.
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(i) Revenues

Standard charges for water utility services to customers are recorded as revenue, based upon meter readings
and contract service, as services are provided. The majority of the Company’s water revenues are based on rates
approved by the NHPUC. Estimates of unbilled service revenues are recorded in the period the services are
provided. Provision is made in the financial statements for estimated uncollectible accounts.

(j) Deferred Charges and Other Assets

Deferred charges include certain regulatory assets and costs of obtaining debt financing. Regulatory assets
are amortized over periods being recovered through authorized rates. Deferred financing costs are amortized over
the term of the related bonds and notes. The Company’s utility subsidiaries have recorded certain regulatory
assets in cases where the NHPUC has permitted, or is expected to permit, recovery of these costs over future
periods. Currently, these regulatory assets are being amortized over periods ranging from 3 to 25 years. Deferred
charges and other assets consist of the following:

2004 2003
($000’s)
Regulatory assets:
Source development charges . ........... i $ 587 % 669
Miscellaneous studies . ... ..... ... 628 742
Supplemental retirement Plan @sSet . . . ... ...ttt 323 253
Sarbanes-OxXIey COStS .. ... 152 140
Other .. 153 55
1,843 1,859
Financing Costs ... ...ttt 547 501
Franchise feesand other ...... ... .. .. .. . . . . . . . 431 444
Filtration grantreceivable . ........ .. ... 273 283
Total .o $3,094  $3,087

Sarbanes-Oxley costs totaling approximately $152,000 and $140,000 represent costs incurred during 2004
and 2003, respectively, relating to the implementation and compliance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002. The Company has received approval from the NHPUC related to the future recoverability of such
costs.

(k) Deferred Land Costs

Included in deferred land costs is Southwood’s original basis in its landholdings and any land improvements
which are stated at the lower of cost or market.

() Notes Receivable

In January 2003, Southwood sold a tract of land to an unaffiliated regional developer for approximately $1.5
million. Under the terms of that sale, Southwood conveyed approximately 66.8 acres of land in exchange for
approximately $257,000 in cash and a long-term note receivable of $1,224,000. The note, which was scheduled
to have matured in October 2005, carried a floating interest rate of prime plus 1.5% and was secured by a first
mortgage on the property. The pretax gain on that sale was approximately $1.48 million, of which $257,000,
representing the net cash received at closing, is included in “Revenues-Real estate operations” for 2003. The
entire balance of the note was paid in 2004 resulting in the recognition of a gain for the full note receivable
balance of $1,224,000 in accordance with the requirements established under Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 66, “Accounting for Sales of Real Estate.”
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(m) Income Taxes

Income taxes are recorded in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes” using the
accrual method and the provision for federal and state income taxes is based on income reported in the financial
statements, adjusted for items not recognized for income tax purposes. Provisions for deferred income taxes are
recognized for accelerated depreciation and other temporary differences. A valuation allowance is provided to
offset any net deferred tax assets if, based upon available evidence, it is more likely than not that some or all of
the deferred tax assets will not be realized. Investment credits previously realized for income tax purposes are
amortized for financial statement purposes over the life of the property, giving rise to the credit.

(n) Contributions in Aid of Construction (“CIAC”)

Under construction contracts with real estate developers and others, the Company’s regulated subsidiaries
receive non-refundable advances for the costs of new main installation. The regulated subsidiaries also credit to
Plant and CIAC the fair market value of developer installed mains and any excess of fair market value over the
cost of community water systems purchased from developers. The CIAC account and related plant asset are
amortized over the life of the property.

(0) Reclassifications

Certain amounts in 2003 have been reclassified to conform with the 2004 financial statement presentation.

(p) Earnings Per Share

The Company computes earnings per share following the provisions of SFAS No. 128, “Earnings per
Share.” Basic net income per share is computed using the weighted-average number of common shares
outstanding for a period. Diluted net income per share is computed using the weighted-average number of
common and dilutive potential common shares outstanding for the period. For the years ended December 31,
2004, 2003 and 2002, dilutive potential common shares consisted of outstanding options.

The dilutive effect of outstanding stock options is computed using the treasury stock method. Calculations
of the basic and diluted net income per common share and potential common shares are as follows:

2004 2003 2002
(In thousands, except share and
per share data)

Basic earnings pershare ........................... $ 076 § 052 §$ 0.98
Dilutive effect of unexercised stock options ............ — — (0.01)
Diluted earnings pershare . . ........ ..o, ... $ 076 $ 052 % 0.97
Numerator:

BasiCNELINCOME . . .o v e oottt et 3 1,820 % 1,247 % 2,341

Diluted netincome .............c.vuinininn.. $ 1,820 § 1,247 % 2,341
Denominator:

Basic weighted average shares outstanding ........ 2,401,367 2,392,919 2,390,942

Dilutive effect of unexercised stock options . ....... 7,957 5,279 20,839
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding . .......... 2,409,324 2,398,198 2,411,781
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(q) Stock-Based Compensation

In December 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and Disclosure—an
amendment to FASB Statement No. 1237 (“SFAS 148”) which provides for alternative methods of transition for a
voluntary change to the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation. In
addition, SFAS 148 requires prominent disclosures in both interim and annual financial statements about the
method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation. At this time, the Company does not intend to
change to the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based compensation. On a pro forma basis, the
Company’s net income and earnings per share for the years ended December 31 would have been reduced to the
following amounts had compensation cost for the plan been determined consistent with SFAS No. 123,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.”

2004 2003 2002

(In thousands, except share and
per share data)

Net income:
Asreported . ... $1,820 $1,247  $2,341
Less:
Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined
under fair value based method for all awards, net of related

RS oottt e e e e (242) (181) (145)

Pro forma netinCome . . ..ot o ettt e e e e e $1,578 $1,066 $2,196
Basic net income per share:

AsTEported . ... e $076 $052 $ 098

Proforma ..........iiinm i e $066 $045 $ 092
Diluted net income per share:

ASTEPOItEd . ..ot e $076 $052 $097

Proforma . ........cooiiiiiiii e $ 065 $044 $ 091

Note 2—Income Taxes

The components of the federal and state income tax provision at December 31 are as follows:

2004 2003 2002
($000°s)
Federal ... ... i $ 920 $ 728 $1,180
State . e e 253 193 303
Amortization of investment tax credits ............. .. .. ... ..., (33) (33) (33)
' $1,140 $ 888  $1450
Currently payable/(receivable) . ............ ... 0., $(425) $(769) $ 436

DEFEITEd . ...\ o e e 1565 1,657 © 1014
| $1,140 $ 888 $1,450
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The following is a reconciliation between the statutory federal income tax rate and the effective income tax
rate for 2004, 2003 and 2002:
2004 2003 2002

Statutory federalrate ........... .. .. .. 34.0% 34.0% 34.0%
State tax rate, net of federal benefit ........... ... ... ... . ... ... .. 5.6 6.0 5.3
Permanent differences ......... ... ... (6) 7.0 —
Amortization of investmenttax credits .. ....... ...t 1.1 (1.5 (.8
O R . o e e 6 (39 (2)

Effective tax rate ........ P 38.5% 41.6% 38.3%

For federal income tax purposes, the Company has a net operating loss in 2004. The 2004 net operating loss
will be carried back to 2002. At December 31, 2004, the Company had approximately $362,000 of alternative
minimum tax credits. At December 31, 2003, the Company had approximately $93,000 of alternative minimum
tax credits resulting from a net operating loss in 2003. During 2004, the Company received federal income tax
refunds totaling approximately $1.1 million related to prior year net operating loss carrybacks.

The Company has a regulatory liability related to income taxes of $1,118,898 and $1,107,119 at December
31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. This represents the amount of deferred taxes recorded at rates higher than
currently enacted rates and the impact of deferred investment tax credits on future revenue.

The temporary items that give rise to the net deferred tax liability at December 31, 2004 and 2003 are as
follows:

2004 2003
($000°s)
Liabilities:
Propertyrelated . ..... ... .ot $11,869  $10,977
O T . e e 706 625
12,575 11,602
Assets:
Investment tax credits and other ........ ... .. ..ttt 1,119 1,107
Taxes on contributions in aid of construction .. .......................... 327 461
Alternative minimum tax carry-back ....... e e 362 93
Deferred gainonlandsale . .............. ... ... o L — 485
Merger-related andother .. ........ ... ... .. 1,332 1,204
3,140 3,350
Valuation allowance . ............. ..ttt i (300) (300)

Net deferred tax Habilities . . ... ...t $ 9735 §$ 8,552

The Company has recorded a valuation allowance of approximately $300,000 relating to the tax benefit of
contribution deduction carry forwards expected to be taken within the next two years (the remaining statutory
carry forward period for federal tax purposes related to its charitable contribution of land in 2001). However,
there is no assurance that future taxable income will be sufficient to fully realize such tax benefits given current
Internal Revenue Code limitations. Furthermore, in the event that the Internal Revenue Service examines any of
the years affected by this carry forward, the Company’s ability to utilize such deductions could be altered as well.
When the Company is able to determine that it is more likely than not that these benefits will be realized in full
or in part, the related valuation allowance will be adjusted accordingly.
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Note 3—Debt
Long-term debt at December 31 consists of the following:
2004 2003
($000°s)
Unsecured notes payable to various insurance companies:
9.10% due April 1,2005 .. ..o $ 3,500 $ 3,500
7.40% due March 1,2021 .. ... o e 8,000 8,000
Unsecured Industrial Development
Authority Revenue Bond 1988 series 7.50%, due July 1,2018 .................... 910 975
Unsecured Business Finance Authority
1994 Revenue Bond (series A), 6.35% due December 1,2019 .................... 2,345 2,480
Unsecured Business Finance Authority
1994 Revenue Bond (series B), 6.45% due December 1,2016 .................... 1,205 1,320
Unsecured Business Finance Authority
1997 Revenue Bond, 6.30%, due May 1,2022 .. ... .. ... .. . ... i - 4,000 4,000
Secured notes payable to bank, floating rate, due April 8,2005 ........... ... .. ...... 6,000 6,000
Unsecured New Hampshire State Revolving Fund
Loan, 3.80%,due May 1,2022 . ... ... . . . 384 404
Loan, 2.315%, due April 1, 2013 ... ... . e 121 133
Loan, 3.976%, due January 1, 2025 ... ... e 346 399
Secured loan, 7.99%, due October 1, 2007 ... ... .. i 6 —_
Secured loan, 5.00%, due October 1, 2005 . ... .. 18 36
26,835 27,247
Less Current POrtion . . . . ..o e ot ittt e e e 9,889 368

$16,946 $26,879

The 1994 Series A and B Bonds may be redeemed in whole or in part at the Company’s option at a premium
not to exceed 2% and may be redeemed at par on or after December 1, 2008. The notes and bonds payable
require periodic interest payments (either monthly or semi-annually) which are based on the outstanding
principal balances. The aggregate principal payment requirements subsequent to December 31, 2004 are as
follows:

Amount
“($000°s)
2005 e e e $ 9,889
2006 . 371
2007 e e e e e e 771
2008 .. e e 969
2000 e e e e e e e 969
2010 and thereafter . .. ..ot e 13,866
$26,835

The note and bond agreements require, among other things, the maintenance of certain financial ratios and
restrict the payment or declaration of dividends by Pennichuck. Under Pennichuck’s most restrictive covenant,
cumulative common dividend payments or declarations by Pennichuck subsequent to December 31, 1989 are
limited to cumulative net income earned after that date plus $1,000,000. At December 31, 2004, approximately
$5.9 million of Pennichuck’s retained earnings were unrestricted for payment or declaration of common
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dividends. In addition, substantially all of the assets owned by Pennichuck East, totaling approximately
$18.0 million and $16.6 million at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, are secured as collateral under a
certain $4.5 million note with a local bank dated April 8, 1998.

The Company has available a $6.5 million unsecured, revolving credit facility with a bank. Borrowings
under the revolving credit facility bear interest at a variable rate equal to the lesser of the bank’s cost of funds or
the LIBOR plus 125 basis points. The revolving credit facility is subject to renewal and extension by the bank
annually on June 30 of each year. At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company had outstanding borrowings
under the revolving credit facility totaling $3.8 million and $2.0 million, respectively.

The Company has two interest rate financial instruments which qualify as derivatives under Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”
(“SFAS 133”). These financial derivatives have been designated as cash flow hedges under the provisions of
SFAS 133. The financial instruments are used to mitigate interest rate risks associated with the Company’s
$6.0 million floating-rate loans. The floating rates, which are based on LIBOR plus 65 basis points, were 3.0%
and 1.82%, at the end of 2004 and 2003, respectively. The agreements provide for the exchange of fixed rate
interest payment obligations for floating rate interest payment obligations on notional amounts of principal. The
two derivative agreements have a fixed rate of 6.50%. The notional amount of the debt for which interest rate
exchanges have been entered into under these agreements is $6.0 million at December 31, 2004 and 2003. The
fair value of the financial derivatives, included in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet as “Other
liabilities,” was approximately $67,000 and $345,000 at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Changes in
the fair values of those derivatives are deferred in accumulated other comprehensive income.

Note 4—Equity Investments in Unconsolidated Companies

At December 31, 2004 and 2003, Southwood had a 50 percent ownership interest in four limited liability
companies (“LLCs”). The remaining 50 percent ownership interest in each of the LLCs is held by John Stabile,
principal owner of H.J. Stabile & Son, Inc. (“Property Manager”). The LLCs, whose assets and liabilities are not
included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets, own certain commercial office buildings on which
there are outstanding mortgage notes totaling approximately $9.0 million and $9.2 million at December 31, 2004
and 2003, respectively. '

Southwood uses the equity method of accounting for its investments in the four LLCs and accordingly, its
investment is adjusted for its share of earnings or losses and for any distributions or dividends received from the
LLCs. For the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, Southwood’s share of earnings in the LLCs was
approximately $195,000, $417,000, and $314,000, respectively. Southwood’s share of earnings and losses are
included under revenues-real estate operations in the accompanying consolidated statements of income. For the
year ended December 31, 2004, there were no cash distributions received from the LLCs. For the years ended
December 31, 2003 and 2002, cash distributions received from the LLCs were approximately $68,000 and
$175,000, respectively. The principal assets of the LLCs are the land, buildings and leasehold improvements, the
total of which at December 31, 2004 and 2003 was approximately $9.9 million and $9.7 million, respectively.

In accordance with the terms of the LLCs’ operating agreements, the Property Manager charges the LLCs a
management fee to offset its real estate management costs. The management fee is calculated as a percentage of
the LL.Cs’ monthly rent. For the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, total management fees charged
to the LLCs were approximately $66,000, $73,000 and $90,000, respectively. The Property Manager also leases
approximately 14,000 square feet of office and garage space in one of the LLCs for which it made annual lease
payments of approximately $202,000 in 2002, 2003 and 2004.
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Note 5—Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair value of certain financial instruments included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as
of December 31, 2004 is as follows:

Carrying Fair
Value Value
(3000°s)
Long-termdebt . .........c.ciiiiiiiii $26,835  $29,801
INLEreSt LAtE SWAPS « .. o vttt e e et e et e e e $ ©®7) $ (67

There are no quoted market prices for the Company’s various long-term debt issues and thus, their fair
values have been determined based on quoted market prices for securities similar in nature and in remaining
maturities. The fair value for long-term debt shown above does not purport to represent the amounts at which
those debt obligations would be settled. The fair market value of the Company’s interest rate swaps represents
the estimated cost to terminate these agreements as of December 31, 2004 based upon current interest rates.

The carrying values of the Company’s cash, restricted cash, and short-term notes receivable approximate
their fair values because of the short maturity dates of those financial instruments.
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Note 6—Benefit Plans
Pension Plan

The Company has a non-contributory, defined benefit pension plan (the “Plan’) covering substantially all
full-time employees. The benefits are formula-based, giving consideration to both past and future service as well
as participant compensation levels. The Company’s funding policy is to contribute annually up to the maximum
amount deductible for federal tax purposes. Contributions are intended to provide not only for benefits attributed
to service to date but also for those expected to be earned in the future. The Plan uses December 31 for the
measurement date to determine its projected benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets. The Plan uses
January 1 as the measurement date to determine net periodic benefit costs. The changes in benefit obligation and
plan assets were as follows:

December 31,

2004 2003
(3000°s)
Change in benefit obligation: ,
Benefit obligation, beginning of year ................. ... .. ... e $ 4,762 $4,555
SEIVICE COSE .« .\ vttt ettt et et e e e e et e 251 201
INTErest COSt .o v vt P 307 270
Actuanial (Zain)/loSs . . .. oo e 702 (147)
Benefits paid, excluding eXpenses .. ...ttt (154) (@117
Benefit obligation,end of year ......... ... ... i $ 5,868 $4,762
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets, beginningof year ... ........ ... ... o i, $ 3,787 $3,156
Actual return (loss) on plan assets, NEL ... ... ... it 308 537
g 1) 111 A (10) an
Employer cOntribution . .. ...t e 400 222
Benefits paid, excluding eXpenses .. .......... . e (154 (117)
Fair value of plan assets,endof year . .............. ..., $4331 $3,787
The plan’s funded status was as follows:
Funded status .. ... ... o it e $(1,538) $ (975)
Unrecognized net actuarial 10ss .. ... .. . . i 2,042 1,378
Unrecognized transition @sSet . . ... ... .....euuitrn et e (28) (42)
Unrecognized prior SEIVICE COSL . ..ottt ittt e et en s 3 3
Net amount reCOZIZEA . ...\ttt e e $ 479 $ 364
Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets consisted of:
Accrued retirtement liability ... ... .. e $ (606) $ (78)
Accumulated other comprehensiveincome ......... ... .. i i i 1,082 439
Intangible asSet . . .. ..o 3 3
Net amount recognmized .. ...... ...ttt $ 479 3 364
2004 2003
Weighted average assumptions used to value benefit obligations were as follows:
Discountrate at theend of theyear . ....... ... ... . i 575% 6.25%
Rate of compensation increase at theendof theyear ............................. 3.00% 3.00%
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2004 2003 2002

($000’s)
Components of net periodic benefit cost were as follows:
SEIVICE COSE ot vttt ettt et $251 $201 $216
INterest COSt . ... ov ittt e e 307 270 271
Expected return on plan assets . .. ... e (312) (252) (296)
Amortization of prior service Cost . . ... ..t e 1 1 1
Amortization of transition @sset . .. ... . i e e (14) (14) (14)
Recognized net actuarial loss .. . ......... o i i 52 60 30
Net periodic benefit COSt .. ...\ $285 $266 §208
Weighted average assumptions used to calculate net periodic benefit cost were as
follows:
Discount rate at the beginningoftheyear ................ ... ... . ... ..., 6.25% 6.50% 7.50%
Expected return on plan assets for the year (net of investment expenses) ........ 8.00% 8.00% 9.00%
Rate of compensation increase at the beginning of the year ................... 3.00% 4.00% 5.00%

Our expected long-term rate of return on pension plan assets is based on the Plan’s expected asset
allocation, expected returns on various classes of Plan assets as well as historical returns.

The projected benefit obligation, the accumulated benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets for the
pension plan were $5,868,270, $4,936,704 and $4,330,699, respectively, as of December 31, 2004 and
$4,761,896, $3,864,799 and $3,786,666, respectively, as of December 31, 2003. Since the market value of the
Company’s Plan assets was lower than the Plan’s accumulated benefit obligation, the Company recorded a
minimum pension liability of approximately $606,000 and $78,000 at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
This resulted in an increase in the additional minimum liability for the Plan of approximately $528,000 in 2004.

In establishing its investment policy, the Company has considered the fact that the pension plan is a major
retirement vehicle for its employees and the basic goal underlying the establishment of the policy is to provide,
that the assets of the plan are prudently invested. Accordingly, the Company does not consider it necessary to
adopt overly aggressive investment approaches that may expose the pension assets to severe depreciation in asset
values during adverse markets. The investment policy should provide a high probability of generating a rate of
return equal to at least 4% in excess of inflation over a long-term time horizon. The Company’s investment
strategy applies to its post retirement plans as well as its pension plan.

The pension plan’s investment strategy utilizes several different asset classes with varying risk/return
characteristics. The following indicates the asset allocation percentage of the fair value of the plan assets as of
December 31 as well as the pension plan’s targeted allocation range:

Asset
Allocation
2004 2003 Range
Equities .. ...t e 47% 47%  30% -55%
Fixed inCome . ...ttt ittt einas 53% 53%  45% - 90%
Other .. _ — 0% - 5%
Total .. e 100% _@%

On September 8, 2004, the Company contributed 15,750 shares of its common stock into the Plan. The
value of this contribution, based on the closing price of the Company’s common stock on that date, was
approximately $400,000. While not required to make contributions to the Plan, the Company anticipates that it
will contribute approximately $195,000 to the Plan in 2005.
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The estimated benefit payments for the years after 2004 are as follows:
(in thousands)

2005 $ 146
2000 . 140
00T 138
2008 148
2000 163
2010-2004 .. o 1,209

$1,944

Defined Contribution Plan

In addition, the Company has a defined contribution plan covering substantially all full-time employees.
Under this plan, the Company matches 100% of the first 3% of the employee’s salary contributed to the plan. The
matching employer’s contributions, recorded as operating expenses, were approximately $121,000, $115,000 and
$115,000 for 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Other Post-retirement Benefits

The Company provides post-retirement medical benefits to current and retired employees through separate
post-retirement medical plans for its union and non-union employees. Future benefits, payable to current
employees upon reaching normal retirement date, are calculated based on the actual percentage of wage and
salary increases earned from the plan inception date to normal retirement date. The post retirement plans use
December 31 for the measurement date to determine their projected benefit obligation and fair value of plan
assets. These plans use January 1 as the measurement date to determine net periodic benefit cost except that the
post employment plan, which was initiated during 2003, used October 1 as such measurement date during its first
year of implementation. The changes in benefit obligation and plan assets were as follows:

December 31,
2004 2003
($000°s)
Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation, beginning of theyear ............................. $1,293  § 992
SeIVICE COSL & ottt e e 39 59
Interest COSt .. ... o 54 69
Actuarial l08S .. .o e e (338) 173
Benefits paid, excluding expenses ............ .. i, (28) —
Benefit obligation,end of year ....... ... ... ... .. $1,020 $1,293
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December 31,

2004 2003
($000’s)
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets, beginning of theyear ............................ $ 371 $ 184
Actual return (loss) on plan assets, net .............. i 20 31
Employer contribution . .. .. ... e 108 156
Benefits paid, excluding expenses .............. . il (28) —
Fair value of plan assets,endof year ............ ... ... ..., $ 471 371
The plan’s funded status was as follows:
Funded Status . .. ..ottt e e e $(549)  $(922)
Unrecognized net actuarial loss ....... ... .. ... . i 2) 327
Unrecognized prior SErvice COSt .. ...ttt e 38 52
Net amount 1eCOZMZED . .. ..\ it ittt ittt cia e e $(513) $(543)
Weighted average assumptions used to value benefit obligations were as follows:
Discountrate attheendoftheyear . ............ ... ... ... ... ... ...... 575%  6.00%
Rate of compensation increase at the end of theyear . .................... ... 3.00% 3.00%

2004 2003 2002

$(000°s)
Components of net periodic benefit cost were as follows:
SEIVICE COSE o vttt ettt e et e et e et e e $ 39 $59 § 33
INtEreSt COSE . ottt e e e e 54 69 59
Expected return on plan assets .. ... e e GO @2 (15
Amortization of prior sService Cost . ....... ... i 15 15 15
Amortization of transition obligation . ......... .. ... ... . o — — 30
Recognized net actuarial 1oss .. ... i i — 8 —
Net periodic benefit Cost . ... ... . it e $ 78 $129 $122
Weighted average assumptions used to calculate net periodic benefit cost were as
follows:
Discount rate at the beginningof theyear ...... ... ... ... .. ... .. ... ... ... 6.25% 6.50% 7.50%
Expected return on plan assets for the year (net of investment expenses) .. ........ 8.00% 8.00% 9.00%
Rate of compensation increase at the beginning of the year .................... 3.00% 4.00% 5.00%
Healthcare cost trend rate at the beginning of theyear ..................... ... 9.00% 9.00% 9.00%

A one percent change in the assumed health care cost trend rate would not have had a material effect on the
post-retirement benefit cost or the accumulated post-retirement benefit obligation in 2004.

The following indicates the asset allocation percentages of the fair value of total Plan assets for each major
type of post-retirement plan assets as of December 31 as well as targeted percentages and the permissible range:

Asset
Allocation
2004 2003 Range
Equities .. ... i e 56% 54% 30% — 55%
Fixedincome ........ ... . ... . . i 40% 42%  45% - 90%
Other .. . e e 4% __4% 0% - 5%

TOtal ..ot 100%  100%
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The assets of the Company’s PBOP Plan are held in VEBA trusts.

The estimated benefit payments for the years after 2004 are as follows:

(in thousands)

2005 L e $ 33
2006 .. 32
2007 e 30
2008 s e 34
2000 . 39
2010-2014 .. 282

$450

In 2003, the Company began offering post-employment medical benefits for employees who retire prior to
their normal retirement age and who have met certain age and service requirements. The benefits, which are
offered through a separate plan, allow continuity of coverage at group rates from the employee’s retirement date
until the employee becomes eligible for Medicare. The plan became effective October 1, 2003. If the employee
elects to remain on the Company’s group medical plan, the employee will be responsible for reimbursing the
Company for the full monthly premium. Upon request, the spouse of the employee may remain on the
Company’s group medical plan as long as the full monthly premium is reimbursed to the Company. The post-
employment plan is funded from the general assets of the Company. The changes in benefit obligation and plan
assets were as follows:

2004 2003
(3000°s)
Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation, beginning of year ........... ... . i $ 351 $ 359
Service cost . ... i e 51 5
INtErest COSE . . .ottt e 34 5
Actuarial gain . ... ... e 241 (18)
Benefits paid, excluding expenses ............c..ciiiii i e — —
Benefit obligation, endof year ........... .. .. ... .. .. $ 677 $ 351
The plan’s funded status was as follows:
Funded status . ... $(677) $(351)
Unrecognized net actuarial gain . ....... ... oot 216 (18)
Unrecognized prior SEIVICE COSt . . ... v vttt et e 331 353
Net amount recognized ... ... ... . ittt e $(130) $ (16)
2004 2003
Weighted average assumptions used to value benefit obligations were as follows:
Discountrate attheendoftheyear.......... .. .. .. .. ... ... . L. 5.75% 6.00%
Health care cost trend rate atthe end of theyear . ... .. ... ... ... ... ... .., 9.00% 9.00%
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2004 2003
$(000°s)
Components of net periodic benefit cost were as follows:
SEIVICE COSE & oottt e e ettt et e et e e e $ 51 $5
INterest COSE . . oo\ttt e e 34 5
Amortization of prior service cost . .. ... .. .. 22 6
Recognized net actuarial loss .. ....... . ... . .. 6 —
Net periodic benefit COSt ... ...ttt e $113 $16
Weighted average assumptions used to calculate net periodic benefit cost were as
follows:
Discount rate at the beginning of theyear .................. . ... . ... ..., 6.25% 6.00%
Health care cost trend rate at the beginning of theyear ....................... 9.00% 9.00%

The estimated benefit payments for the years after 2004 are as follows:

(in thousands)

2005 L $ 9
2006 .. e 24
200 e 31
2008 . e e 28
2000 L 31
2000-2014 o 259
$382 .

In December 2003, the FASB issued Staff Position (FSP) 106-1, “Accounting and Disclosure Requirements
related to the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 (the “Act”). The Act
provides for prescription drug benefits for retirees over the age of 65 under a new Medicare Part D program. For
employers like the Company, who currently provide retiree medical programs for former employees over the age
of 65, there are potential subsidies available which are inherent in the Act. The Act potentially entitles these
employers to a direct tax-exempt federal subsidy.

In May 2004, the FASB issued FSP 106-2. This FSP provides guidance on the accounting for the effects of
the Act. The guidance indicates that, when an employer initially accounts for the subsidy, the effect on the
accumulated postretirement benefit obligation should be accounted for as an actuarial gain (assuming no plan
amendments are made). In addition, since the subsidy would affect the employer’s share of its plan’s costs, the
subsidy is included in measuring the costs of benefits attributable to current service. Therefore, the subsidy
should reduce service cost when it is recognized as a component of net periodic postretirement benefit cost. This
FSP became effective on July 1, 2004. The Company has concluded, in consultation with its actuarial service
provider, that the adoption of this FSP did not have a material effect on the Company’s combined financial
statements.

Note 7—Stock Based Compensation Plans
The Company provides its officers and key employees incentive and non-qualified options on a

discretionary basis pursuant to two stock option plans, the 1995 Stock Option Plan (“1995 Plan™) and the 2000
Stock Option Plan (“2000 Plan™).
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The 1995 Plan, as amended, permits the granting of both incentive stock options and non-qualified stock
options to employees at a price per share equivalent to the market value at the date of the grant. Options become
exercisable immediately following the grant and expire ten years from the date of grant. The number of shares of
common stock subject to issuance under the 1995 Plan is 75,000. At December 31, 2004, no further shares were
available for future grant under the 1995 Plan.

The 2000 Plan, as amended, provides for the granting of both incentive stock options and non-qualified
stock options to employees at a price per share equivalent to the market value at the date of the grant. Options
generally become exercisable immediately following the grant and expire ten years from the date of grant. The
number of shares of common stock subject to issuance under the 2000 Plan is 150,000. At December 31, 2004,
116,601 shares were available for future grant under the 2000 Plan.

In accordance with SFAS No. 123, the Company accounts for stock-based compensation for employees
under APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” using the intrinsic value method and
has elected the disclosure-only alternative under SFAS No. 123.

The following table summarizes the activity under the stock option plans for the three-year period ended
December 31, 2004:

Weighted
Average
Number of Price per Price
Shares Share per Share
Options outstanding at December 31,2001 .. ........................ 69,803 $8.12-$23.25 $20.15
Granted ... ... e, 18,175 27.00 27.00
Exercised ... ... (2,583) 8.12-15.75 11.33
Canceled . ....... . e — — —
Options outstanding at December 31,2002 . ............. ... .. ... ... 85,395 8.12-27.00 21.88
Granted ... ... e e e 50,000 24.10-26.85 25.20
Exercised . ... (11,701) 8.12-23.25 17.49
Canceled ... ... e e (13,856) 20.39-27.00 24.47
Options outstanding at December 31,2003 ............ ... ... ... .... 109,838 8.12-27.00  23.53
Granted ... e e 24,900 28.32 28.32
Exercised ... ... e (200) 21.00 21.00
Canceled ... . e — — —
Options outstanding at December 31,2004 .. ... ...... ... ... ....... 134,538  $8.12-$28.32  $24.43
Exercisable at December 31,2004 . ... .. ... .. 124,538  $8.12-$28.32  $24.46
Exercisable at December 31,2003 . ....... ... 890,838 $8.12-$27.00 $23.40
Exercisable at December 31,2002 . ...... ... . 85,395 $8.12-$27.00 $21.88

69




PENNICHUCK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

The following table summarizes information about options outstanding and exercisable at December 31,
2004:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Number of Remaining Exercise Number of Exercise
Exercise Shares Contractual Life Price Shares Price
Price Outstanding (in years) per Share Outstanding per Share
$812 ... 501 2.00 $ 8.12 501 $ 8.12
$863 ............... 251 1.00 $ 8.63 251 $ 8.63
$950 ..., 501 3.00 $ 9.50 501 $ 950
$1575 ... 5,231 4.00 $15.75 5,231 $15.75
$2039 ... ' 20,069 6.00 $20.39 20,069 $20.39
$2325 ..., 19,835 5.00 $23.25 19,835 $23.25
$24.10 ...l 30,000 8.58 $24.10 20,000 $24.10
$2685 ... 20,000 8.75 $26.85 20,000 $26.85
$27.00 ...l 13,250 7.00 $27.00 13,250 $27.00
$2832 ... ..., 24,900 9.00 $28.32 24,900 $28.32
134,538 124,538

The weighted average fair value per share of options granted during 2004, 2003 and 2002 was $8.24, $6.59
and $7.99, respectively. The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the following
assumptions:

Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
Risk-free interestrate ............ ... .cuiiierervenenen... 3.12% 3.30% 4.60%
Expected dividend yield ............ ... ... . ... .. 3.04% 342% 2.90%
Expected lives .. ... .. i S years 5 years 5 years
Expected volatility ............. ... ... 39.00% 36.00% 36.00%

Note 8—Shareholder Rights Plan

On April 20, 2000, the Company’s Board of Directors adopted a Rights Agreement and declared a dividend
of one preferred share purchase right (“Right”) for each outstanding share of common stock, $1.00 par value.
Each Right entitles the shareholder to purchase one one-hundredth of a share of Series A Junior Participating
Preferred Stock of the Company at an exercise price of $85.00 per share, subject to adjustment. The Rights
become exercisable in the event that a person or group acquires, or commences a tender or exchange offer to
acquire, more than 10% of the Company’s outstanding common stock. In that event, each Right will entitle the
holder, other than the acquiring party, to purchase a number of common shares of the Company having a market
value equal to two times the Right’s exercise price. If the Company is acquired in a merger or other business
combination at any time after the Rights become exercisable, the Rights will entitle the holder to purchase a
certain number of shares of common stock of the acquiring company having a market value equal to two times
the Right’s exercise price. The Rights are redeemable by the Company at a redemption price of $.01 per Right at
any time before the Rights become exercisable. The Rights will expire on April 19, 2010, unless previously
redeemed.
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Note 9—Commitments and Contingencies

Termination of Merger Agreement

On April 29, 2002, the Company entered into a definitive agreement with Philadelphia Suburban
Corporation (“PSC”) to merge into a wholly owned subsidiary of PSC with shareholders of the Company
receiving shares of PSC in the merger. PSC subsequently changed its name to Aqua America, Inc. The merger
was subject to several conditions, including approval by the shareholders of the Company and approval by the
New Hampshire Public Utilities Commission (“NHPUC”). The review of the merger by the NHPUC and
approval by the Company’s shareholders was expected to occur in the first half of 2003.

However, on November 26, 2002, the Board of Aldermen of the City of Nashua, New Hampshire (the
“City”) adopted a resolution calling for a referendum to authorize the City to pursue the acquisition, by an
eminent domain proceeding or otherwise, of all or a portion of Pennichuck’s water system serving the residents
of the City and others. The City’s voters passed the referendum on January 14, 2003. On February 4, 2003, the
Company announced that it had reached an agreement with PSC to terminate PSC’s pending acquisition of the
Company. The decision to terminate the merger agreement resulted from the City’s ongoing efforts to acquire
Pennichuck’s utility plant and property by eminent domain. Expenses associated with the PSC merger transaction
and related issues totaled approximately $231,000 and $1,946,000 for the years ended December 31, 2003 and
2002, respectively. There were no expenses associated with the merger transaction during 2004. The 2003 and
2002 expenses consisted of the following:

2003 2002
(5000°s)
Investment banking fees .. ... ...t $— $1,086
Legal and other fees relating to merger and regulatory approval ................ 231 860
Total merger and related costs ...... ... .o $231  $1,946

Under current Internal Revenue Code regulations, costs relating specifically to the merger transaction may
be deductible for federal income tax purposes in the year in which the merger is terminated. As a result, the
Company realized approximately $1.5 million of merger-related direct costs for federal income tax purposes in
2003.

Pending Municipalization Efforts

On March 25, 2004, the City filed a petition with the NHPUC under the New Hampshire utility
municipalization statute, NHRSA Ch. 38, seeking to take by eminent domain all of the utility assets of the
Company’s three utility subsidiaries. Under NHRSA Ch. 38, if the NHPUC makes a finding that it is in the
public interest to do so, a municipality may take the assets of a utility providing service in that municipality. The
NHPUC is also charged with determining the amount of compensation for the assets that it finds it is in the
public interest for the municipality to take. On January 21, 2005, the NHPUC issued an order ruling, among other
things, that (1) the City does not have the legal authority to pursue a taking of the assets of the two Pennichuck
utility subsidiaries that provide no service in Nashua, Pennichuck East Utility, Inc. or Pittsfield Aqueduct
Company, Inc. and (2) the City does have the legal authority to pursue a potential taking of all of the assets of
Pennichuck Water Works, Inc., subject to a determination by the NHPUC as to what portion of those assets, if
any, it is in the public interest for Nashua to take.

Pursuant to an order issued by the NHPUC on October 1, 2004, the City filed written testimony on
November 22, 2004 supporting its position that the proposed taking is in the public interest. The Commission has
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indicated that it will set a procedural schedule for the remainder of the case after the parties have submitted
written statements of their positions regarding the sequencing of events in the case and have met to discuss
procedural issues.

If the City is successful in obtaining a determination by the NHPUC that it should be allowed to take some
or all of Pennichuck’s assets, the City is not required under NHRSA Ch. 38 to complete the taking and could
ultimately choose not to proceed with the purchase of the assets. The Company cannot predict the ultimate
outcome of these matters. It is possible that, if the acquisition efforts of the City are successful, the financial
position of the Company would be materially impacted.

Prior to the City’s filing of its eminent domain case at the NHPUC, the Company filed a Petition for
Declaratory Judgment in New Hampshire Superior Court seeking a determination that the City had waited too
long to seek condemnation authority from the NHPUC after obtaining a public vote on November 26, 2002
regarding municipalization of water utility assets as well as a determination that NHRSA Ch. 38 was
unconstitutional on a number of grounds and, later, that the NHPUC proceeding ultimately filed by the City
exceeded the scope of the assets that were properly the subject of an attempted taking by the City under NHRSA
Ch. 38. On September 1, 2004, the Superior Court ruled adversely to the Company on a number of these issues,
deferred to the NHPUC with regard to the issue relating to the scope of the assets that the City could seek to
acquire, and determined that one of the constitutional claims raised by the Company should be addressed only
after the proceeding at the NHPUC had concluded. On October 22, 2004, the Company filed an appeal with the
New Hampshire Supreme Court on a number of its claims. Briefs have been filed with the court, and the parties
are awaiting the scheduling of oral arguments.

In addition to its efforts to obtain declaratory relief, the Company also brought suit against the City in New
Hampshire Superior Court to obtain monetary damages that the Company believes resulted from the City’s
efforts to acquire some or all of the assets of the Company. The City removed the case to United States District
Court for the District of New Hampshire and then sought to have the case dismissed in its entirety. On
September 13, the District Court dismissed the Company ‘s federal law claims without prejudice on the basis that
the Company had not yet exhausted its available state law remedies and remanded the case to New Hampshire
Superior Court for consideration of the Company‘s state law claims. On December 1, 2004, the Superior Court
dismissed the remainder of the case without prejudice on the basis that the claim for damages was premature and
giving the Company the right to refile the case at a later date depending on the outcome of the proceeding before
the NHPUC.

The Town of Pittsfield voted at its town meeting in 2003 to acquire the assets of the Company’s Pittsfield
subsidiary by eminent domain. In April 2003, the Town notified the Company in writing of the Town’s desire to
acquire the assets. The Company responded that it did not wish to sell the assets. Thereafter, no further action
was taken by the Town until March 2005, when the Town voted to appropriate $60,000 to the eminent domain
process. On March 22, 2005, the Company received a letter from the Town reiterating the Town’s desire to
acquire the assets of the Company’s Pittsfield subsidiary. The Company does not have a basis to evaluate
whether the Town will actively pursue the acquisition of the Company’s Pittsfield assets by eminent domain.

The Company cannot predict the ultimate outcome of these matters. It is possible that, if the acquisition
efforts of the City and/or the Town of Pittsfield are successful, the financial position of the Company would be
materially impacted. No adjustments have been recorded in the accompanying condensed consolidated financial
statements for these uncertainties.

Settlement of Regulatory Investigation

The Company and Maurice L. Arel, the Company’s former President and Chief Executive Officer, were the
subject of parallel investigations by the New Hampshire Bureau of Securities Regulation (the “Bureau”) and the
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U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) that began in late 2002 and early 2003, respectively.
Effective December 16, 2004, the Bureau and the SEC entered into settlements with the Company and Mr. Arel
regarding matters related to those investigations.

The settlement with the Company was effected through (1) a Consent Order issued by the Bureau (the “New
Hampshire Order”) and (2) an SEC Order Instituting Cease-and-Desist Proceedings, Making Findings, and
Imposing a Cease-and-Desist Order Pursuant to Section 21C of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “SEC
Order”). The allegations in the Orders relate primarily to the Company’s public disclosures regarding various
transactions involving joint ventures formed by the Company’s Southwood subsidiary (the “Southwood Joint
Ventures”). The Southwood Joint Ventures were organized to commercialize land that had long had been held by
the Company’s principal water utility subsidiary. The Bureau and the SEC simultaneously entered into separate
settlement agreements with Mr. Arel. The Company and Mr. Arel neither admitted nor denied any of the factual or
legal allegations contained in their respective settlement documents. The New Hampshire Order directs the
Company to refrain from any violation of the relevant provisions of New Hampshire law, and the SEC Order
directs the Company to cease and desist from committing or causing any future violation of the relevant federal
securities laws.

The Company and Mr. Arel were jointly and severally required to pay to the State of New Hampshire an
administrative fine of $50,000, and investigation costs of $60,000. Mr. Arel made both payments under the terms
of a settlement between him and the Company. As of March 1, 2005, shareholders of the Company as of March
31, 2003 received a payment totaling $280,000 under the terms of the New Hampshire Order. The Company and
Mr. Arel have agreed that Mr. Arel shall be financially responsible for $160,000 of that amount and the Company
shall be responsible for $120,000. In accordance with the terms of the New Hampshire Order, neither Mr. Arel
nor any director of the Company who was a shareholder as of March 31, 2003 received a portion of the
shareholder payment.

In connection with the settlement of the Bureau and SEC investigations, Pennichuck and Mr. Arel entered into
a separate seftlement regarding Mr. Arel’s claim under a 1994 Insurance Funded Deferred Compensation
Agreement with Pennichuck (the “Deferred Compensation Agreement”). The Deferred Compensation Agreement
was designed to provide Mr. Arel with supplemental retirement benefits such that, in general, upon retirement he
would receive a monthly payment which, together with funds available under the Pennichuck’s defined benefit
pension plan annuity, the annuity value of Pennichuck’s contributions to Mr. Arel’s 401(k) plan and fifty percent
(50%) of his projected social security benefits, would equal at least sixty percent (60%) of the average of Mr. Arel’s
last three years’ annual base salary compensation. As of May 2003, Pennichuck’s annual obligation under the
Deferred Compensation Agreement was approximately $57,200. The supplemental retirement payments would
continue for Mr. Arel’s lifetime, and for up to 10 years thereafter to his designated beneficiary. The amount of the
supplemental retirement benefit is adjusted annually based upon the change in the Consumers Price Index. Under
the Deferred Compensation Agreement, Pennichuck purchased and agreed to maintain during Mr. Arel’s lifetime a
Pennichuck-owned cash value life insurance policy.

Pending a resolution of the Bureau and SEC investigations, Pennichuck withheld the payments under the
Deferred Compensation Agreement that would otherwise have begun as of May 1, 2003. In connection with the
settlement of any claim that Pennichuck or Mr. Arel may have had against the other arising out of any allegation
in the settlement documents with the Bureau and the SEC or the cessation of Mr. Arel’s employment in May
2003, Pennichuck and Mr. Arel have agreed that his $160,000 contribution toward the payment to Pennichuck
shareholders required by the New Hamipshire Order will be deducted from the amount that Pennichuck owes to
Mr. Arel under the Deferred Compensation Agreement. Pennichuck has agreed that after the deduction of such
amount, Pennichuck will make the monthly supplemental retirement payments under the Deferred Compensation
Agreement.
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Operating Leases

The Company leases its corporate office space as well as certain office equipment under operating lease
agreements expiring through April 2009. Total rent expense was approximately $148,000, $40,000 and $24,000
for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

The Company’s remaining lease commitments for all leased equipment as of December 31, 2004 are as
follows:

Amount

($000°s)
200 e e e $212
2006 ... e e 200
2007 e e e 195
2008 L e e e 163
2009 and after . . ... e e 53
$823

Note 10—Guarantees

As discussed in Note 4, Southwood holds a 50% interest in four limited liability companies known as
HECOP I, HECOP II, HECOP III and HECOP IV, each of which owns land and three of which own a
commercial office building, subject to a mortgage note with a local bank. The mortgage notes, totaling
approximately $9.0 million, which are not included in the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheets,
are each secured by the underlying real property. In addition, Southwood is contingently liable on one-half of the
outstanding balance, and as such, it has issued a guarantee to the mortgagee for its share of the guaranteed
indebtedness. At December 31, 2004, Southwood was contingently liable on approximately $4.5 million of
mortgage indebtedness associated with the limited liability companies.

Note 11—Supplemental Disclosures on Cash Flow and Non-Cash Items

Supplemental cash flow information for the three years ended December 31 is presented below:
2004 2003 2002

($000’s)
Cash paid during the year for:
5111 ¢=1) A P $1,947 $1,875 $1,931
ICOMmIE taXES . . .ttt $ 69 $ 132 $ 645
Non-cash items:
Deferred gainonland sale ... ........uurern i $ — $1224 § —
Contributions in aid of COnStrUCION . .. v vttt it $2,644 $1,811 $3,168
Minimum pension liability adjustment:
Accrued pension liability .. .........o $ 606 $ 78 §$ 615
Deferred tax and other ............ ..ottt $(272) § 222 $ 405
Other comprehensive income (10SS) . .. ..ot ot n it it $ Q217 $ 454 $ (619)

Note 12—Business Segment Information

The Company follows the provisions of SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and
Related Information.” SFAS No. 131 establishes standards for reporting information regarding operating
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segments in annual financial statements and requires selected information for those segments to be presented in

interim financial reports issued to stockholders. The Company’s operating activities are grouped into three
primary business segments as follows:

Water utility—Involved in the collection, treatment and distribution of potable water for domestic,
industrial, commercial and fire protection service in the City of Nashua and certain surrounding communities in
southern and central New Hampshire.

Real estate—Involved in the ownership, development, management and sale of industrial and residential
property in Nashua and Merrimack, New Hampshire.

Contract operations and other—Includes the contract operations and laboratory testing activities of the
Service Corporation and sundry activities of the Company.

The following table presents information about the Company’s three primary business segments:

2004 2003 2002
($000°’s)
Operating revenues:
Water UtIEY . ..ottt e $ 19,601 $18,680 $18,830
Real state ... i 1,437 949 3,088
Contract operations & other . .......... ... .. i 1,987 1,759 1,504
Total Operating revVeNUES . ... ... o vtturnte et iiae e $ 23,025 $21,388 $23.422
Operating income:
Water Btility .. ... $ 4471 $ 4113 $ 6,045
Realestate ... . o e 1,156 846 1,338
Contractoperations & other ........... ..o, 617 236 265
Total Operating inCome . . ... ..ottt e e . $ 6244 § 5195 § 7648
Capital additions:
Water BHHEY ... $ 7459 $ 8968 $ 8,413
Real estate ... ..... ... . e — — —
Contract operations & other ... ....... ... ... ... — 24 30
Total capital additions ............ ... i $ 7,459 $ 8992 $ 8443
Total assets:
Water ULIILY . oottt ettt et et e et e e e $ 97,733 $92,031 $85,714
Real estate ... ... . i e 1,776 2,651 1,787
Contract operations & other .. ..... ...t 2,618 2,528 3,481
Total ASSELS . .o\ttt e e $102,127 $97,210 $90,982
2004 2003 2002
(3000°s)
Depreciation and amortization expense:
Water WY . oo i e e e $ 3,103 $ 2,884 § 2,681
Real estate ... . — — —
Contract operations &other . ......... ... .. ... .. i, 14 30 95
Total depreciation and amortization eXpense ... .................. $ 3,117 $ 2914 $ 2,776
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The operating revenues within each business segment are sales to unaffiliated customers. Operating income

is defined as segment revenues less operating expenses including allocable parent company expenses attributable
to each business segment as shown below.

2004 2003 2002
($000°s)
Allocated parent expenses:
Water utility .. ..o $832 $709 $444
Realestate ............oiiiiini i i 37 14 49
Contract operations & other .. ....... ... . ... .. ... .. i 40 60 33
Total allocated parent €XPenses .. ..............euueeuneennnnn. $909 $783 $526

The general and administrative expenses allocated by the parent company to its subsidiaries are calculated
based primarily on a ratio of subsidiary revenues to consolidated revenues.

In addition, all of the employees of the consolidated group are employees of Pennichuck, which in turn
allocates a portion of its labor and other direct expenses and general and administrative expenses to the
Company’s other subsidiaries. This intercompany allocation reflects Pennichuck’s estimated costs that are
associated with conducting the activities within the Company’s subsidiaries. The allocation of Pennichuck costs
is based on, among other things, time records for direct labor, customer service activity, and accounting
transaction activity.

Within the water utility business segment, one customer accounted for approximately 10 percent of water
utility revenues in 2003 and 2002. That same customer accounted for approximately 9 percent of water utility
revenues in 2004. During 2004, 2003 and 2002, the water utility recorded approximately $1,939,000 $1,847,000
and $1,842,000, respectively, in water revenues which were derived from fire protection and other billings to the
City of Nashua. As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, this customer accounted for approximately 10% and 11%,
respectively, of total accounts receivable.

Note 13—Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Year Ended December 31, 2004

REVEIUES © o v\ ottt et et et e e e e e e e e e e $4,798 $5.412 $6,241 $6,574
OperatingIncome ....... .. ... . . i 742 1,284 1,696 2,522
NEINCOIME « .ttt ettt e ettt e ettt 2D 215 577 1,049
Earnings (loss) per common share
Basic ... $001) $009 $024 $043
Diluted ... ... $(0.01) $009 3024 $043
Year Ended December 31, 2003
Revenues . .. .. $4.861  $5,262 $6,394  $4,871
OperatingIncome .............. ... ... . i i, 964 1,375 2,209 647
NELINCOME . ..t e e e 147 393 1,022 (315)
Earnings (loss) percommonshare ................ccovevvnran...
Basic .. e e $006 $016 $043 $0.13)
Diluted ... $006 $016 $043 $(0.13)
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Note 14—Subsequent Events
Debt Refinancings

In January 2005, Pennichuck and Pennichuck East issued an aggregate $6.6 million of long-term, tax-
exempt debt through the Business Finance Authority of the State of New Hampshire. These financings consisted
of four separate water facility revenue bonds (Series A through D) with interest rates ranging from 4.5% to 4.7%
and maturities ranging from 2025 to 2035. Approximately $3.0 million of this debt represented new funds with
the balance representing a refinancing of higher interest debt.

In March 2005, the Company issued $5.0 million of debt to an insurance company pursuant to a private
placement transaction. This loan includes interest at 5.0% and a maturity date of March 4, 2010. $1.5 million of
this debt represents new funds with the balance representing a refinancing of higher interest debt.

On March 22, 2005, the Company restructured and expanded its debt arrangements with Bank of America
(BOA). In so doing, the Company increased its revolving credit facility to $16.0 million from $6.5 million. The
BOA facility permits the Company to borrow, repay and re-borrow, in varying amounts and from time to time at
its discretion through December 31, 2007, subject to the terms and conditions of the facility. Borrowings under
the new credit facility bear interest rates ranging from LIBOR plus 1.0% to LIBOR plus 1.5% based on the
results of the Company’s fixed charge coverage ratio. The credit facility will be used for working capital, capital
expenditures and general corporate purposes including the refinancing of the following existing loans:

¢ $1.5 million loan maturing on April 8, 2005; and

*  Approximately $2.8 million outstanding on the Company’s new $16.0 million line of credit as of March
31, 2005.

Settlement of Pennichuck Rate Increase

In March 20035, the Company reached settlement with the NHPUC staff on its requested rate increase for
Pennichuck that was filed in May 2004. A hearing on the settlement is scheduled for April 5, and the Company
expects that the NHPUC will issue a final written decision shortly thereafter. In September 2004 the NHPUC
authorized an interim annualized increase of $1.3 million effective retroactive for services rendered on and after
June 1, 2004. The settlement agreement, if approved by the NHPUC, will result in a final annualized rate
increase of approximately $1.7 million, also effective as of June 1, 2004.

Pending Acquisition

In Janvary 2005, we entered into an agreement to acquire three water systems with approximately 1,100
customers in the Lakes Region and central part of New Hampshire: the Locke Lake water system in Barnstead,
the Birch Hill water system in Conway, and the Sunrise Estates water system in Middleton, New Hampshire. The
acquisition is subject to completion of our due diligence and the approval of the NHPUC. We expect the
acquisition to close late 2005.
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Item 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

Item 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

We carried out an evaluation required by Rule 13a-15(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 under the
supervision and with the participation of our management, including the principal executive officer and the
principal financial officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our “disclosure controls and
procedures”™ as of the end of the period covered by this report.

Disclosure controls and procedures are designed with the objective of ensuring that (i) information required
to be disclosed in the company’s reports filed under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms and (ii) information is
accumulated and communicated to management, including the principal executive officer and the principal
financial officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures.

Based on their evaluation, the principal executive officer and the principal financial officer have concluded
that our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report are effective to
provide reasonable assurance that information relating to the company (including our consolidated subsidiaries)
required to be included in our reports filed or submitted under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in applicable SEC rules and forms.

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the most recent

fiscal quarter that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over
financial reporting.

Item 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART IIT
Item 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Information regarding our directors and executive officers appears under “Election of Directors” and
“Corporate Governance, Board and Committee Membership” in our Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of
Shareholders (the “Proxy Statement”), to be held May 5, 2005. Those portions of the Proxy Statement are
incorporated by reference into this report.

Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act

Information about compliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act appears under “Section 16(a)
Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in the Proxy Statement. That portion of the Proxy Statement is
incorporated by reference into this report.

Code of Ethics

Information regarding our code of ethics (the Company’s Code of Ethics for Financial Professionals)
appears under “Executive Compensation—Code of Ethics for Financial Professionals” in the Proxy Statement.
That portion of the Proxy Statement is incorporated by reference into this report. We will post amendments to or
waivers from a provision of the Code of Ethics for Financial Professionals on our website at
www.pennichuck.com. '

Item 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information about compensation of our named executive officers and related matters appears under
“Executive Compensation,” “Report of the Compensation and Benefits Committee” and under “Comparative
Stock Performance” in the Proxy Statement. Those portions of the Proxy Statement are incorporated by reference
into this report.

Item 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

Information about security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management appears under “General
Disclosures — Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners” and “General Disclosures — Security Ownership
of Management” in the Proxy Statement. Those portions of the Proxy Statement are incorporated by reference
into this report. Information regarding securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation plans
appears under “Executive Compensation—Equity Compensation Plans” in the Proxy Statement. That portion of
the Proxy Statement is incorporated by reference into this report.

Item 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

Information about certain relationships and related transactions appears under “Executive Compensation—
Certain Relationships and Related Transactions” in the Proxy Statement. That portion of the Proxy Statement is
incorporated by reference into this report.

Item 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Information about principal accountant fees and services appears under “Relationship with Independent
Accountants—Fees Paid to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP” in the Proxy Statement. That portion of the Proxy
Statement is incorporated by reference into this report.
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PARTIV:

Item 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) The following documents are filed as part of this report:
(1) The following Consolidated Financial Statements of Pennichuck Corporation and subsidiaries for
the year ended December 31, 2004 are included in Part II, Item 8 hereof:
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Consolidated Balance Sheets at
December 31, 2004 and 2003

Consolidated Statements of Income for each of
the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’
Equity for each of the years ended December 31,
2004, 2003 and 2002

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for each
of the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003
and 2002

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(2) The following Financial Statement Schedules of Pennichuck Corporation for each of the years
2004, 2003 and 2002 are included in this report:

I-Condensed Financial Information of Registrant
[I-Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

All other schedules are omitted because they are not applicable or the required information is shown in the
Consolidated Financial Statements or notes thereto.




(3) Exhibit Index:

The following is a list of exhibits which are either filed or incorporated by reference as part of this annual
report on Form 10-K.

Exhibit
Number Description of Exhibit
3.1 Restated Articles of Incorporation of Pennichuck Corporation (Filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s
1990 Form 10-K Report and incorporated herein by reference).
32 Articles of Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation of Pennichuck Corporation (Filed as Exhibit

3.2 to the Company’s 1994 Form 10-KSB Report and incorporated herein by reference).

33 Bylaws of Pennichuck Corporation (Filed as Exhibit 3.3 to the Company’s 2002 Form 10-K Report
and incorporated herein by reference).

34 Articles of Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation of Pennichuck Corporation (Filed as Exhibit
3.4 to the Company’s 1999 second quarter Form 10-QSB Report and incorporated herein by
reference).

35 Articles of Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation of Pennichuck Corporation (Filed as Exhibit
3.5 to the Company’s 2000 second quarter Form 10-QSB Report and incorporated herein by
reference).

36 Certificate of Designation of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock of Pennichuck
Corporation (Filed as Exhibit 3.6 to the Company’s 2000 second quarter Form 10-QSB Report and
incorporated herein by reference).

4.1 Rights Agreement dated as of April 20, 2000 between Pennichuck Corporation and Fleet National
Bank, as Rights Agent (Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 8-A12G, filed
on April 21, 2000 and incorporated herein by reference).

4.2 Amendment to Rights Agreement dated October 10, 2001, by and between Pennichuck Corporation
and Fleet National Bank (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form 8-A12G/A filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 30,
2002).

43 Second Amendment to Rights Agreement dated January 14, 2002, by and between Pennichuck
Corporation and EquiServe Trust Company, N.A. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form 8-A12G/A filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on April 30, 2002).

44 Agreement of Substitution and Amendment of Common Shares Rights Agreement dated January 15,
2002, by and between Pennichuck Corporation and American Stock Transfer & Trust Company
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 8-A12G/
A filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 30, 2002).

4.5 Amendment to Rights Agreement dated April 29, 2002, by and between Pennichuck Corporation and
American Stock Transfer & Trust Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
April 29, 2002).

4.6 Dividend Reinvestment and Common Stock Purchase Plan, as amended (Filed as Exhibit 4.6 to Post-
effective Amendment No. 3 to Registration Statement on Form S-3 filed on November 3, 2004, and
incorporated herein by reference).

10.1 Deferred Compensation Program for Directors of Pennichuck Corporation (Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to
the Company’s 1997 Form 10-KSB Report and incorporated herein by reference).*
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Exhibit
Number

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

Description of Exhibit

Loan Agreement dated March 22, 2005 between Pennichuck Corporation and Fleet National Bank, a
Bank of America Company. (Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on March 28,
2005 and incorporated herein by reference).

Revolving Credit Promissory Note of Pennichuck Corporation to Fleet National Bank, a Bank of
America Company, dated March 22, 2005 (Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on
March 28, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference).

Guaranty Agreement by Pennichuck Water Works, Inc. and Fleet National Bank, a Bank of America
Company, dated March 22, 2005 (Filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on
March 28, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference).

Subordination Agreement by Pennichuck Water Works, Inc. and Fleet National Bank, a Bank
of America Company, and joined by Pennichuck Corporation, dated March 22, 2005 (Filed as
Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on March 28, 2005 and incorporated herein by
reference).

Insurance Funded Deferred Compensation Agreement dated June 13, 1994 (Filed as Exhibit 10.9 to
the Company’s 1994 second quarter Form 10-QSB Report and incorporated herein by reference).*

1995 Stock Option Plan (Filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Post-Effective Amendment No. 1 to
Registration Statement on Form S-8, filed September 17, 2001, No. 333-57352, and incorporated
herein by reference).*

Loan Agreement dated April 8, 1998, between Pennichuck Corporation, Pennichuck East Utility, Inc.
and Fleet Bank-NH (Filed as Exhibit 10.11 to the Company’s 1998 second quarter Form 10-QSB
report and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Change of Control Agreement by and between Pennichuck Corporation and executive
officers (Stephen J. Densberger, Bonalyn J. Hartley and Donald L. Ware) each dated January 8, 1999
(Filed as Exhibit 10.14 to the Company’s 1999 first quarter Form 10-QSB Report and incorporated
herein by reference).*

2000 Stock Option Plan (Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Post-Effective Amendment No. 1 to
Registration Statement on Form S-8, No. 333-57354, filed on September 17, 2001, and incorporated
herein by reference).* :

Employment Agreement between Donald L. Correll and Pennichuck Corporation dated August 4,
2003 (Filed as Exhibit 10.14 to the Company’s 2003 third quarter Form 10-Q report and incorporated
herein by reference).*

Amendment Agreement dated March 29, 2004 to Loan Agreement dated April 8, 1998, as amended,
between Pennichuck Corporation and Pennichuck East Utility, Inc., as borrowers, The Southwood
Corporation and Pennichuck Water Service Corporation as guarantors, and Fleet National Bank
(Filed as Exhibit 10.18 to the Company’s 2004 first quarter Form 10-Q and incorporated herein by
reference).

Indenture of Lease dated as of April 23, 2004 by and between Pennichuck Water Works, Inc., as
lessee and HECOP I, LLC, as lessor (Filed as Exhibit 10.19 to the Company’s second quarter Form
10-Q and incorporated herein by reference).

Employment Agreement between William D. Patterson and Pennichuck Corporation dated
January 31, 2005.%%

Guaranty Agreement between Pennichuck Corporation and Banknorth National Association.f
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Exhibit
Number

10.16
10.17
10.18
10.19
14

21

23
311

31.2

321

322

Description of Exhibit

Summary of Non-Employee Director Compensation.*t

Summary of Annual Incentive Bonus Plan.*

Form of Stock Option granted under the 1995 Stock Option Plan.*+
Form of Stock Option granted under the 2000 Stock Option Plan.*f

Code of Ethics for Financial Professionals (Filed as Exhibit 14 to the Company’s 2003 Form 10-K
report and incorporated herein by reference).

Subsidiaries of Pennichuck Corporation (Filed as Exhibit 21 to the Company’s 1997 Form 10-KSB
Report and incorporated herein by reference).

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.§

Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer of the Company in accordance with Section
302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.1

Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Officer of the Company in accordance with Section
302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 20021

Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer of the Company in accordance with Section
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.1

Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Officer of the Company in accordance with Section
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.t

Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
t  Filed herewith.
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SCHEDULE I—CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT

Pennichuck Corporation
Condensed Balance Sheets

December 31,
2004 2003
(5000°s)
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cashandcashequivalents . ....... ... ... oo e $ 717 § 377
Refundable income taxes . ....... .ottt e 309 1,145
Prepaid expensesand other .......... ... .o 77 3
Total CUITENt ASSEtS o v vttt et ittt e ettt e e 1,103 1,525
Property and Equipment ........ ... ... . — 1,266
Less allowances for depreciation . ........... ... i —_ ©610)
— 656
L 11 1 =3 1011 - N 8 8
Deferred taX @SSt ...ttt e e e — —_
Investment in subSIdiaries .. ... it e e e 35,869 33,232

$36,980  $35421

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Accounts payable and other current liabilities ............ ... ... . ... $ 517 § 397
Lineof credit . ... e 3,800 2,000
Current portion of long termdebt . ....... ... .. ... . ... .. 1,500 —

Longtermdebt . ... ... i e e e — 1,500
Other long term liabilities .. ... ... . i e 332 774
Stockholders’ qUILY .. ... ...ttt e e 30,831 30,750

$36,980  $35421
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SCHEDULE I—CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT (CON’T)

Pennichuck Corporation
Condensed Statements of Income

OPETating TEVEMUES . . . o« v vttt et et e ir et ie e eee et
Operating expenses, including merger relatedcosts ....................

Operating Income (L0SS) ... i
Interestincome & Other .......... ... .. it
Interest (EXPense) . .. .. .outniin i i e i e

Income (Loss) Before Income Taxes and Equity in Earnings of Subsidiaries
Income Tax (Provision) . ......... ... i i

Income (Loss) Before Equity in Earnings of Subsidiaries .. ..............

Equity in Earnings of Subsidiaries ................. ... .. ...
NETINCOME ... ... i e e e

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows

OPERATING ACTIVITIES .. ... ... . i

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Equity Transfer to Subsidiary ........... ... .. ... ... i

Net increase in Property and Equipment and Other Assets ...............

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from issuance ofdebt ............. .. ... ... ... ... .. ...
Advances (to) from Subsidiaries ........... ... .. .. .. i
Paymentof Dividends ........ ... .. ...
Proceeds from Dividend Reinvestment and Other,net ..................

INCREASE (DECREASE}INCASH . ........ ... i

CashatBeginningof Year . ............ . ... i
CASHATENDOF YEAR ... ...t

85

Years Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
($000°s)

..... $ 55 % 57 % 45
..... 1,392 1,116 1,927

..... (1,337) (1,059) (1,882)
..... 3 12 56
..... (52) 4 (138)

..... (1,386) (1,043) (1,964
..... 549 354 798

..... (837 {689) (1,166)
..... 2,657 1,936 3,507

..... $1,820 $1,247 §2.341

Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
($000°s)

..... $ 24 % (109) $(1,544)

..... 2,064 2,010 1,897
..... 647 (24) (18)

2,711 198 1879

..... 1,800 2,000 —
..... (2,171) (3,858) 615
..... (2,064) (2,010) (1,944)
..... 41 47 61

(2,394) (3,821) (1,268)
..... 341 (1,944) (933)
..... 377 2,321 3,255

..... $ 717 $ 377 $27322




SCHEDULE I—CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT (CON’T)

Pennichuck Corporation
Notes to Condensed Financial Statements

NOTE A—ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation. In the parent-company-only financial statements, the Company’s investment in its
subsidiaries is stated at cost plus equity in undistributed earnings of its subsidiaries. Parent-company-only

financial statements should be read in conjunction with the Company’s Annual Report to Shareholders for the
year ended December 31, 2004,
NOTE B—COMMON DIVIDENDS FROM SUBSIDIARIES

Common stock cash dividends paid to Pennichuck Corporation by its subsidiaries were as follows:

2004 2003 2002
(5000°s)

Pennichuck Water Works, InC. .. .. ... oo $ — $ 933 $1,829
Pittsfield Aqueduct Company, Inc. ....... .. .. .. .. .. .. — — —
Pennichuck East Utility, InC. ... vttt e —_ 48 115
The Southwood COIporation . .............c.uiiiuitnin i eneinnnnnennn 2,064 1,029 —

TOT AL . $2,064 $2,010 $1,944




SCHEDULE I—VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Balance
Balance at  Charged to at End
Beginning  Costs and of
of Period Expenses  Deductions?  Period
($000°s)
Allowance for doubtful accounts
2004 . . $37 $ 6 $6 $37
2003 ....... PPN $40 $13 $16 $37
2002 . - $84 $(14) $30 $40
(1) Amounts include accounts receivable write-offs net of recoveries.
Valuation allowance for deferred tax asset (2)
2004 . . $300 S — $— $300
2003 . e $300 $ — $— $300
2002 . e e e $— $300 $— $300

(2) See Note 2 in the Notes to the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized on the 31+ of
March 2005.

PENNICHUCK CORPORATION

By: /s/  DONALD L. CORRELL

Donald L. Correll,
President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Titte Date
/s/ DonNALD L. CORRELL President, Chief Executive Officer and March 31, 2005
Donald L. Correll Director (Principal Executive
Officer)
/s/ WILLIAM D. PATTERSON Vice President, Treasurer and Chief March 31, 2005
William D. Patterson Financial Officer (Principal

Accounting Officer)

Director
Joseph A. Beflavance
/s/  STEVEN F. BOLANDER Director March 31, 2005
Steven F. Bolander
/s/ MICHELLE L. CHICOINE Director March 31, 2005
Michelle L. Chicoine
/s/ CHARLES E. CLOUGH Director March 31, 2005
Charles E. Clough ‘
/s/ RoOBERT P. KELLER Director March 31, 2005
Robert P. Keller
/s/ JoHN R. KREICK Director March 31, 2005
John R, Kreick
Director
Hannah M, McCarthy
/s/ MARTHA E. O’NEILL Director March 31, 2005

Martha E. O’Neill




Exhibit 31.1

SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION OF THE PRESIDENT
AND PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER

I, Donald L. Correll, certify that:
1. T have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Pennichuck Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of,
and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this annual report is being prepared,

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
. report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end
of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

¢) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the
case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 31, 2005 /s/  DoNALD L. CORRELL

Donald L. Correll, President and
Principal Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION OF THE VICE PRESIDENT,
TREASURER AND PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER

I, William D. Patterson, certify that:

1. T have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Pennichuck Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of,
and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and have:

a)

b)

)

designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end
of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the
case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
contro} over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 31, 2005 /s/  WILLIAM D. PATTERSON

William D. Patterson, Vice President, Treasurer
and Principal Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004 of Pennichuck
Corporation (the “Company™) as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the
“Report™), I, Donald L. Correll, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, hereby certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition
and results of operations of the Company.

The foregoing certification shall not be deemed to be filed for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 or otherwise subject to liability under that section. This certification shall not be deemed
to be incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Exchange Act except to the
extent this Exhibit 32.1 is expressly and specifically incorporated by reference in any such filing.

Date: March 31, 2005 /s/ DoNaLDp L. CORRELL

Name: Donald L. Correll
Title: President and Chief Executive Officer

A signed original of this written statement required by 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 has been provided to the
Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its
staff upon request.




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004 of Pennichuck
Corporation (the “Company”) as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the
“Report”), [, William D. Patterson, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, hereby certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition
and results of operations of the Company.

The foregoing certification shall not be deemed to be filed for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 or otherwise subject to liability under that section. This certification shall not be deemed
to be incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Exchange Act except to the
extent this Exhibit 32.2 is expressly and specifically incorporated by reference in any such filing.

Dated: March 31, 2005 /s/ WiLLIAM D. PATTERSON

Name: William D. Patterson
Title: Vice President, Treasurer
and Chief Financial Officer

A signed original of this written statement required by 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 has been provided to the
Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its

staff upon request.




L7
éﬁ PENNICHUCK

CORPORATION

25 MANCHESTER STREET

PO Bax 1947

MERRIMACK, NH 03054-1947
(603) 8B2-5191

Fax (603) 9213-2305

WWW,.PENNICHUTK.COM

April 1, 2005

Dear Shareholder:

You are cordially invited to attend the Annual Meeting of Shareholders of
Pennichuck Corporation which will be held at 9:00 a.m. on Thursday, May 5,
2005 at the Nashua Marriott Hotel, 2200 Southwood Drive, in Nashua, New
Hampshire.

The formal Notice and the Proxy Statement that accompany this letter
contain details of the business to be conducted at the meeting, including the
election of two directors and the ratification of the appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as independent public accountants of the
Company for the year ending December 31, 2005.

The interest and participation of shareholders in the affairs of our Company is
very important if we are to do the best job possible on your behalf.
Therefore, whether or not you will be able to join us on May 5th, please take
a moment now to vote on these important matters and complete, sign, date
and mail the enclosed proxy card in the postage-paid envelope provided for
this purpose. If you attend the meeting, you may revoke your proxy, if you
wish, and vote personally. 1t is important that your shares be represented.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to express our appreciation
for your continued support of the Company. | personally look forward to
greeting as many of you as possible on May 5th.

Sincerely,

@t& / &WL

Donald L. Correli
President and
Chief Executive Officer
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Board of Divectors and Officers

Board of Directors

Joseph A. Bellavancs, Presidant, Bellavance Beverage Company, Inc.

Steven F. Bolander, Ph.D., Dean, Whittemore School of Business and Economics, University of New Hompshire
Michelle L. Chicoine, Chief Financial Officer, St. Paul’s School

Charles E. Clough, Chairman, Nashua Corporation, retired

Donald L. Correll, President and Chief Executive. Officer, Pennichuck Corporation

Robert P. Keller, Managing Director, Triumph Investment Fund, LP

John R. Kreick, Ph.D., Chief Executive Officer, Lockheed Sanders, retired

Honnah M. McCarthy, President, Daniel Webster College

Martha E. O'Neill, Esq., Clancy and O'Neill, PA.

Qtficers

Donald L. Correll, President and Chief Executive Officer
Stephen J. Densberger, Executive Vice President;
President, Pennichuck Water Service Corporation
Michael C. J. Failon, President, The Southwood Corporation
Bonalyn J. Hartley, Vice President, Administration
William D. Patterson, Vice President, Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer

Donald L. Ware, Senior Vice President, Operations

Corporate Secreftary

Richard A. Samuels, Esg.
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PENNICHUCK"

CORPORATION

Pennichuck Corporation

25 Manchester Street

PO Box 1947

Merrimack NH 03054-1947
800 553 5191

603 882 5191

Fox 603 882 4125

www.pennichuck.com



